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NOTICE TO MEMBERS

Notice is hereby given that the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED to be held at a shorter notice on
Saturday, December 28, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company situated
at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5% Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion
Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai- 400 022 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
(1) To receive, consider and adopt:
(a) the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 together with
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and
(b} the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Margh 31,2024
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(2) RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or amendments made thereof), the remuneration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Fifty Two Thousand Five Hundred only), payable to M/s N. Ritesh &
Associates, Cost Accountants, bearing Firm Registration number R100675, who was
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditor to conduct the
audit of thc cost accounting records maintained by the Company relating 1o
“Construction Business” for Financial Year 2024-25 be and is hereby ratified and
approved.”

(3) APPOINTMENT OF MR. SANJAY SHARMA (DIN: 05320421) AS A DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

*RESULVED THA'L' pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) read with the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjay Sharma (DIN: 05320421), who
was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from December 23, 2024 in terms of
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
. Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”



(4) APPOINTMENT OF MS. NIRMALA MURALI (DIN: 09408883) AS A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Nirmala Murali (DIN: 09408883), who
was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from December 23, 2024 in terms of
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

(5) APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUNIL SATVILKAR (DIN: 10069955) AS A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) and suhject to provisions -
of Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sunil Satvilkar (DIN: 10069955), who
was appointed as an Additional Director with effect rom November 8, 2024 in terms of
Section 161 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting, be and 1is hereby appointed as a Director ot the Company.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Kosrs

SWEENA
COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Mumbai """'i;'-.-_:_.-'_ _ '
Date : December 28, 2024



Route Map to the Venue of Annual General Meeting
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NOTES:

e Members / Authorized Representatives are requested to fill in the Attendance Slip and submit
it at the venue of the AGM.

¢ The Explanatory Statement made pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed herewith.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial vear 2024-25 at a remuncration of Rs. 52,500/-
(Rupees Fifty Two Thousand Five Hundred only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor needs to be ratified by the
Sharcholders of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor to conduct audit of the cost accounting records maintained by the Company
relating to “Construction Business™ for the Financial Year 2024-25. Relevant documents in
respect of the said item arc open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company on all working days during the office hours up to the date of the Meeting.

None of the Directors or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the
resolution set out in the Netice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the shareholders.
Item No. 3

Mr. Sanjay Sharma (DIN: 053204721) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board
of Director w.e.l. December 23, 2024 in actordunce withi the provisions ol Sectivn 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Director holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting., In ferms of the relevant
provisions ol the Companies Acl, 2013 read with rules under the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Direciors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificulion(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), his appointment is to be confirmed by the
Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Mr. Sanjay Sharma would be of
immense benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out
at Item No. 3 of the Notice relating to his appointment as a Director for approval by the
Members.

None of the Directors, except Mr. Sanjay Sharma is concerned or interested in this
resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Iiem No. 3 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.

Item No. 4

Ms. Nirmala Murali (DIN: 09408883) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board
of Director w.e.f. December 23, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

ey e



Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Director holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In terms of the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules under the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), his appointment is to be confirmed by the
Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Ms. Nirmala Murali would be of
immense benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out
at Item No. 4 of the Notice relating to her appointment as a Director for approval by the
Members.

None of the Directors, except Ms. Nirmala Murali is concerned or interested in this
resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No. 4 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.

Item No. 5

Mr. Sunil Satvilkar (DIN: 10069955) was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board
of Director w.e.f. November 8, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 the aforementioned Director holds
office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Mecting. In terms of the relevant
provisivus ol e Companies Act, 2013 read with rules under the Companies (Appointment
aid Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory awdification(s) or re
enactment thereof for the time being in force), his appointment is to bc confirmed by the
Members of the Company.

The Board considers that the continued association of Mr. Sunil Satvilkar would be of
immense benefit to the company. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out
at Item No. 5 of the Notice relating to his appointment as a Director for approval by the
Members.

None of the Directors, except Mr. Sunil Satvilkar is concerned or interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under Item No. 5 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution by
members.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
FOR RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

gw&"-’;/
SWEENA NAIR
COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Mumbai
Date : December 28, 2024



FURTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS RE

STANDARD NO. 2 IS LISTED OUT HEREIN BELOW FOR ITEM NO. 3 & 4:

UIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL

Proposed to be |
paid

Particulars Mr. Sanjay Ms. Nirmala Murali Mr. Sunil Satvilkar
Sharma
Age 60 Years 51 Years 51 Years
Qualification B. Tech Civil Cost Accountant Bachelor of

: Engineer Commerce (B. Com)

. Experience Mr. Sanjay has | Ms. Nirmala is a Cost | Having over 25+ years
around 30 years of | Accountant having 25+ | of experience, he is a
rich experience with | years of  profound | result-driven
reputed  diversified | experience in Financial | accountant skilled at
group of companies. | Management, Fund | processing payments,
He was  ecarlier | Management, managing accounts
associated with | Accounts/Auditing/Taxat | payable and providing
organizations  like | ion, Strategic Planning, | executive
DLF Universal Ltd, | Statatory Compliances, | administrative support.

{ EMAAR  INDIA, | SAP / ERP
! Eldeco Implementation, Costing
i Infrastructure & |& MIS and Team
Properties Ltd. and | Management targets.
Ansal Buildwell. | Currently she is engaged
His last stint was |as Vice President -
with  Puravankara | Finance and Accounts
Timited. with Runwal since 2012. |
- Terms and - - -
- Comditione ol
Appointment
Remuncration - - -
Last Drawn (if
any)
Remuneration - - -

Date of first | December 23, 2024 December 23, 2024 November 8, 2024
appointment  on

the Board.

Shareholding in - - -
the Company

Relationship with - - B
other Directors,

Managers  and

other Key

Managerial

Personnel.

Number of - - -
meetings

attended  during




the year

‘ Number of other
Directorship/

| Chairmanship of

- Committees  of

| other Board,

Lwa)




RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U70100MHI1988PTC046631
Regd. Office: Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5% Floor, Off Eastern Express Highway,
Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel: +91-22-6113 3000, I'ax: +91.22-2409 3749, Corporaterarunwal.com, www.runwal.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
36™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - DECEMBER 28, 2024

Register Folio No. / DP ID No.* / Client 1D

No.* j
Number of Shares held ;

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form:.

T certify that I am a registered Member [or the registered Member of the Company. I hereby
record my presence at the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" Floor, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Mumbai — 400022, on Saturday., December 28,
2024, at 4:00 p.m. (IST).

Name of the Member Signature of Member

NOTE: Members holders are requested fo bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting and
hand over the same at the entrance duly signed.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members,
Runwal Developers Private Limited,
Mumbeai.

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 36" Annual Report of the Company together
with the audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024,

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is one of Mumbai’s premier real cstatc developers, operating in the
residential, commercial and organized retails verticals. We operate in the Luxury, Premium
and Large-Format Townships categories in residential development.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone

2023-24 2022-23
Total Income 32,598.33 34,253.79
Total Iixpenditure 24,154.53 23,469.67
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 8,443.80 10,784.12
Less: Income Tax (1,833.34) {2,.810.42)

Less: MAT Credit reversal : -
Less: Tax related to previous year - -

Less: Deferred Tax 877.20 281.18
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation

{From Continuing Operations) 7:487.66 8,254.88
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (3,249.54) (35.36)
Profit / (L.oss) for the vear 4,238.12 8,219.52
Share of Profit / Loss of Joint Venture /
Associate

Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

Remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses (0.75) 6.03 |
Net (loss)/gain on FVTOCI equity Securities / '

Share of other comprehensive income in - -

associate and joint venture '
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not 0.19 (1.52)
be reclassified to profit or loss ) )
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 4,237.56 8,224.05




Rumwal Developers Private Limited Director’s Report FY 2023-24

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Consolidated

2023-24 2022-23 |
Total Income 59.(95.68 36,482.37
Total Expenditure 58,345.10 27.660.65
Profit / (Loss) before share of profit /(loss) -
of Joint Venture and exceptional items 750.58 8,821.72

. [l . 7 .

Share .of Profit / Loss of Joint Venture / 49538 (4,428 81)
Agsgsociate
f;l;:ﬁt,-’(Loss) before exceptional items and 1,245.96 4,392.91
Exceptional Items 1,15,929.51 |
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,17,175.47 4,392.91
Less: Income Tax (2,758.80) (2,901.27)
Less: MAT Credit reversal - -
Legs: Tax related to previous year - _ (53.86)
Less: Deferred Tax 5,046.12 2,796
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 1,20,362.79 4,233.78

(From Continuning Operations)

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,20,362.79 4,233.78
Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Remeasurement of actuarial gains and losses 17.55 , 13.41
Net (loss)/gain on FVTOCI equity Securities
/ Share of other comprehensive income in - 8.29

associate and joint venture

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the
period

(4.29) (4.10)

1,20,376.05 4,251.38

FINANCTIAL PERFORMANC'E.
Standalone

During the vear under review, the Standalone Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 4,237.56 Lakhs as
against Rs. 8,224.05 Lakhs in the previous year.

Consolidated

During the year under review, the Consolidated Profit After Tax stands at Rs. 1,20,376.05/-
Lakhs as against profit of Rs. 4,251.38/- Lakhs in the previous year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s LEquity Share Capital position as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:-

Authorised Share Capital Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share
Capital
Sha.rc © No. of Face Amount No. of Face Amount
Capital Shares Value {Rs.) Shares Value (Rs.)
. (Re.) (Re.)
Equity 29,55,50,000 1 29,55,50,000; 22,28.90,150 1 22.28.,90,150
Total 29,55,50,000 Total 22,28,90,150 :

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorised Capital of the Company was ¥34,85,50,000, divided
into 34,69,50,000 equity shares of Z1/- each aggregating to ¥34,69,50,000/- and 1,60,000 9%
Redeemable Preference Shares of T10/- each aggregating to ¥16,00,000/-. The Authorised
Equity Share Capital increased by 5,30,00,000/- on account of merger of Dhruva Woollen
Mills Private Limited (“DWMPL”) with the Company vide Amaigamation order of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on February 13, 2024.

After the review period, the Company has made the following allotments:

a} On April 1, 2024, 1,53,533 9% Redeemable Preference Shares of 210/- each to the equity
shareholders of DWMPL on account of Merger with the Company.

b} On July 12, 2024, 1,54,67,298 (One Crore Fifty Four lakhs Sixly Seven Thousand Two
Hundred and Ninety Eight) Equity Shares of Re, 1/- each at an issue price of Rs. 536/- cach
(Rupees Five Hundred and Thirty Six) were issued on preferential basis through private
placement (“the “Issue™) (“Subscription Shares™), 1o Avalor Developers Private Limited
(“Allottee”), for consideration other than cash being the acquisition of 20,00,000 Class A
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 47,142 Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of R Mall
Developers Private Limited (“RMDPL”) for an aggregate total consideration of Rs.
8,29,87,65,054/- (Indian Rupees Eight Hundred 'I'wenty Nine Crores Eighty Seven Lakhs
Sixty Five Thonsand $ix Hundred Fifty Four only) being discharged by way of issuc of
subscription shares on the (erms and conditions as detailed in the Share Subscription cum
Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into with Allottee, Company and RMDPL.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2024.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend dividend on Equity shares for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2024,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private
Limited (“Transferor Company™) with the Company (“Transferee Company™) (collectively
referred to as “Applicant Companies™) was approved by the Board of Directors of the
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Company on May 8, 2023 and the same was filed with Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai bench (NCLT) on August 2, 2023 (“said Merger™).

In view thereof, NCLT vide its Order dated February 13, 2024, sanctioned the scheme of
Merger by absorption of Transferor Company with the Company wherein all the properties,
rights, liabilities, duties and powers of the Transferor Company were transferred without
further act or decd, to the Transferee Company.

The said Merger Order has become effective from March 13, 2024, upon filing of the Merger
order with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai vide E form INC 28,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- Not applicable

ii. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy — The
Company is evaluating installation of Solar Panels at its various project sites.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment — Not Applicable.

{(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption — Not Applicable

ii. The benecfits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution — Not applicable

iii. In case of imported technology imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year
a) The details of technology imported- Not applicable
b} The year of import- Not applicable
c¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- Not applicable
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof- Not applicable

iv.  The expenditure incwrred on Research and Development — Not applicable

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGY AND OUTGO

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review.

ROARD, COMMITTEE AND GENERAL MEETINGS

Number of Meeting of Board of Directors

During the financial year under review, 12 (Twelve) meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company were held, which were duly convened with the requisite quorum. The Meeting
of the Board of Directors were held on (i) April 17, 2023; (1) May §, 2023; (111} June 5, 2023;
(iv) July 7, 2023; (v) August 3, 2023; (vi) September 6, 2023; (vii) September 29, 2023; (viii)
October 23, 2023; (ix) November 9, 2023; (x) December 11, 2023; (xi) February [3, 2024;
(xii) March 26, 2024.

Number of Meeting of the Members of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR
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As at March 31, 2024, the CSR Committee of the Company consists of three Members Ms.
Pallavi Matkari, Mr. Ashok G. Darak and Ms. Sujata Rao. During the year under review, 2
(two) meeting of the members of CSR Committee were held on (i) September 29, 2023 and
(i1} March 26, 2024.

Number of General Meetings

The 35™ Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 30, 2023. During
the Financial Year 2023-24, 1 (One) Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the members of the
Company was held with the requisite quorum on July 7, 2023,

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board of Direciors:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors as on March
31,2024:

NAME DESIGNATION
Ms. Pallavi Matkari Director
Ms. Sujata Rao Director
Mr. Ashok G. Darak Additional Director
Mr. Mukesh Jaitley Additional Director

During the year under review, following changes took place in the composition of the Board
of Directors of the Company:

(a) Mr. Ashok G. Darak (DIN: 08673236) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from March 12, 2024, He resigned from the Board of
the Company on 23" December 2024. The Board places on record appreciation for the
invaluable service rendered by Mr. Ashok G Darak during his tenure of directorship in
the Company.

{b) Mr. Mukesh Jaitley (DIN: 10559758) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of thc Company with ¢ffect from March 21, 2024, Ilc rcsigned from the Board of
the Company on 23" December 2024. The Board places on record appreciation for the
invaluable service rendered by Mr. Mukesh Jaitley during his tenure of chrector%h;p in the

~Company.

(¢) Mr. Sunil Satvilkar (DIN:10069955) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from 8™ November 2024.

(d) Mr. Sanjay Sharma (DIN: 05320421) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from 23" December 2024.

{e) Ms. Nirmala Murali (DIN: 09408883) was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from 23" December 2024.

Your Board of Directors recommends the appointment of Mr. Sunil Satvilkar, Ms. Nirmala
Murali and Mr. Sanjay Sharma as Regular Direclors at the upcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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Kev Managerial Personnel:

As of March 31, 2024, Ms. Sweena Nair (ACS: 17636) was a Company Secretary and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the Company is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
prescribed under rule (5) sub rule (2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was ne change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 extract of annual return in Form
MGT 9, forms part of this Board Report as Annexure k.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE COMPANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
conlaining salient features of the Financial Statements, highlights of performance of
subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates is attached as Annexure II to the Direclors™ Report
of the Company in Form AOC-1.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there were no significant and material orders passed by

the regulators or Courts or Tribunals which can adversely impact the going concern status of
the Mampany and its aperationg in fittire

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

During the year under review, the relevant provisions relating to the performance evaluation
under the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is of the opinion that there are no major risks affecting business of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the year
under review within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made there under.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Full particulars of investments, loans, guarantees and securities covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 provided during the financial year under review has been furnished
in the Notes to Accounts which forms part of the financials of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In accordance with section 139, 141, 142 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants having registration number
302049E, were appointed as Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years to hold office
from the conclusion of 34" Annual General Meeting for a term of consecutive five years till
the conclusion of the 39™ Annual General Meeting of the Company at the remuneration
determined by the Board in consultation with the Auditors of the Company.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors” Report are self-explanatory and

do not call for any further comments. The report of the Statutory Auditor for F.Y. 2023-24
does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, M/s N.A. Shah Associates LLP are appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company.
The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of the internal control
system of the Company, its compliances with operating systems and accounting procedures
and policies of the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

During the financial year 2023-24, as required under Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Statutory Auditors have evaluated and expressed an opinion on the Company’s
intertal financial controls over (inancial reporting based on an audit. i their opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial contrels over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Persormel) Rules, 2014, M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries in Praclice, have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The
Report in the Form MR 3 of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure II1. There has
been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial
Auditors in their Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Annual Report on CSR activities, in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time, is annexed herewith as Annexure I'V.
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board of Direclors of vour Company has established a vigil mechanism headed by
Ms. Sujata Rao, Dircetor of the Company to hear the grievances of the employees/ any
person in the company and take steps to resolve the issues amicably and report the same to
the Board of Directors of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is committed towards creating and maintaining a healthy work environment
free from any type of harassment. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace.
There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is respousible for redressal of
complaints related to sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY

The details of transactions/contracts/arrangements referred to in Section 188(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 entered by the Company with related party (ies) as defined under the provisions of
Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review, are
furnished in Form AQC 2 and is attached as Annexure V and forms part of this Report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from
Banks and Financial Institutions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that:

i.  in the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures
in adoption of these standards;

ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at March 31, 2024 and profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;
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iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for period ended March 31, 2024 on a
‘going concern’ basis;

v. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors
have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or
employees to the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Secretarial Standards as applicable to the Company were
duly complied.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks, Central and State
Government authorities, Employees etc. and all stakeholders for their continued cooperation
and support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Runwal Developers Private Limited

b}

A Rtie
X% 4 Wﬂ“”f\};

Sujata Rao Nirmala Murali
Director Director
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 09408883

Place : Mumbai
Date : December 28, 2024



ANNEXURE1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as op the financial year ended March 31,2024
{Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Compagies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- U70100MH 1988PTC04663 1
ii) Registration Date — _ March 22, 1988
iii) | Name of the Company - RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Private Limited Company
. Company S
V) Address of the Registered office : Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5" floor, Opp. Sion!
and contact details | Chunabhattr Signal, Off. Eastern Express Highway., Sien ¢

- (Fast), Mumbai — 400 022
Tel. : 9122 61133600

vi) | Whether listed company Unlisted

vii) | Name, Address and Contact | -
details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

IL PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

St Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of |
No, main products / services Product/ scrvice __the Company
1 Construction of buldings 410 84.35

| IIL. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

. S. i Nameand Holding | % 4 poo
No | Address of the CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ | of Shares gp.
. ection
i Company Associate Held
_l *Avalor
i Developers

Private Limited
Add: Office
th :

s

o U70109MH2019PTC324563 Subsidiary 83 Companies
Omkar -

. Act, 2013

Esquare,
Opposite  Sion
Chunabhatti
Signal,
Sion East




Mumbai -

! 400022

‘R Mall
Developers Pvt.
Lid.

Add: R City
| Mall, 3rd Floor,
' Mall
Management
Office. 146,

LBS Marg, |

Ghalkopar
West, Mumbai
- 400 086.

45201 MH2006PTC163273

**Qubsidiary

49.75

Sec 2 (6) of
Companies
Act, 2013

R Retail

Ventures

Private Limited

Add:  Office
No. 2, 6" Floor,
Runwal &
" Ombkar

¢ Esquare,

. Opposite  Sion

: Chunabhatti

. Signal,  Sion
East, Mumbai -

: 400022

U70200MH2018PTC313615

***Qubsidiary

50

Sec 2 (6)
of
Companies
Act, 2013

Gallerta Retail
Private Limited
Add:  Office
No.2, Runwal
& Omkar
- Esquare,

6th Floor, Off.
Eastern Express
Highway,

Opp. Sion
" Chunabhatti
Mumbai — 400
022.

U70200MH2019PTC319329

Subsidiary

160

2(87) of
Companies
Act, 2013

Aethon

. Developers

. Private Limited
Add: 601 6th C
Runwal Omkar

Premises CHS |

Lid Opp Ex,
Sion (East),
. Mumbai
Mumbai,
Maharashtra,
India, 400022

City, |

U70109MH2021PTC364477

Subsidiary

100

2(87) of
Companies
Act, 2013




Runwal
Construction
Private Limited
Add: Shop-
3,F-5th,Runwal
And,  Omkar
Esquire, Sion
East, Mumbai,
Maharashtra,
India, 400022

U41001MH2023PTC406024

Subsidiary

99.99

2(87) of
Companies
Act, 2013

CAdd: 3
. Runwal &
: Omkar

- Esquare,
i East, Mumbai,
| Maharashtra,

| India, 400022

Siddhatva
Developers
Private Limited
Flr,

Sion

U68100MH2023PTC414680

Subsidiary

|

100

2(87)y of
Companies
Act, 2013

* Avalor Developers Private Limited got merged with R Mall Developers Pr

ivate Limited Vide

merger order passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal on 9™ December 2024

## R Mall Developers Private Limited became a subsidiary w.e.f. 25™ April, 2023

+*% R Retail Ventures Private Limited became a subsidiary w.e.f. 30" October, 2023

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)
i) Categorp-wise ShareHolding :

EQUITY SHARES

%
Category of No, of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end (éhaflge
. " ] i uring
Shareholders beginning of the year of the year the

year
D H
%of ¢
total ' m % of
De | Physica share ; a total
mat 1 Total § t | Physical | Total | shares

A.Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual 20,53,90, [20,53,90 160812
/HUF - 150 150 | 92,15 | - [160812120 120 | 72.15 20
b) Central | - - - - - - - -
Govt
c) Statc - - - - - - -
Govt (s) -
d) Bodies - - - - - - -
Corp. -
e) Banks / Fl - - - ) - - - -




)] Any
Other....

Sub-total (A)
{1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

by Other—
Individuals

¢} Bodies Corp.

d} Banks / FI

g) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)
{2):-

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(AUD)HAND)

20,53,90,

156 :

20,53,90

»150

16081212
0

160812
120

72,15

20

B. Public Shareholding

1. Instfitutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

¢) Central Govt

| d) State Govi(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
{specity)

: Sub-total
_(B)(1):-

- 2. Non-
Institutions

a} Bodies Corp.

3752700

37527
00

1.68

1.68

1) Indian

i) Overseas

b} Individuals




| share capital upto |

Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual 394765 | 3947651 1.77 48525680 | 48525 | 21.77 20
sharcholders 0 0 680

holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs 1

lakh

¢} Others - - - - - - -
(specify)

1)Others:HUF - - - - - - -
ii}Others: held by 135523 | 135523 | 6.08 9799650 | 97996 4.4 (1.68)
Partnership firms 50 50 50

Sub-total 175000 ; 175000 7.85 62078030 | 62078 | 27.85 20
(B)2):- 00 ___00 030

Total Public 175000 : 175000 7.85 62078030 | 62078 | 27.85 20
Shareholding 00 00 030

(B)=(B)(1)+

(B)2)

C. Shares held by

Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 222890 1 222890 22289015 | 22289

(A+B+(C) 150 150 | 100 0 0150 100 -




(i1} Shareholding of promoters

Sr. | Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the
| No. | Name of the year vear
%of Y%
‘)/;;f;hi:;fs % of Shares | change
% of ¢ g:; total | Pledged/ | in
No of total encur:il ere No of Shares shares | encumbe share
Shares | shares of to total of red holding
company c;l ota comp | iototal | during
shares any shares the
year
{. | Mr Sandeep | 20,53,90, ] - 16.08,12,120 | 72.15 - 20)
Runwal 150 92.15
Total 20’1553690’ 92.15 - 16,08,12,120 | 72.15 - (20)

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. N beginning of the year during the year
0
A; of tot:}l : % of total
No. of shares | 1at11'1es ° No. of shares shares of the
¢ ) company
- COmMpPany
L. Myr. Sandeep Runwal

At the beginning of

the year 20,53,90,150 92.15 j )
Date wise Increase Decrease in

Prometers Share holding during

the year

specifying the reasons

forincrease /decrease

(e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/ . - 16,08,12,120 72.15
sweat equity etc):

Transfer of Equity Shares to

Ms. Privanka Runwal, Mr,

Saurabh Runwal and Ms.

Sanya Runwal .
At the End of the year - - 16,08,12,120 72.15




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr.
No.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

durin

g the vear

Name

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
cHnpany

Mrs, Privanka Runwal

At the Dbeginning of
the year

39.47,650

1.77

Date wise Increase
Decrease mn
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease

bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Transfer of Equity Shares
from Mr. Sandeep
Runwal

/decrease |
(e.g.allotment / transfer /:

2,22.89,015

10

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year}

2,62,36,665

1177

Mr. Saurabh Runwal

At the
the yvear

beginning of

Date wise Increase
Decrease In
Promoters Share
holdingduring the wvear
specifying the reasons
forincrease /decrease
(c.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Transfer of Equity Shares
from Mr. Sandeep
Runwal

11,144,508

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

1,11,44,508

Ms. Sanya Runwal

At the beginning of
the vear

Date wise Increase
Decrease in
Promoters Share
holdingduring the year
specifying the  reasons
forincrease /decrease
(e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity elc):
Transfer of Equity Shares

11,144,507




from Mr.
Runwal

Sandeep

At the End of the year (or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

1.11.44,5G7

L

Runwal Construction Private

Limited”

At the
the vear

beginning  of

37,52,700

1.68

Date wise Increase /
Decrease  in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc)

No Change

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

37,52,7700

1.68

Jointly held by Mr. Subhash Runwal, Mrs. Chanda Runwal, Mr

Runwal and Mr. Subodh Runwal on behalf of Runwal & Associates

3. Sangeeta Lalwani, Mr. Sandeep

At the beginning of

31,74,150 1.42 - -

the year ]

Date wise Increase

Decrease in

Promoters Share

hold?ng_during the vear No Change

specifying the reasons

forincrease /decrease

(e.g.allotment / transfer /

bonus/ sweat equity etc)

At the End of the vear { or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

31,74,150

1.42

Jointly held by Mrs. Chanda Runwal, Mr. Sandcep Runwal and

Anand Developers

Mr. Subodh Runwal on behalf of

At the begimning of | 555 75 1.49 ; -
the year

Date  wise Increase

Decrease in

Promoters Share _

hold}ngdurlng the year No Change

specifying the reasons

forincrease /decrease

(e.g.allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equify ¢ic)

At the End of the year { or
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year)

33,12,750

1.49

Jointly held by Mr. Subhash Suganlal Runwal (HUF), Mrs. Chanda Runwal and Mrs. Sangeeta

Lalwani on behalf of Sandeep Constructions

At the Dbeginning of

the year 33.12,750 1.49 - -
Date wise Increase

Decrease in No Change

Promoters Share




| holdingduring the vear
specifying the reasons
forinerease /decrease !
(e.g.allotment / transfer /:
bonus/ sweat equity etc)

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, il - - 33,12,750 1.49
separated during the vear)

"Runwal Constructions, a Partnership Firm was converted into a Private Limited Company w.e.f July
6, 2023.

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;
Sr. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. : of the year the year
% of total No. of % of total
No. of shares shares of the ’ shares of the
Name shares )
company company
1. | Ms. Pallavi Matkari
At the beginning
of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
speciigying Y the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease {Transfer
of shares):
At Fhe End of 0 0 0 0
the vear

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. beginning of the year year
No. of % of total % of total
Namce shares | shares of the | No. of shares shares of the
| company company
2. | Ms. Sujata Rao
At the beginning
of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the vear No Change
specifyving  the
| reasons for
increase /
decrease

(e.g.allotment /




transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

Atthe End of 0
the year
3 Mr. Ashok (. Darak
' nw.ef March 12, 2024)

At the beginning 0
of the vear
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the vear
specifying  the No Change
reasons for
increase /
decrease
{e.c.allotment /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equily etc):
At the End of ! 0

| |theyear | S

4 Mr. Mukesh Jaitley

- (w.e.f March 21, 2024) .
At the beginning 0
of the year i
Date wise
Increase
/Decrease in
Promoters Share
holding
during the year
specilying  the Nu Change
reasons for
increase !
decrease
(e.g.allotment  /
transfer / bonus/
sweat equity ete):
At the End of 0
the yvear




V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(INR in Lakhs)
Particular Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
Exeluding Loans*® Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
1} Principal Amount 32,097.95 - - 32,097.95
i1) Interest due but not paid - - - -
i11) Interest accrued but not due 262.31 - - 262.31
Total (i)+(ii)+(iii) 32,360.26 - - 32,360.26
Change in  Indebtedness
during the financial year
Addition 50,910.88 - - 50,910.88
Addition on account of merger 35,748.91 15.35 35,764.26
Reduction 26.479.88 - - 26,479.88
Reduction on account of merger 22,774.79 22,774.79
Net Change 37,405.12 15.35 - 37,420.47
Indebtedness at the end of the
[inancial year
i) Principal Amount 69,609.49 15.35 - 69.,624.84
' 11) Intereat duc but not paid > - - « |
i1} Interest accrucd but not duc 155.89 - . 155.89
Total {)y+(j+(iii) 69,765,538 15.35 - 69,730.73

*Preference shares of Rs.15.35 T.akhs are not issued ason 31.03 2074



VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr
Na.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, speeify...

Others, please specify

Leital {A)

Ceiling as per the Act




Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount
(Rs.)

Mr. Ashok G. Darak
(w.ef March 12 2024)

Independent Directors

+ Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

» Commission

+ Others, please specify

Total (1)

(Other Non-Executive Directors

» Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

» Commission
+ Others, please specify
(Remuneration — Gross)

17,13,148

Tatal (1)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

| Overall Cuiling as por the Aol




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER
MD/MANAGER/WTD

THAN

no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Ms. Sweena
Nair
(Company
Secretary)

CFO

Total

(Gross salary

(a} Salary as per provisions

25,67,980 -

contained in section 17(1) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b} Value of pérquisites u/s

| 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in licu of salary

under section 17(3) Income- |

Tax Act, 1961

| Siock Uplivn

| Sweat Equity

Commisston

as % of profit

- others, specify

Others, please specily

Total

25,67,980 -




VII. PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Apgea_l
the Description | Penalty/Punishment/Compo I\&RD / made, if
Compani unding fees imposed CLT/ any (glive
es Act COURT) Details)
A.COMPANY
Penalty ) B ) B
Punishment . ) ) )

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penally

Punishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board

K

Sujata Rao Nirmala Murali
Director Director

DIN:03478837 DIN: 09408883

Place : Mumbai
Date : Dccember 28, 2024




Annexure 11

FORM NO. AOC.]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures
{Pursuanft to first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs in lakhs.)

SI. No. PR NEORSORE. SOOI SR U ESUUR: OO .. 5 6 7
Name of the subsidiary Avalor R Mall R Retail Galleria Siddhatva | Aethon Runwal
i Developers | Developers | Ventures Retail Developer | Developers | Constructio
| Private Private Private Private s Private Private n Private
i Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
Reporting peried for the | 01.04.2023 N.A. N.A, NA, N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary concerned, if o
different  from  the | 25.04.2023
holding company's
reporting period
Reporting currency and N.A. N.A N.A. N.A. N.A. NA, N.A
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant
financial year inthe case
of foreign subsidiaries ;
Share capital 100.00 204 .81 40,622.00 1.60 1.00 1.00 10¢.01
Reserves & surplus -31.8% -44,887.82 435332 ! -8.21 -0.24 -5.91 16.407.03
Total assets 88,444,890 91,825.53 | 1,64,864.47 . 57,514.17 1.10 12,768.34 { 1,43,905.72
Total Liabilities £8.444.39 91,825.53 | 1,64,86447 | 57,514.17 1.10 12,768.34 { 14390572
Investments 82’762‘01 NIL 1 05 57,508.63 0 0 20,0] 1.86
Turnover {Revenne 0 25,002.78 0 0 0 0 2,591.78
from Qperations)
Profit/(Loss) before .17.19 7,061.09 -541.76 -3.34 -0.34 -6.19 19,494.50
taxation
Provigion for taxation 0 1,064.55 215341 0 0.10 0 -3,089.77
Proﬁt{'(Loss) after -17.19 5,996‘56 -755.11 -0.34 .24 -6.19 16,405<]3
taxation
Proposed Dividend 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
% of shareholding £5% 99.51% 50% 100% 100% 100% 59.99%

Notes: The following information shall be furpished at the end of the staternent:

I.  Names of subsidiaries which are vet to commence oper'_ations - N.A.

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. —
-Avalor Developers Private Limited is merged with R Mall Developers Private Limited effective from

25.04.2023.

-Dhruva Woeollen Mills Private Limited is merged with Group Company effective from 01.04.2023.




Part '""B'": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to AssociateCompanies and Joint

Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

R Mall Developers
Private Limited*

R Retail Ventures
Private Limited*

Wheelabrator Alloy
Castings Limited**

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures heldby
the company on the year end

No. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint N.A. N.A. N.A.
Venture

Extend of Holding % N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. Description of how there is significant Joint Venture Joint Venture Associate
influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is N.A. N.A. N.A.
not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as N.A. N.A. N.A.
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit / Loss for the year N.A. N.A. N.A.
i.  Considered in Consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.
i.  Not Considered in Consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. — N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. —

*During the vear stake in the Joint Venture was procured by group companies hence it became subsidiary.
**Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited ceased to be associate w.e.f. 22.03.2024.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to becertified.

For and on behalf of the Board
Runwal Devglopgrs Private Limited

e

Sujata Ra Nirmala Murali
Director Director
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 09408883

Place : Mumbai
Date : December 28, 2024




Pramod S. Shah & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

3rd Floor, LA-SHEWA Bldg., Next to Fedex, 233, P. D' Mello Road, Opp. St. George Hospital, Near CST, Mumbai - 400 001,
Tel. :91-22-2271 7700 = Email : saurabhshah@psaprofessionals.com = Website : cspsa.co.in

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Runwal & Omkar Esquare, 5t Floor,

Off Eastern Exp Highway,

Opp Sion Chunabhatti Signal,

Sion (E) Mumbai- 400022

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by RUNWAL DEVELOPERS PRIVATE
LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s booKks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
petiod covering the year ended 310 March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board - processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 according to

the provisions of: :

a. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

b. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA") and the rules made there
under; - Not Applicable during the period of Audit

c. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under; -

Not Applicable during the period of Audit
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Pramod S. Shah & Associates

" Practising Company Secretaries

3rd Floor, LA-SHEWA Bldg., Next to Fedex, 233, P. D' Mello Road, Opp. St. George Hospital, Near CST, Mumbai - 400 001.
Tel. :91-22-2271 7700 = Email : saurabhshah@psaprofessionals.com ¢ Website : cspsa.co.in

2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the
financial year under report:

(a) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 'I'rading)
Regulations, 2015;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(g) The Securities; and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and '

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998

(i) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of (i) Secretarial Standards
(SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consttuted as per the provisivns of the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “The Act’). Mr. Ashok Ghanshyam Darak,
Director having DIN: 00673236 and Mr. Muliesh Gopalkrishna Jaitlay having DIN: 10559758
were appointed as Additinnal Directars of the Company on March 12, 2024 and March 21,
2024 respectively. As on datc of the Report, Mr. shok G. Darak and Mr. Mukesh Jaitley have
ceased to be the Directors effective December 23, 2024. Following new Additional Directors
were appointed on the Board of the Company: T
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Pramod S. Shah & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

Sr. Name of the Director Date of Appointment
No.

1 | Mr. Sanjay Sharma 23/12/2024

2 | Ms. Nirmala Murali 23/12/2024

3 | Mr. Sunil Satvilkar 08/11/2024

The Statutory Registers are duly updated as per the relevant provisions.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings. A system exists
for aceldng and obtaining further mformation and clarifications on the agenda items betore
thc mecting and for mcaningful participation at the meeting.

During the year, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Officers and Reports of the
Statutory Auditor for the systems and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances
under other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations:

We further report that during the audit period the NCLT passed the order of Scheme of
Merger by Absorption of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (Transferor Company or First
Petitioner Company) with Runwal Developers Private Limited (Transferee Company or
Second Petitioner Company) and their respective shareholder dated 13 February,2024.

Place: Mumbai For Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Date: 28/12/2024 (Practising Company Secretaries)

[5G Eompria

Bharat Sompura - Partner
Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Membership No.: A10540
C.0.P. No.: 5540

UDIN: A010540F003512830
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ANNEXURE IV

CSR ANNEXURE: Part of Directors Report

I. Bricf outline on CSRPO]IL} of the Company:

The Company is committed to improving the
quality of life of the wunderprivileged and
disadvantaged sections of the [ocal community
as well as society at large. This policy has been
developed with an aim to lay down guidelines
for the Company to undertake, implement and
moenitor various projects and programs that
ensures sustainable development of the
community within which it exists.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. ] Name of Designation/Nature Number of Number of Mectings of
No. Director of Directorship Meetings of CSR committee attended
CSR during the vear
Committee
held during the
vear
1 Ms. Pallavi Member 2 2
Matkari
2 | Ms. Sujata Rao Member 2 2
3 | Mr. Ashok G. Member - -
Darak*

*Mr. Ashok G. Darak was appointed as a Director of the Company effective March 7 2, 2024 gnd inducted
as g member of CSR Committee vide meeting of Board

of Directors held on March 26, 2024.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of

CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company.

Not Applicable

. Provide the executive summary along with
web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8, if applicable,

Not Applicable

. a) | Average net profit of the company as per | ¥ 60,69,52,432/- (the Company)
.| sub-section (5) of section 135. Z61,00,23,144.88 (DWMPL)*
b) | Two percent of average net profit of the | €1,21,39,048.64/- (the Company)
company as per sub-scction (5) of scction | T1,22,00,462.90/- (DWMPL)*
135.
Total = 32,43,39,511.94/- (~32,43,39,512/-)
¢} | Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or | -
programmes or aclivities of the previous
financial years.
d) | Amount required to be set-off for the |-
financial year, if any.
e) | Total CSR obligation for the {inancial | ¥2,43,39,512/-
year [(b)y+(c)-(d)].




6.a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both | 2,43,39,724.9/-
Ongeing Project and other than Ongoing
Project).
b) | Amount spent in  Administrative | -
Overheads.
¢) | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if | -
applicable.
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year | 32,43,39,724.9/-
[(a)y+(b)+(c)].
e) | CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
f- Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Teotal Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent forthe . CSR Account as per sub-section (6) of | under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
Financial Year. (in ; section 135, sub-sectiom (5} of section 135.
Rs.) Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund | Amoun BPate of
: t transfer
32,43,39.724.9/-
f) | Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SL Particular Amount
No. (in Rs.)
(1) (2) 3)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section | ¥1,21,39,048.64/-
(5) of section 135 (the Company)
%1,22,00,462.90/-
(DWMPL)*
Total =

22,43,39,511.94/-
(~32,43,39,512/-)

(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year

72,43,39,724.9/-

(iiiy | Mwecrs amount spent for the Uinancial Year [(ii)-(i)] 21206

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities -
of the previous Financial Years, if any

(v} | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii}-(iv)} | T212.96

7. | Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount Defici
No. Financial transferred to Amount Spentin | transferred to | remaining to { e ncy,

Year(s) Unspent CSR in the a Fund as be spent in if any
Account under Unspent Financial specified succeeding
sub- section (6) CSR Year under Financiat
of Account (in Rs.) Schedule VII Years (in
section 135 {in under sub- as per second Rs.)
Rs.) section (6) proviso to
of sub- section
section 135 (in {5) of section
Rs.) 135, if any




Amo | Date
unt of
(in | Transf
Rs) er
1 2022-23 - - - - - - -
2 |2021-22 - - - - - - -
3 |2020-21 - - - - - - -
8. | Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
O Yes No
If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired | |
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
SL Short particulars Pincode Date of creation Amount of CSR Details of entity/
No. of the property or of the amount spent Authority/
asset(s) property beneficiary of the
or registered owner
[including complete asset(s) CSR | Name | Reg
address and location Regi iste
ol the property] stral red
ion Ad
num dre
ber, ess
if
appli
cabl
€
Q) (2) (3) 4) (3) (6)
N.A.
9. | Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per sub- section (5) of section 135.

(Chief Executive Officer or Managing
Director or Director)

g ST

(Chairman CSR
Committee)

[Person specified under clause
(d) of sub- section (1) of section
380]

(Wherever applicable)

* Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (DWMPL) has merged with the Company vide NCLT Order dated
February 13, 2024 (effective March 13, 2024 upon filing of e-Form INC 28 with the Registrar of Companies).
DWMPL CSR Obligation for the F.Y. 2023-24 is amounting to T 1,22,00,463/-. In view thereof, the Company
is also required to contribute the CSR obligation of DWMPL. Therefore, CSR contribution aggregating to

32,43,39,512/- is spent by the Company.




Annexure V

FORM NO. AGC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section {3) of scetion 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companics

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
partics referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Compames Act. 2013 mcluding certain arm’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or aprangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

8r, Particulars Details
| No.

. | Name (5] of the related party & nature of relationship -

2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -

3. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -

4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -
{ransaction including the value, if any

5. | Justification for entering into such comracts or -
arrangements or transactions’

6. Date of approval by the Board -

7. ¢ Amount paid as advances, if any -

8. | Date on which the special resolution was passed in General -

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arin's length basis.

or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

¥4,8906/-

Services
7 1,50,00,000/-

Sr. Particulars RPT-1 RPT-2 RPT-3
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party | *Runwal R Retail Ventures Mrs. Chanda Runwal-
& nature of relationship Construction Private Limited relative of promoter
2. Nature of | sale, purchase or [Availing or rendering ofiAvailing or rendering
contracts/arrangements/transa | supply of any goods [services of services
ction or materials;
Body corporate
whose DBoard of Body corporate whoselAny person on whose]
Directors, managing [Board of  Direclors fadvice, directions on
director or manager managing director oninstructions a director]
is accustomed to act manager is accusiomed 1cor manager s
in accordance with  |actin accordance with thelaccustomed to act
the advice, jadvice, directions o
directions or [instructions of a director]
instructions of a jor manager
director or manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
contracts/arrangements/transa |
ction '
4. | Salient terms of the contracts | Sale of Materials  [Project ManagementRepairs and

mai ntenance expenses
z 179,667/-




contracts/arrangements/transa
ction

rendering of any
services;

Body corporate
whose DBoard of
Directors, managing
director or manager
is accustomed fo act
in accordance with

Aany services;

Body corporate  whose
Board of  Directors,
managing director  off
manager is accustomed toy
act in accordance with
the advice, directions of
instructions of a director
0r manager

5. Date of approval by the Board 17/04/2023 17/04/2023 17/04/2023
6. | Amount paid as advances, if - - -
any
Sr. ~ Particalars RPT-4 RPT-3 RPT-6
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party | Arianc Orgachem  |Ariane Orgachem R Mall Developers
& nature of relationship i Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited
2. | Nature of | availing or [leasing of property of anyjavailing or rendering
contracts/arrangements/transa : rendering of any [ind; of any services;
ction | services;
Body corporate whose
| Body corporate Body corporate whosgBoard of Directors)
i whose Board of Board of Directors/managing
Directors, managing [managing dircctor  ordirector or manager 13
director or manager manager s accustomed toaccustomed to act
is accustomed to act lact in accordance with thelin accordance with
in accordance with fadvice, directions orthe advice, directions
the advice, iinstructions of a directorior instructions of a
directions Or Or manager director or manager
instructions of a
director or manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2023-24 i FY 2023-24 FY 2023.243
contracts/arrangements/transa
ction :
4. | Salient terms of the contracts | Repairs and Rent sub letting charges {Sale of Electricity
or arrangements or transaction | Maintenance 3693,220/- %6,21,60.910/-
including the value, if any ¥83,50,131/-
5. | Date of approval by the Board 17/04/2G23 -51 7/04/2023 17/04/2023
6. | Amount paid as advances, if - - -
any
Sr. Particulars RPT-7 RPT-$ 'RPT-9
No. . .
1. | Name (s) of the related party | Rupri Consultancy [Siddhatva Developers  |Aethon Developers
& nature of relationship Services LLP Private 1.imited Private Limited
2. | Nature of | availing or mvailing or rendering ofiAvailing or rendering of

services

Body corporate whose
Board of Directors,
managing  director o1
manager is accustomed to
act In accordance with
the advice, directions or
instructions of a directon
or manager




the advice,
directions or
! instructions of a
! director or manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 Fy 202324
contracts/arrangements/transa
ction
4. | Salient terms of the contracts | Brokerage charges [Reimbursement ofReimbursement of
or arrangements or transaction | paid EXpenses eXpenses
including the value, if any 7 54,24,000/- Z1766/- 32,78,55816/-
5. Date of approval by the Board 17/04/2023 17/04/2023 17/04/2023
6. Armount paid as advances, if - - -
any
Sr. Particulars RPT-10 RPT-11 RPT-12
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party Horizon Projects Private Sanya Runwal Sanya Runwal
& nature of relationship Limited Relative of promoter [Relative of promoter
' and shareholder and shareholder
2. | Nature of |Availing or rendering ofisale, purchase orsale, purchase o
contracts/arrangements/transa [services supply of any goods orsupply of any goods or
ction materials; ' materials;
Body corporate whoseAny person on whoselAny person on whosel
Board of Directors,advice, directions oradvice, directions on
managing director orinstructions a directorinstructions a director
manager is accustomed tdor manager isfor manager is
act in accordance withaccustomed to act hccustomed to act
the advice, directions on
instructions of a director
Gr manager
3. Duaration of the FY 2023.24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
contracts/arrangements/transa
ction
4, Salient terts of the contracts Reimbursement ofiSale of Flat Sale of Flat
Or arrangeiments or transaction jexpenses £7,560,65,651/- 27,56,65,651/-
including the value, if any < 71,42,739/-
5. | Date of approval by the Board | 17/04/2023 17/04/2023 17/04/2023
6. | Amount paid as advances, if - - -
any
Sr. Particnlars RPT-13 RPT 14 RPT-15
No.
I. | Name (s} of the related party Horizon Projects Privatef*Runwal Construction Sandeep Runwal
& nature of relationship Limited Promoter and
shareholder
2. | Naiure of selling or otherwisesale, purchase orsale, purchase of
contracts/arrangements/transa disposing of or buyingsupply of any goods onsupply of any goods or
ction property of any kind,  pnaterials; materials;




Board of Directors,Board of Directors,advice, directions

manager is accustomeddirector or manager isor manager
to act in accordance withaccustomed to act accustomed to act
the advice. directions onjin accordance with
instructions of a directonthe advice, directions

Body corporate whoseBody corporate whose| Any person on whose

managing director onmanaging instructions a director]

or manager or instructions of a
director or manager
3. | Duration of the FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24
contracts/arrangements/transa
ction
4, | Salient terms of the contracts [Sale of property purchase of Materials |Sale of Flat
or arrangements or transaction R21,10,00,000/- 2322,721/- 36,03,14,691/-
including the value, if any
5. | Date of approval by the Board 17/04/2023 17/04/2023 17/04/2023
6. | Amount paid as advances, if - - -
any

For and on behalf of the Board

Runwal Devel Private Limited W

Nirmala Murali

Sujata Rao )

Director Director
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 09408883
Place: Mumbai

Date: December 28, 2024

*Runwal Constructions got converted into Runwal Construction Private Limited on 6th July 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Runwal Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion |

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Runwal Developers Private .
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024, the
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income),
the standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (‘the Act’) in the manner sa required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
and its standalone profit including other comprehensive income, its standalone cash flows and the
standalone changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statcments in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 113(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thosc
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"} together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial slalements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

Kolkala Mumbai, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore & Raipur
wort Lossticns Hydergbad, Magpur
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standalone financial performance including
other comprehensive income, standalone cash flows and standalone changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management and Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users faken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

Murniai, Delli NCR, Chennai, Bangalore & Raipur
s Hyderabad, Magpur
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s repoit. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

v. kvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
fransactions and evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit wark and in
evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) fo evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore & Raipur
1i Lezcations: Hyderabad, Nagpar
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Other Matter

We draw attention to note 55 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, regarding share of profit
{net) from investment in partnership firm for the period from 01 April 2023 to 05 July 2023, included
in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the accounts of such partnership firm except for
complying with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (revised 2012) are
hased on the IGAAP audited financial statement of such entities. These financial statements have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this entity, is based solely on the report of the
other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ii. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and helief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements as on March 31, 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B” {o this repont;

g. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act,
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on '‘Overall maximum managerial remuneration and
managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’ is not applicable as this being
a private Company.

‘ of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to t
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements — refer note 44 to the standalone financial statements;

i. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable [osses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to [nvestor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, except as
disclosed in the Note 62 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any ofher person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, either directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief , except as
disclosed in the Note 62 to the Standaione Financial Statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under subclause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with,
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 24123314BKBZXY3135

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

in respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed during the verification.

¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
Assets) or intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2024,

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory including inventory lying with
third parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification and have been properly dealt
with in the books of account.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregate from Banks / financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks / financial
institutions during the year are in agreement with the books of account.

ili. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not
given any secunty and guarantee, however, it has made investments in or granted unsecured loans
and advances in the nature of loans to Companies, firms, and other parties, in respect of whis
comments are as under: \\\\GHI ¢

Kolkata Mumbal Pelhi NCR, Cheannai, Bangalore & Raipur
kb = Hyderabad, Nagpur




B2 4028, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel

Smgfzz <Z Co.

A— A L
b FEaRd f 2FY ”‘f SR u‘ Fiesy

Gif
Piaiviond: Lecatuns: Hyderabad, Nagpur

T +91(0) 22 6662 5537/ 5538
% mumbai@singhico.com

R TN L Rt s TN

a) the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, Firms and any
other parties during the year as in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

Rs. In Lakhs
Advance in

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans nature of
loans

Aggregate amount during the year
-Subsidiaries - - 87.,441.95 -
-Joint ventures - - - -
-Associates - - - -
-Others - - 10,094.75
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Subsidiaries - - 33,945.57 -
-Joint ventures - - - -
-Associates - - - -
-Others - - 14,905.82 -

k) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of
loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Interest
free loans of Rs. 97,536.69 [akhs (Rs. 220.50 lakhs as on 31 March 2023) have been given to related
parties.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans and advances given in the nature of loan, the
principal is repayable on demand and payment of interest is payable at the time of repayment of
principal. As informed to us, the Company has demanded and received repayment of the loan during
the year. Thus, there has been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has heen lent.
Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to employees of the company during
the year and these will be adjusted against future salaries of employees.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of
loans given. Further, the Company has given advance in the nature of loan to employees of the
company during the year and these wili be adjusted against future salaries of employees.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues
of existing loans given to same parties,

fy According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
to the Promoters and related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) except for the following loans or advances:
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Rs. in lakhs
Particulars All Promoter | Related
Parties Parties Parties
Sec 2 (76)
of the Act

| Aggregate of loans / advances of loan
- Repayable on demand (A) 97,536.69 -1 9501985
-Agreement does not specify any terms or - - -
period of Repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 97,536.69 - | 95,019.85
Percentage of loans / advances in nature of 100% 97.42%
loan to the fotal loans

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect of investments made and loans given by the
Company. Further, as the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities,
the provisions of section 186 [except for sub-section (1)] are not applicable to it.

v. As per the information and explanation given and verification carried out by us, during the year, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amount which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules
2014 (as amended).

vi. The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however made a detailed examination of
the same.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us:

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues, including Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material
statutory dues, as applicable.

b) No undisputcd amount payable in respect of above referred act is outstanding as at 31st March
2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢} There are no dues of acts referred above which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:
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Name of the | Nature of | Period to | Forum where | Amount
Statue dues which the | dispute is | in
amount pending dispute
relates {in
Lakhs)

The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2010-11 | Hon'ble High Court | 4,674.58
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2012-13 | Commissioner  of 144.44
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2012-13 | Hon'ble High Court 4.30
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2015-16 | Commissicner of 10.34
Act, 1961 Income-tax

{Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2015-16 | Hon'ble High Court 780.61
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2015-16 | Hon'ble High Court 282.73
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2016-17 | Commissioner  of 23.19
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2016-17 | Commissioner of 162.65
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2016-17 | Hon'ble High Court 385.32
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2017-18 | Commissioner  of 23.48
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeais)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2017-18 | Commissioner  of 33.34
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2017-18 | Commissioner  of 13.83
Act, 1961 Income-tax
' {(Appeals) '
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2018-19 | Commissioner  of 6273
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2018-19 ; Commissioner of 222.51
Act, 1961 Income-tax

(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2018-19 | Commissioner of 168.02
Act, 1961 Income-tax

{Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2020-21 | Commissioner of 440.37
Act, 1961 Income-tax

{Appeals)

Hyderabad, Nagpur
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Name of the | Nature of | Peried to | Forum where | Amount
Statue dues which the | dispute is | in
amount pending dispute
relates {In
Lakhs)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2020-21 | Commissioner of | 3,746.44
Act, 1961 Income-tax
(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2021-22 | Commissioner  of 76.20
Act, 1961 Income-tax
{(Appeals)
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2009-10 | Hon'ble High Court | 1,922.97
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2010-11 | Hon'ble High Court | 5,412.04
Act, 1961 of Bombay
The Income-tax | Income Tax AY 2012-13 | Hon'ble High Court | 2,242.06
Act, 1961 of Bombay
Chapter V of the | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint 12.71
Finance Act, Commissioner,
1994 CGST & CX
Chapter V of the | Service Tax 2014-15 Joint 96.86
Finance Act, Commissioner,
1994 CGST & CX
Chapter V of the | Service Tax October Directorate General 192.50
Finance Act, 2015 to|{of Goods and
1994 September | Service Tax
2016 Intelligence, Zonal
Unit
Chapter V of the | Service Tax October Directorate General 166.70
Finance Act, 2015 to|lof Goods and
1994 January Service Tax
2017 Intelligence, Zonal
Unit
The Central | Disallowance FY 2016-17 | Deputy 63.22
Goods and { of Transitional | and  April | Commissioner
Service Tax Act, | Goods and | 2017 to | CGST and CX
2017 Service  Tax | June 2017
Credit
The Transitional July 2017 to | Dy, Comm. of State 31.16
Maharashtra Credit — SGST | March 2018 | Tax (E-643), Large
Goods and Taxpayer's Unit
Service Tax Act,
2017
The Disallowance | April 2017 | Joint 260.97
Maharashtra of Transitional | to July 2017 | Commissioner
Goods and | Goods and (Appeal)
Service Tax Act, | Service  Tax
2017 Credit

i Hyderabad, Nagpur
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Name of the | Nature of | Period to | Forum where | Amount

Statue dues which the | dispute is | in
amount pending dispute
relates {In

Lakhs)

The Transitional April 2017 | Joint 29.21

Maharashtra Credit - SGST | to June | Commissioner

Goods and 2017

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Transitional April 2017 | Assistant 106.73

Maharashtra Credit - SGST | to June | Commissioner  of

Goods and 2017 State Tax

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Transitional 2017-18 Joint 238.33

Maharashtra Credit - SGST Commissioner

Goods and

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Anti- July 2017 to | National Appellate | 1,020.89

Maharashtra Profiteering September | Authority

Goods and 2019

Service Tax Adct,

2017

The Goods & | 2017-18 Joint 1,982.40

Maharashtra Service tax Commissioner

Goods and

Service Tax Act,

2017

The Goods & 2017-18 Deputy 199.86

Maharashtra Service tax Commissioner  of

Goods and state tax

Service Tax Act,

2017

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books

of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us, and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender.

the records of the Company, in our opinion term loans availed by the Company were applie
the year for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for jong-term purposes by the Company.

e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, and procedures performed by us, the
Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary, associate, or joint venture.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Xx. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer {including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to
report under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not raised funds through preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partly or optionally) convertible debentures.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xi. a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and to the best of our knowledge
and according to the information and expianations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence requirement to report under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, alf transactions entered
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, where
applicable. This being a private Company, section 177 is not applicable to it. Further, the details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures.

xiv. @) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit /S
the Company till date for determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.
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xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph (xvi){(b} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(d} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xvit. According to the information and explanations given to us and con the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred the cash losses in the current financial year
and in immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report under paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
{(also refer note 48 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, undrawn bank facilities available,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the
required contributions during the year and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be
transferred either to a Fund or to a Special Account as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
read with Schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx){a) of the Order is not apphcafte
to the Company. \V\ '
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{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no ongoing project as required for discharging the liability of
the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
paragraph 3{(xx)}{b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no reporting under paragraph 3{xxi} of the Order has been
included in this report.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 24123314BKBZXY3135

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Runwal Developers Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Runwal Developers
Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating elleclively for ensuiing he
orderfy and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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Meaning of Internal Financial Confrols over Financial Reporting

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisfration Number; 302049E

e

Milind Agal

Partner
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UDIN: 24123314BKBZXY 3135

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024
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Runwal Develepers Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
CIN NO- U70100MH1988BPTC046631
(AN amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless stherwisa stated)
As at
. As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Notss 31st March, 2024 [Restated]
(Refer Note 63)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,186.30 7,346.94
Right-of-use asset 4 - 106.09
investment property ) 4,294.32 4,383.86
Other Intanglble asset & 190.11 1.42
Capital work-in-progress 7 295,79 £8.14
Intangibie asset under development g . 180.86
Financlal assets
i} Investrnents 9 24,496,592 23,045.18
it} Other financial assets i0 826,13 1,481.49
Other non-current assats 11 - 22.34
Mon current tax assets 27.456.30 3,384 .86
59,745.87 40,020.18
Current assets
[nventories iz 1,03,073.57 1,62,797.38
Financial assets
t Invastments 13 7,000.00 25,136.6%
ity Trade receivables 14 863.14 653.43
iii} Castt and cash equivalents 15 77202 8,222.84
iv) Bank balance other than (i} above 16 1,105.51 2,181.37
v} Loans 17 50,256.69 9,343.88
v} Other financial assets 18 683.30 338.58
Other current assets 19 23,133.64 10,291.39
2,66,887.87 +,18,970.56
Non-ct{rrent assets classified as held for sale & discontinued 20 830.13
operations -
Total Assets 3,27,463.87 2,58,990.74
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 21 2,228.30 2,228.90
Other equity 22 1,11,377.22 1,07,140.16
Total Equity 1,13.606.62 1,09,369.06
Non-current liabilities
Flnancial liabilltles
i} Borrowings 23 €2,429.73 43,526.09
ii} Lease liabilities 24 - 348
Provisions Fal 172,82 140.00
Deferred tax liability {net) 26 281.39 1,158.78
62,893.94 44,828.43
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitias
i} Borrowings 27 7,185,111 4,621.20
il} Lease liabilities 2B - 1.23
iii} Trade payablcs 29
{a} Lulal uuLsf_.andfng dues of micro enterprises and 16.45 S05.16
small enterprises
(b) totall outstanding dues of other than micre 10,113.77 9,843.06
enterprises and small enterprises
iv) Other financia! labllities an 2,470.38 2,764.91
Cther current liabilities 31 1,02,967.09 82,502.50
Provistons 32 59.15 5345
Current tax liabilities 28,018.24 4,101.74
1,50,830.17 1,04,793.25
Liability associated with discontinued operations 20 132.14 -
Total Liabilities 2,13 857,285 1,49,621.68
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,27,463.87 2,58,990.74
Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financiat statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of director}
Far Singhi & Co. Far Runwal Developers Private Limite i,
Chartered Acgountants Ty
9E %&v 5’\‘}% /s
o T s, § - 1\’\-“\ \\y» .e-
- .,
Ashok G Darak Sujata ¥
Partner Director Director
Membership No.123314 DIN: 08673236 DIN: 03478837
Date - 23-09-2024 Date - 23-09-2029
Flace - Mumbai Place - Mymbal
/
b e
Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17636¢




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Standal Stat t of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
CIN NO- U70100MH1988PTCO46631
{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended
Particulars Notes For the year ended 31st March, 2023

31st March 2024 [Restated]

(Refer Note 63 }

Continuing operations

As per owr report of even date attached
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regwn. Ng1302049E

Partner

Membership No.123314
Date - 23-09-2024
PMace - Mumbai

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

Income
Revenue from operations 33 27,497.69 28,242,928
Cther income 34 G, 100.64 6,010.81
Total Income 32,598.33 34,253.79
Expenses
Cost of construction and development expenses 35 33,491.92 54,249.55
Purcahse of stock in trade 36 - 501.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods and ¢enstruction work-in- 37 (17,504.47) {42,568.54)
Progress
Employee benefits expenses 38 1,148.31 1,082.29
Finance costs 39 2,077.96 2,520.41
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 40 337.39 302.87
Cther expenses 41 4,603.92 7,382.09
Total Expenses 24,154.53 23,469.67
Profit/ {loss) before tax from contlnulng operations (A} 8,443.80 10,784.12
Tax {expenses}/credit
Current tax (1,833.34}) (2.810,42}
Deferred tax 8§77.20 2B1.18
Total Tax (Expenses)/Credit {956.14) {2,529.24)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from continuing operations 7,487.66 B,254.88
Discontinued operations
Profit/ {loss) for the year from discontinued operations 20 (3,249.54) {35.36)
Profit/ {loss) from discontinuing operations {B) {3,249.54) (35.26)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year (A+B) 4,238.12 8,219.52
Other comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defingd benefit plan (0.75) 6.05
Met (loss)/gain on FYTOCT equity Securlties - -
(it} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss .19 {1.52)
Total comprehensive income for the year (€ ) 4,237.56 8,224.05
Earnings per equity share 42
Restated (Face value of Re. 1 gach)
Basic - Continuing Operations (Face value of Re.1 gach) 3.36 3.70
Diluted - Continuing Operatlons (Face value of Re.1 each) 3.36 3.70
Basic - Discontinued Operations (Face value of Re, 1 each) {1.46) {0.02)
Diluted - Discontinued Qperations (Face value of Re.1 each} {1.46) {0.02)
Bastc - Continuing and Discontinued Operations {Face value of Re.1 each) 1.90 3.68
Diluted - Continuing and Discontinued Operations ({Face value of Pe.1 gach) 1.90 3.68
Material accounting policies 2

For and an behalf of the board of directors
For Runwal Developers Private Limited #
w4

Ashok G Darak Sujata Rao
Director Directer

DIN: 08673236 DIM: 03478837
Date - 23-09-2024

Place - Mumbai

Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No. AL7636




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024
CIN NO- UZ70100MH1288PTCO4A6631

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

For the year endead
For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
(Refer Note 63 )

Particilars

Operating activities

Profit before tax 8,443.80 10,784.12
Loss from Discontinued Operations (3,249.54) {35.36)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 3,727.33 520.76
Assets Written OFf - 656,51
Sundry Balance Written OfF 64.45 74.58
Sundry Balance Written Back {354.95) (3,877.12)
Capital Subsidy - (3.50)
Finance costs 2,254,748 4,248.12
Ceferred Expenses from joint development arrangement 1,382.23 1,098.68
Provision for expected credit loss - 214.38
Provision for employee benefit 39.08 54.50
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement (1,382.23) {1,098.68)
Profit on sale of fixed asset (854.06) {0.02)
Profit on redemption of mutual fund (5.14)
Fair Yalue gain on Investment {1,488.60) {10.58}
Finance income (1,230.12}) {(716.1%)
Share of Profit from partnership and AOPs (160,57} {417.60)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.328 -
Reversal of Provision (283.24) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,108.04 10,891.46
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables {313.09) 193,43
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (18,197.47) (41,591.93)
{Increase)/decrease in other current and non current financial
assets 713.57 8,431.12
{Increase}/decrease In other current and non current assets {12,B48.36) 11,359.50
Increase f{decrease) in trade payables (586.72) 7.213.66
Increase f{decrease) in other current financial liabilities (441.60) (4,112.39%)
Incraase /(decrease) in other current llabilities 22,277.86 13,206.54
(Increase)/decrease in provisions (8.62) (41.11})
Changes due to working capital movements (9,404.43) ({5,348.18)
Incoma Tax Paid {1,983.28) {3,593.64)
Met cash flows from / (used in} operating activities (4,284.67) 1,949.64

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,162.10 0.26
Purchase of propeity, plant and eguipment (including CWIF) and

intangible assets (including IAUD) {562.44) (433.36)
{Increase)/decraase in Right of Use assats - (5.80)
Advances against land (givenl/repaid (nat) - 508.6%
Investment in partnership firm - {3,111.05)
Withdrawal of investment from partnership firm - 3,157.27
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary - (99.00)
investment in equity shares and debentures of folnt venture - 1,000.40
Proceeds from sale of Investrnants in Equity shares of Subsidiary 12.00 -
Proceeds from sale of Investments units of Mutual Funds 24.87 -
Investrnent in units of mutual funds (269.71)
Redermption/ {increase) in bank deposit £55.53 {598.50)
Loans and advances-to related parties and others (given)/repaid :

{net) (22,035.86) {630.06}
Interest received ffinance incomel 647.80 273.73
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (19,096.00) {207.53)

Financing activities

Interest paid (5,539.09) {5,135.85)
Lease Payment {1.70) (1.70)
Repayment of non current borrowings (67,412.50}) (37,734.00)
Proceeds from non current borrowings 86,326.11 36,931.69
Praceeds/(repayment} from current borrowings (net) 2,528.16 (1,576.78)
Met cash flows from / {used in)} finoncing activitias 15,901.01 {7,516.64)
Met increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {7,479.66) (5,774.53)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 8,197.72 13,972.25
Less: Cash and bank balance of discontinued operations (6.91) -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 711.15 8,197.72/




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March,2024
CIN NO- UF70100MH19288PTC046631

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 15}

a) Balance with banks in current accounts 634.65 6,649.47

b} Balance with banks in deposit accounts with original

maturlty less than three months 136.45 1,519.41

c) Cash on hand 0.92 53.96
Total 772,02 8,222.84

Less: Book overdraft considered as cash and cash equivalent

for cash flow {60.87) {25.12)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 711.1%5 8,197.72
Notes:

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as sat out in tha Ind AS 2,
‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
b} Reconciliations of liablitles arising from financing activities :

As at
" As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars 31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)
Balance at the beginning of the vear 48,106.82 50,485.91
LCash flow 21,441.80 (2,379.09)
Mon cash changes
Balance at the end of the year* 69,548.62 48,106.82
* Balance does not include Preference shares and Book Over draft,
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. For Runwal Developers Private ?jmited
Chartered Accountants e i,
Firm Regn. Np 302049E »g.; Opg

KO\

Milind Agal Ashok G Darak Sl.ljatas3 Rao
Partner Birector Director
Membership No.123314 DIN: 08673236 DiN: 034738837

Brate - 23-09-2024 Date - 23-09-2024
Place - Mumbai Flace - Murmnbai

zs,gw%-

Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No. AL7636
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Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1. General information

Runwal Developers Private Limited ("the Company") is incorporated under the Companies Act
1956. The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction,
development and other related activities along with this the Com pany is also into the business
of leasing of mall, windmill power generation and solar power generation.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled in
India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, Sth Floor, Off. Eastern
Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022.

These standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024,
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated 23t
September 2024,

2. Summary of Material accounting policies
1. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I), as applicable to this financial statements.

b. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the

following;
¢ Certain Financial instruments are measured at fair value

<. Preparation of financial statement

As per the format prescribed under Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cashflow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

d. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on
‘current/ non-current classification. : :

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i} Expected to be realised or inlended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

ii} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

i) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Alt other assets are classitied as non-current.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

A liability is current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company’s real estate
operations varies from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of
development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets
and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the
project. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based
on a period of twelve months.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("INR") which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

IL. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, management of the Company is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the financial statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumptions and estimates which have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

a. Estimation of net realisable value (NRV) for inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions,
prices and trends existing at the reporting date and is determined by the company based on
comparable transactions observed /identified for similar properties in the same geographical
markel serving the same real cstate segment.,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices
and trends existing at the reporting date for similar completed property, iess the estimated
cost to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of
completion.

Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and
overruns basis the progress of the project.

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiptes or other available fair value
indicators.

c. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period,

d. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Cquipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule 1I
of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed
in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice. Assumptions also need to be made when
the Company assesses whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the
cost of the asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assets,
trends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity
of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

f. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair valucs of the financial asscts and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair vatue is measured
using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market
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wherever possible, but where this is not feasibie, a review of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the fair value relating to
financial instruments.

g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongeoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other
contingencies. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is
recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered
possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabitities in the financial statements.
Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements.
Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts
are received or receivable.

h. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax credits
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the
probability with regard to the realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the
history of the entity and budgeted data for the future,

ITI. Measurement of fair values

The Company measures financial instruments, such as certain investments at fair value at
each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantagecus market must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liabifity, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

.The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company hag an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. The Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Management
assesses the evidence obtained from third parties to support the conclusien that such
valuations mceet the requircments of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which such valuations should be classified.
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When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair vatue hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

IV. Property, plant and equipment & depreciation
a. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises
of:

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

ifi. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located, the obligation for which the Company incurs either when the item
is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes
other than to produce inventories during that period.

iv. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and
Equipment, which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by Management are recognised in Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its
book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other cxpenscs on existing Property, Plant and
Equipment, including repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are
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charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are
disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are
carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidenta! expenses and attributable
interest.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an itern of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company in the year of disposal.

<. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line
method as per the useful life of the Praperty, Plant and Equipment including property held as
Investment as prescribed under Pairt C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the
date the assets are sold or disposed,

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated resicdual value.

Nature of the asset Useful life
Computers 3 years

Plant & Equipment 5 Years to 25 Years
Building 60 Years

Office Equipment 5 years

Vehicle 8 years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depreciaticn methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically.
d. Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any Gain or less arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that
is not in use by the Company, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is
measured initially at its acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure
wlll flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All olther repairs
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and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an Investment property is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The carrying amount of
investment property is reviewed periodically for impairment based on internal and external
factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price
and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets,

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
shall be added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income,

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the same period.

V1. Intangible assets
a. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties
and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

c. Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from

the date the asset is available to the Company for its use. The amortisation period and the
amaortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed atleast at the
end of each reporting period.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period
Computer software (ERP) 5 years - license period
Computer software {other than ERP) 3 years
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d. Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or dispasal of an intangible asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

VII. Non-current assets (or disposal groups)} held for sale

Non-Current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only te terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sate is highly probable, Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-Current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell except for those assets that are
specifically exempt under refevant Ind AS. Once the assets are classified as “Held for sale”,
those are not subjected to depreciation till disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group} to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subseguent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset {or disposal group}, but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.

A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or
disposal group} is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet,

Discontinued Operations

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale and that represents a separate line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of
discontinued operations are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss,

See Note 20 - Non-Current Assets or Disposal Group Classified as held for Sale for further
details.

VIII. Foreign currency transactions / translations

a. Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the closing rate prevailing on the dates of
the respective transactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.

b. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
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¢. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recegnition during the peried or in previous financial statements are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

IX. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets,

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment which
are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative
galn or loss Is nhot recfassified to proflt or loss onh dispasal of the Investments.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial receognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.
Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

iv. Investment in associates

Investment in associates are measured at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate
Financial Statements.

v, Impairment of investments

The Company treviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of thc asset, nor transforred control of the assct, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recegnises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the assoaated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
" and obligations that the Company has retained.

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial assel or a yroup ol
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured
through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract
assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12
month expected credit losses or at an amount cqual to the life time expected credit losses if

the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the initial investment made by the Company in any other entity was not falling under
the category of an assocciate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such entity gets
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Company accounts for the cost of the
investment in the subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initiai interest, plus
any consideration paid for the additional interest (accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is apptied, the Company recognises the difference
between the fair value of the initial interest at the date of obtaining control of the subsidiary
and its original consideration in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining control,
the initial investment had been measured at fair value through profit and loss or fair value
through other comprehensive income {OCI).

b. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

ii. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. '

ifi. Financial liabilities

Alt financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR}) amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or [osses) or interest.

d. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously,

X. Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized. Other
expenditure (including borrowing costs} during construcktion period is inventorized to the
extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incuired during
the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and cther
expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the construction and real estate
activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as
and when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in
completed projects (ii) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction
/development including land held for development on which construction activities are yet to
commence (iii) Transferable development rights (TDRs)

b, Inventories are valued at [ower of cost and net realisable value.

c. Cost of Realty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in proportion to the revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over
under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of
Realty construction / development includes all costs directly related to the Preject (including
finance cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by the
Management which are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of
the Project (net off incidental recoveries / reccipts) upto the date of receipt of Occupation
Cartificate of Project from the relevant authorities.
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Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable
development rights (TDR), construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to
the projects undertaken by the Company.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

XI. Revenue recognition

a. The Company has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in
this Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the
transaction price te each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of
the following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company performs; or

- The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the conditions
in the contracts with customers.
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The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:
(i) Income from Property Development

The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not
meet the criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time, Revenue is recognized at point
in time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and commercial units as and when the
control is passed on to the customers which is linked to the receipt of occupancy certificate
and on issuing the possession letter of the property.

(i} Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land
and Development Rights as and when the control is passed on to the customers.

(iii) Income from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AQPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established
as per agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIR method).
(v) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

{vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required befora payment of the consideration
is due).

Contract fiability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for- which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer, If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract,

c. Cost to obtain a contract

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer if the Company expecdts to recover those casts. The Company incurs costs such as
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sales commission when it enters into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the
contract.

d. Joint development arrangement

The Company executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements (JDA), wherein the
fand owner provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land
(i.e. development right) and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Company has agreed to
transfer certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds
or certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transfer of such constructed area or
revenue or surplus in exchange of such development rights/ land is being estimated at fair
value as per the terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch of the project as the
cost of development right (Inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair value of
the land cannot be measured reliably, the revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of
the estimated construction service rendered to the landowner adjusted by the amount of any
cash or cash equivalents transferred. Subsequent to initial recognition, such liability is
remeasured on each reporting period depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect
the changes in the estimate, if any.

In case of JD arrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Company
recognizes revenue only when it can reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the
performance obligation. Until such time, the Company recognizes revenue to the extent of
cost incurred, provided the Company expects to recover the costs incurred towards satisfying
the performance obligation.

XII Income tax

a. Current income tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profit for the
period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
by the reporting date and applicable for the period.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability -in
a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

¢. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recegnized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in OCI, in which case, the
current and deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in OCI. The Company offsets current
tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, oy to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off
corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
Company.

XIII Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liahility is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obfigation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post-employment benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

(i) Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Gratuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for
Gratuity is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of econgmic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
applicable minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and
losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest) are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
Net interest expense/ {income) on the net defined liability / (assets) is computed by applying
the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / {asset). Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Company's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent
actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss as income or expense or
recognized under Other Comprehensive Income to the extent such actuarial gains or losses
arise due to experience adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the
market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Goevernment Bonds where the currency and terms
of the Government Bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined
benefit obligation.

XIV Leases
a. Where Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

i. Right-of- usc asscts

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease Incentives recelved. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The fease payments
include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
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receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabitities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resuiting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

jii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

a. Where Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

XV Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to
the respective borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated to qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the
activities necessary to prepare the gualifying asset for its intended use or sale are compiete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisation when development work on
the project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is no imminent certainty.of
recommencement of work.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

XVI Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short term depaosits with an original maturity of three months or less which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow
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Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and short term deposits as defined in
Ind AS 7.

XVII Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income {net off any attributable taxes)
retating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares, :

XVIII Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting peried, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying ameount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events nol wholly within the
control of the Company or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic
benefits has become probable, contingent assets are disclosed.

Contingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the Financial
Statements of the period in which the changes occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.
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XIX Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete
financial information is available,

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance.

Accordingly, the Company has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose
of Ind AS 108:

a) Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

c) Power generation

Real Estate segment (RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable
Development Rights (TDRs) and operation of all or any part of tawnships, housing projects,
Lease rental comprises the rental of properties as Shopping Malls. Power generation is through
Sotar and Wind Mill.

Segmenl performance is evaluated based on profil or loss and is measured consistently with
profit or loss in the financial statements. Also, the Company’s financing (including finance
costs and finance income) and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not
allocated to operating segments, Transfer prices hetween operating segments are on an arm’s
length basis in a manner simitar to transactions with third parties.

XX Business combinations

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the
businesses which are not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incuited,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefils is nol probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income
Tax’ and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ respectively.

b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that
exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in
accordance with Ind AS 12.
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¢} Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previousty held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for
using the pooling of interests method as follows:

+ The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

+ No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are only made te harmonise accounting policies.

s The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated
as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated
only from that date.

+ | he balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor
is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

s The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the
reserves of the transferee,

» The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital
of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other
capital reserves.
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Note 4
Right of use asset

Particulars

Gross block

As at Olst April, 2022
Additions

As at 31st March, 2023
Additions
Disposal/Adjustment

Transfer through discontinued operation (refer

note 20)
As at 31st March, 2024

Accumulated depreciation

As at D1st April, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal/Adjustment

As at 31st March, 2023
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal/Adjustment

Transfer through discontinued operation {refer

note 20}
As at 31st March, 2024

Net block
As at 31st March,2024
As at 31st March, 2023

Note 5
Investment property

Particulars

Gross block

As at 01st Aprii, 2022
Additions

Disposal

As at 31st March, 2023
Additions

Disposal

As at 31st March,2024

Accumuiated depreciation

As at Olst April, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal

As at 31st March, 2023
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal

As at 31st March,2024

Net block
Asg at 31st March, 2024
As at 31st March, 20623

Notes:

(ANl amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Land
113,57
5.80
119.37
{119.37}
5.97
7.31
13.28
(13.28)
106.09
Land Buildings Total
151.95 4,856.35 5,008.30
151,95 4,856.35 5,008.30
151.95 4,856.35 5,008.30
- 534.90 534,90
- 89.54 89.54
- 624.44 624.44
- 89.54 89.54
- 713.98 713.98
151.95 4,142.37 4,294.32
151,95 4,231.91 4,383.86

Informatlon regarding Income and expendlture of [hvestmeant property

Particulars

Rental income derived from investment property

Direct operating expenses

Profit arising from investment property

hefore depreciation
Less: Depreciation

Profit arising from investment progperty

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

1,128.80 652.68
(757.91) (470,20)
370.89 182.48

(89.54) (89.54)
281.35 92.94
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(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Leasing arrangements

The Company has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are
renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The rental income in respect of cancellable
leases is disclosed as 'License fees and rental income' refer note 33. With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum
lease payments are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Within one year 509.56 693,98
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 244.17 613.79

Contingent rent recognised as income - Rs.107.98 Lakhs (31st March, 2023: Rs, 87.22 Lakhs)

The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Fair valuation of commercial properties for land and building together is based on Sales comparison method which is
Rs.15,684 Lakhs (31st March, 2023 Rs.19,019 lakhs} as per valuation report for the period ended 31st March, 2024 respectively.

The valuation of property have been determined by independent valuers registered as defined under rule 2 of Companigs (Registered
Valuers of Valuation) Rules, 2017. The calculation has been conducted through a Sale comparison technigue. Under this approach the
market value has been obtained by considering value of comparable property having same utility & attraction. Under this method average
rate for estimated leasable area has been obtained from varicus sale instances for similar properties after adjusting it for varicus factors
as size, discount, rates, local attributes, good frontage positive and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. All
resulting fair value estimates for investment are included in level 2.

Note 6

Other Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software
Gross block

As at 0lst April, 2022 31.82
Additions 0.53
Disposal/Other Adjustment -
As at 31st March, 2023 32.35
Additions 226.05
Disposal {3.46)
As at 31st March, 2024 254.94
Accumulated amaortisation

As at D1st April, 2022 27.38
Amnrtisation charge for the year 3.55
Disposal/Other Adjustment -
As at 31st March, 2023 30.93
Amortisation charge for the year 36.98
Disposai {3.08}
As at 31st March,2024 64.83
Net block

As at 31st March,2024 190.11

As at 31st March, 2023 1.42
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(ANl amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless aotherwise stated)

Note 7
ital rk i
Particulars Pla_nt and Fur‘mture & foice Building Total
Equipment Fixture Equipment

As at 01st April, 2022 58.14 B - - 58.14
Additions - - - - -
Capitalised during the year - - - - -
As at 3ist March, 2023 58.14 - - - 58.14
Additions 18.55 98,54 23.83 96.73 237.65
Capltalised during the year - - - - -
As at 31st March,2024 16.69 98,54 23.83 896.73 295.79
a} Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars

M than 3
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than Tatal
years
Plant and
Equipment
Frojects in progress 18.55 58.14 - - 76.69
Furpiture & Fixture

(CWIP)
Projects in progress an G4 - - - 98,54
Office Equipment
(CWIP)
Projects in progress 23.83 - - - 23.83
Building
{CWIP})
Projects in progress 95.73 - - - 95,73
Total 237.65 58.14 - il 295.79
b) Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023 .

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than & Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years

Plant and
Egquipment
Projects in progress 58.14 - = - 58.14
Furniture & Fixture
(CWIP)
Projects in progress - - - - N :
Office Equipment :
(CWIP) |
Projects In progress - o - = -
Building
{CWIP)
Projects in progress - - - - -
Yotal 58.14 - - - 58.14
Mote:

i} Capital werk in progress comprises of expenditure towards Electrical equipment, Furniture Fixture, office equipment and Building for renovation of corporate office.
li} Mo Projects are suspended during the current and previous year
refer note 44 for disclosure of Capital Commitments

Note 8

Intangible asset under development

Particulars Software

Cost

As at 81st April, 2022 - : :
sdditions ' 167.46
Acquisition through Business Combination (refer note 63} 22.40
As at 31st March, 2023 (Restated) 189.86
Additions 36.19
Capitahsed during the year {22605}
As at 31st March, 2024 -

Intangibie assets under development is expenditure towards software (SAPY which is capitalized during the year.

a) Ageing schedula as at March 31, 2024

Intangible aszets under e e Amgunt in Intangible assets under da"el‘:‘pme“t;‘:r: E‘:;;D: of

development Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years yenes

projects in progress o ] [T S ]
Total - " -
b)Y Ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Intangible assets under Amount in Intangible assets under development for a pariod of

development Less than 1 Year 1-2 yaars 2-3 years Moare than 3

Frojects in progress 1589.86 - = -

Total 189.86 -

The Intangible assets under development are related to projects which are in Progress. No projects are suspended.
No projects have exceeded their original timelines or original budget.
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(AMN amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ag at
Ax at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)
Note 9
Investments

Unquoted Investments {fully paid)

A. Investments (Valued at cost}
1. In equity shares of subsidlary companies {Face Value Rs.£0 Each)

Avalor Developers Private Limited {C.Y, B,50,000 shares ; P.Y. 10,00,000 shares}*

f5.00 100,00
R mail Developers Private Limited -Class & (C.Y. 19,90,000 shares )# 199.00 ;
R mall Developers Private Limited -Class B (C.Y. 47,142 shares )# 264.00 R
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (C.Y. 20,31,10,000 shares) {Alsa refer note 50}# 20,313.00 ;
Galleria Retail Pyt Ltd (C.¥. 149,000 shares | P.Y_NH) 1.00 }
Slddhatva Developers Private Limitad (C.¥. 10,000 shares; PY Nl 1.00 }
Aethon Developers Py, Lkd, (C.v. 10,000 shares; PY Nif) 1.00 R
Runwal Construction Pyt Lid  {C.Y. 10,00,000 shares; PY NI 100.00 .
20,964.00 100.00
2. In equity shares of joint venture companies
R, mall Developers Frivate Limited -Class A (P.Y. 15,90,000 sharec of K510 eachiy - 199.00
R mall Davelopers Private Limited -Class B (P.Y. 47,142 shares of Rs. 10 gach}# - 264,00
R Retal ventures Private Lirmited (P.Y, 13,000 shares of Rs.10 sach)# N o0 313,06
- 20,776.00
3. Im equity shares of associate companies
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited (P.Y. 8,000,400 shares of Rs.100 each) 1 77086
- 1.720.86
4.Investment in partnership firms - Fixed Capital Account
Runwal Constructions - 100.00
- 100.00
Total of investments valued at cost (A) 20,964.00 22,696,86
B. Investments valued at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)
L.Other Investment
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited (C.¥, 800,400 charec of Rs. 100 each)** 318531
Total of Envestment valued at FYTPL (B) 3,188.31 -
2. In mutual fund
Adltya biria sun life saving fund - growth - direct plan (C.¥ 14,121,602 Units, P.Y. 14,121.602 Units) 71.48 66,41
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund Savings Fund - Growth - Regular Plan {C.Y.54,776.916 Units £.Y.60,736.605 Units) 27313 281.91
Total of Investment in Mutuad Fund (C} 344.61 348.32
Total of investments vafued at falr value through profit and loss {B+C) 3,532,092 348.32
Total of investments (A+B+C} 24,496.92 23,045.18

* Durmg the year 15000 shares of Avalor Developers Private Ltd were sold. (refsr note 47)

#During the year stake tn the Joint venture was pracuraed by Qroup companles hence it become subsidiany
~ On the 5 th July Runwal Constructlon was convearted i Runwal Construction Private Limlted,

** Wheelabrator ceased to be associate wef 22.03.2024




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standalene financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Tatal capiral of the firm (fixed and current capital}

Mame of the partners and their profit sharing ratios

1.Runval Developers Private Limnited
2.Dhruva Woplien Mills Private Limited

Note 10
Other non-current financial assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties
Security deposits#
Bank depocits with more than 12 meonths maturiby* *

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless ectherwise stated)

Runwal Constructicns

Runwal Constructions

As at 5¢th July 2023

As at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
(Refer Note 63)

17,030.92

18,236.70

i7,030.52

18,236.70

Ax at 5th July 2023

As at
Z1st March, 2023
[Restated]
{Refer Note 634

SR
)

95%
5%

100%

100%

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
{Refer Note 63)

31580
51G.33

1,391.49
90.00

826,13

1,461.49

# Security deposits are towards utiity deposits and towards other deposits. Security Depaosit of Easy Homes got converted into TCD in the current year
**Bank Deposits held as margin money and item marked for issuing bank gurantes amounting to R5. 437.34 Lakhs (PY 80 Lakhs)

Note 11
Other non-current assets
{u ed « idered good unl otherwise stated}

To refated parties
Security deposit

To Parties other than related parties
Advances other than capital advances

Note 12
Inventories

Raw malerialfal Cosl)

Conskruction work, in progressat Cost)

Finished goods(at lower of Cost and net reallsable value)
Stock in trade

The carrying amount of inventories charged as securities against borrowings

Note 13
Current Investmeants
Investments valued at cost {unguoted)

Investment in partmership firm - current account
Subsidiary
Ronwal Constructlons {refer note 9

Investment in debepture instruments {Fully Paid)
OCD Serles 3 #
Honzon Projects Pye Lid (7,000 debentures of Rs 1,00,000 each)

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
21sk March, 2023
[Restated]
(Refer Note 63)

20.43

1.3

22.34

As at
31st March, 2024

Az at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
{Refer Note 63)

3.082.02
1,50.634.61
19,770.20
576.64

320.30
1,39,793.%2
22,112.36
571.00

1,83.073.57

1,62,797.38

45.853.73

67,013.34

As at
21st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
{Refer Note €3]

7.000.00

Each OCD series 3 shall have a face value of Rs. 100,000, The Tenor of the OCD Series 3 shall be untll March 31, 2024,
or such extended term as may be determmead by the board with the prior wrilten consent of OCD Series 3 holders

redeemable at @ premium, which is to be decided at the time of redemption.

18,136.69

7,000.00

7.000.00

25,136.69

AL the expiry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OGD Sarlas 3 may be converted to Class © Shares, The 06D Sarlas 5 ghall ke Unsecured, The 0N Saries 3 shall not cay

Any vating rights.




Runwral Developers Private Limited
Motes Lo standal financial stat

Note 14

Trade receivables

ts for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at

21st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
(Refer Note 63)

Secured, conslderad good 133.65 iol1e
nsecured, considered good 729.49 551.52
Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk/credit impaired 368.36 451.63
Less © allowance for significant increase in credit rickfcredit inpaired {368 .36} {451.63)
263.14 653.43
Ageing of trade receivables :
A) Ageing for the 31st March, 2024
Particular Less than 6 months 6 m::;l:s -1 1 -2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
ndispu 1 r ivables
Considered good 328.20 i23.64 5364 13.02 344.64 £63.14
Yehich have signlflcant increase In cradit risk - 26.06 50.77 10941 182.42 368,36
Credi impaired - - - - -
Conslderad good - - - - -
Whirh have significant Increase In credit sk - - - - - -
Cradit impaired - - - “ .
Allpwance for significant increase in credit
riskferedit impalred - {26.06} {50.77} (109.31) (182,42} {368.36)
Total 328.20 123.64 53.64 12.02 344.64 £63.149
B) Ageing for the 31st March 2023
Particular Less than 6 months & m;:;l:s -1 1- 2 years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables
Conadered qood 21092 23.97 21.10 19.11 78.33 653,43
Which have gsighcant increase m credlt risk - 123.01 83.21 11246 13295 451.63
Credit impaired - - - - -
DMsputed trade receivables
Considered good - - - - -
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
Credit impaired - - - - -
Allpwance for significant increase in eredit
Lrisk/cregit imnaired - (123.01} (83,21} {112.46) {132.95) {451.63)
Tekal 510,82 23.97 21.10 19.11 78.23 653.43
As at
As at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Mote £3)
Note 15

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
In current accounts*

In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months

Cash on hand

634.65 6,649 .47
136.45 1,515.41

0.92 53.95
772,02 §;222.84

Short-term deposlts are made for varying perinds of betwean one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash réquirements of the Company and earns interest at the

respective short-term depesit ratas,

*Includes Rs.29.46 lakhs {31 March 2023: Rs, 228.28 Lakhs) held in escrow acoount for a praject under Real Estate (Regulation and Development} Act, 2016 {("RERA"). The money

can e ubilised for payments of the speahad projects,

Note 16
Bank balances other than above

Bark deposits with criginal maturity of more than 3 months bt less than 12 menths#

As at
31st March, 2024

As at

21st March, 2023

[Restated]
(Refer Note 63)

1,105.51

2,181.37

1,105.51

1,181.37

# Bank deposlts held as margin meney and lien marked for issuing bank guarantees amaunting b CY.Rs, 231.61 lakhs (P.Y. R$.164.43 lakhs)




Runwa) Develepers Frivate Limited
HNetes to standalone financial statements for the vear endad 21st March, 2024

(All amownts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at
As at Z1st March, 2023
21st Masrch, 2024 [Restated]

(Refer Note 63}

Note 17

Loans

{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated}
Te related parties

Inter corporate deposit® 40.B64.47 31.00
Others 68.71 -
To parties other than related partles
Security deposit 28054 1,269.54
inter corporate deposit 9,033.97 5,028.24

50,256,69 9,348.88
* Inter corporate deposits given ta related parties are repayable on demand. (refer note 47)
Type of Borrower As at 31st M':fcaht 2023

31st March, 2024 [Restated] (Refer Note 63 )
Amount outstanding % of Fotal Amount outstanding Yo of Total
Prormaters - - - -
Directors - - - -
KMPs - - - -
Related Parties 40,864 .47 81.31% 31.00 0.323%
Total A0,864.47 B1.31% 31.00 D.33%
As at
As at 21st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
(Refer Hote 633
Note 18
Other current financial assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
To Related parties
Recelvable towards cancellatlon of lease 6.00 6.00
To partias other than related parties
Cther advances# 199.42 255.93
Securlty Deposit 420,99 3099
Interest accrued but nok due 45,74 A40.485
L.oans and advances (o employees 11.15 5.20
683.30 238.58
# Other advances are repayable on demand
As at
As at 315t March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated}

{Refer Note 63)

Note 19
Other current assets
{Unsecurad considered good unless otherwise stated)

To parties other than related parties

Advance to suppliers and contractor 11,225.03 357514
Advance against flats 1,351.80 1.030.00
Balances with statutery authorities 911.00 997.85
Prepald expenses 77.58 94,56
Other Recervables 278.01 -
Advance for land/others# 3.828.28 7iz.50
Deferred brokerage S 461.94 3.860.94

23,133,864 . 10,291.39

# Adwvances against land/fethers are towards purchase commitments, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be settled against future purchase of such assets.




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Noke 20

Non-current assets Held for sale and Discontinued operations

Refer Note 2(VII} for accounting policy on Nen-current assets {or Discontinued operations groups) held for sale

Following business units are considered as discontinued operations as at 31st March, 2024:

Solar Unit

The company had installed 8.2MW solar power plant at Andhur, Osmanabad in Maharashtra on 31st March 2015, The
generation of the electricity was used as captive consumption in the group entity. The company vide its board meeting
date:06 th Septermber, 2023 , decided to sell the solar electricity generation plant vide agreement dated : O4th April 2024,
the same was sold to R Mall Developers Private Limited, For a lump surn consideration of Rs.6.15 crores.

Windmill Unit

The company had instalied two windmill plants at Dhule, Maharashtra. These plants have been operational for a peried of
more than 20 years. Initially the generation was used as captive consumption and {ater with the changes in the rules the
generation was sold to the efectricity board MSEDCL. The company at its board meeting dated 3rd August 2023, decided to
zell the units, The prospective buyers were identifled and the same was sold to Repoweringlndia (OPC} private Limited on
19th August, 2023 at a price of Rs.1.65crs and same was executed on 18th June 24

The Financlal Performance of the Discontinued Operations for the the year ended 315t March, 2024 & 31st
March, 2023 is as fotlows:

For the year For the year

Particulars aended 31st March, ended Z1st March,

2024 2023
Total Income 577.23 556.01
Taotal Expanses (656.69) {591.37)
Impairment loss recognised as a result of remeasurement of fair value less
cost to sell (3,170.03) -
Profit before tax (3,249.54) {35.36}
Tax {expense)/Credit - -
Profit / (loss) after tax from discontinued operations {3,249.54) {35.36)
Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operation are as under:

As at

Particulars 31st March, 2024

A. Non-Current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued operations

Mon-Current Assets classifled as held for sale - (a) 81.57
Assets of Discontinued oparations - {b} 748.56
830,13

(a} As at 31st March, 2024 assets held for sale relate to Land and 2 Windmills situated at Dhule, Maharashtra,

(b} Assets of Discontinued operations yroup held for sale

Land and Building _
Plant and Machinery 466,73

Others (refer note {iv) below) 281.83
Total 748.56

(i} Current year amount reprasents assets of Discontinued operations classified as held for sale.
(i} The Company is in the process of disposing the above assets,
(i) The fair value of the assets held for sale approximates the carrying value.

B. Liability Associated with Discontinued operations Group Classified as Held for Sale

As at
31st March, 2024

Liabilities associated with Discontinued operations classified as held for Sale -

refer note (iv below} ) 133.14
133.14

F Di htinue rati 4

31st March, 2024
Other Assets of Discontinued operations

ROU Aszet 98.77
Security Deposit 45,16
Trade receivables 122.20
Advance te Creditor 7.44
Bonk Account G.01
Prepaid Expanses 1.05

281.83

iabiliti f n

Leasa Liabitity 348
Trade pavables 6.99
Statutory Dues 0.22
Advance from Customer 100.60
Transmission Rent Payable 22.29
Provision Q.16

133.14




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to st {al financial ts for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amaunts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21
Equity share capital

As at

Authorised share capital 31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023
[Restated]
{Refer Note 63

Equity Share Capital
29,55,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fuliy paid-up

2,955.50

2,955.50

(Previous year: 29,55,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each) 2,955.50
Increased on acoount of Business Combination (5,14,00,000 Equity
shares of Rs.1 each fully paid up} 514.00
Total Equity
3,469.50
Preference Share Capitat
On account of conversion {1,60,000 Freference shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid-up) 16.00
Total Preference Share Capital 16.00
3,485.50

2,955.50

Total Authorised share capital

Qut, of 53,00,000 equity shares having face value of Rs.10 each, 51,40,000 equity shares has been converted 5,14,00,000 to Rs.1 each and 1,60,800 equity shares of Rs, 10

each converted to 1,60,000 preference share of ks, 10 each on 07.03.2024

Asg at
- As at 31st March, 2023
Yssued, subscribed and paid up capital 31st March, 2024 fRestated]
{Refer Note 63}
22,28,590,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each, fully paid up
(Previous year: 22,28,90,150 Equity Shares of Rs, 1/- each, fully paid up) 2,228.90 2.228.90
Total 2,228.90 2,228.90

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the Number of Shares as

Number of Shares as
at 2023

6.26,529
57.31,461
21,65,21,860

beginning and at the end of year at 2024
Issued, subscribed and pald up:
Hurmber of shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 22,28,90,150
Add: Sub-Division of Existing Eguity Shares™ -
Add: [ssuance of Bonus Shares* R
ber of shares cutstanding at the end of the year 22,28.90,150

22,28,50,150

* Sub-Division of Existing Equity Shares and Issuance of Bonus Shares

Crurlng Ehe year  Lhere was no dhange Dy Lhe number of e shares, o the previoes year ended 30l Maich, 2023, Lhere was sob-diviston of exisUng 836,028 eyully sligres of Tale
value of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up into 63,68,290 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up and tssuance of fully pald up bonus shares post sub-diviston of shares in the ratio of
3411 (ie. 21,65,21,860 bonus shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up for 563,68,290 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each fully paid up}, which have been approved by the shareholders on
28th September, 2022, The bonus shares were Issued by capltalization of profits transferred from general reserve. The bonus shares allotted shall rank parl passu in all respects
and carry the same nghts as the existing Equity Shares and shall be entitied to parbicipate 0 tall, inany dividend and other corporate action, recommended and declared atter the

naw Cquity Sharas have baan allottad.

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only ona class of aqulty shares having s per valus of Rx. 1 par shars, Cach sharaholdar is aligible for one vota par shmre hald. [n the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are efigible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential payments, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at
As at
31st March, 2023
F1st March, 2024 [Restated] {Refer Mote 63 }
MNo. of shares % Holding No. of shares %o Holding

Mr. Sandeep Runwal 16,08,12,120 F2.15% 20,53,90,150 92.15%
Mrs. Privanka Sandeep Runwal 2,62,36,665 11.77% - -

18,790,48.785 83.92% 20,53,90,150 92.15%

Details of Promoters Shareholding

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars No. of shares % Holding ;fa::hange during the

o change

o Holding during the year

No. of shares

Mr. sandeep Hunwal 16, 08,14, 320000 12.15% [41.,/0%)

There is change in promoters shareholding doring the current and previous year.

94.15% 0.00%

41,503,900, 10000




Runwal Developers Private Limited
MNotes to standalone financial statements foar the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 22 |
Other aquity

Capital reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2022 (33,695.59)
On account of Business Combination (refer note 63} -
Movement during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 {33,695.59)
Movemnent duning the year "
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 {33,695.59)

Capital redemption reserve

Balance as at 01st April, 2022 -
On account of Business Combination (refer note 63) -
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 -

Movement durlng the year 0.06
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 0.06

Securities premiom

Balance as at 01st April, 2022 24,201.78
On account of Business Combination (refer note 63) -
Movernent during the year {362.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 23,839.78
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 23,839.78

General reserve

Balance as ot 01st April, 2022 225.00
Movement during the year (225.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 -
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 -
Retained earnings

Balance as at Olst April, 2022 83,727.92
On account of Business Combination (refer note 63) 26,622.22
Balance As at 01st April, 2022 (Restated) 1,10,350,14
Profit for the year ended 31st March, 2023 8,219.52
RrRemeasuremeant of defined benefit plansinet of tax) 4,53
Transferfutilisation of reserves (CRR) {1,578.22)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 1,16,995.97
Profit for tha year ended 31st March, 2024 4,238.12
Creation of CRR on buyback of shares {0.08)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans{net of tax) (0.56)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1,21,233.47
Total Other Equity

At 01 April 2022 (Restated) 1,01,081.33
At 31st March 2023 (Restated) 1,07,140.16

At 31st March, 2024 1,11,377.72

Nature and purpose of resarves
1) Capital reserve
Caplal rese ve Lcompises ol Ry, 35,695,549 {akhs o aocounl ol Busitiess Combimalions

2) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time toe time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the
general reserve is created by a transfer from one compenent of equity to ancther and is not an item of other comprehensive
income, items included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

3} Retalned earnings
Feebained vannings ane L profil hab Uie Conpany Ciocluding ol soerged endilivs) has conned U dabe, less aiy dividends o
ather distributions paid to shareholders.

4) Securities premium

On account of merger of RRFL and RPPL being accounted For using the pooling of interest method, the securities premiurm of
the respective companies as appearing on the appointed date of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves.

1

5) Capital redemption reserve l
During the year capital redemption reserve created out of general reserve & retained earnings for the redemption o

preference share.Tt utilised for issue of bonus shares during the period.,



Runveal Developers Private Limited

Hotes bo standal financial for the vear endad 31ist Maych, 2024
(Al amounts in RE. Lakhs, unless otharwise stated)
As at
As at 31zt March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
[Rafer Nota 631
Note 23
Non-current financial liabilities: borrowings (at amortised cost}
Secured:
Tertn loans
Froum banks X 15.567.09 &.Bi0FO
Fram others 43,547, 31 35,451 09
Wehecle Igan from bank 157.16 9.7z
Lezs: Amount disclosed under current dorowings as current matuntles of long-rerm borrewings {refer note 271 [1L526.99) {416.06%
Less: Unamantised boirowlng cost {1,302 B3} {65938}
62,439.73 43,526.00
A. Becured leans from banks:
Sr. | Lean tahen from a i Rate of i Secured inst/ guarantes given Terms of repayment
ne amount (in
Lakhs)
1 | Bank of Baroda car ban Y. -0.95 160% Car - malihi suzukl new wagon R LK (3} CNG 36 Months EMI start han Seplember, 2621 G August,
accsunt 03310600002072 (P.Y. - 3.08} 024
2 | 1CICT Bank Ltd car {oan - CY. - 2874 7.50% Car - Mercedes-benz 60 Months EMI staet frony January, 2021 £l December,
LAMUMSG04 2576530 {P.¥. - 4355) 2025
3 | Unien Bank of India loan /e .- 11.00% 1. 'Land & building Repayable in 109 montbly instalments of Rs. 30,47 500/
319206250060013, 137144 2. Hypothecation of prant and machinery and other asset craated|eadh commencing From 25th Feldvuary 20165,
{PY. - out of bank finance.
1,731.42)
4 | I£ICK Bark Limited {33691 & { C¥. - 10.35% Al that piece and parcel of land admeasuring apprex 70,740.24| The Borrower agrees and undertakes o repay to the Lender|
EERE 3] 6,827.37 sqmbs, {excleding amenlty space of ~ 21250 sq. mbe. as|the principal amounts of the Fadility in 15 montlily
(P.Y. Nil 3 demarcated in Annexure IC) eut of the land bearing CT5 no, 4510 Installments commencing from “43rd” month frem the Date
totally admeasucing 1,03 588,22 square imeters, tituata, Iying and|of First DrawalfDisbursement az per Annexure 18 of
being at Village Chinchiwad, Takeka Havedi and Cuztnct Pune and all| Sanctlon Letter.
the structure:  (present and  fotore), abng  with  all the
develo F ial arising  thereon  (Including  adal |
development potential in the foran of
TOR, premium FS], i), both present and future,
Project 1- Reswlential Projeck named The Central Park Fhase | (81,
B2, €1,C2 & €3} being devaloped at the Property having an RERA/
Carpet area of approx, & 59,433 5q. fi. belg developed by the
ERWPL on the Property.
Project 2 - Residential Project named The Central Park Phate II
(B3, B4, AL & A2 being developed al the Property having an RERA
Carpet aea of approx, §,15,786 5q. fi. belng developed by the
ERYPL on bhe Property.
Froject ¥ - Residential Froject named The Central Park Fhase IIT
(A} being developed al e Pigpety Daviig 20 RORA Capel aical
of approx. : 07,972 <q. it. belng developed by the REVPL on thel
Property.
5 | AXIS BARE LTD. - C.¥ - 16514 BE1% BHW CAT DYBHW 7401 M SPORT &4 Months EFMD of Bs. 287 87100 From June 2034 gl
AURDOD409219426 (F.Y. - Hil} HMay, 2031
£ [ 1CIC1 Rank [EA{Term Laan] - | & - 1000 IR The Facility, all interact fherenn, caste, charges, expenses and all |Repayment in 30 monthly installments commensing from
(BOICO0ID1AS other monigs In respect thereof shall be secured with Other Facility |4%th month from the date of fiest dsbursement
try:
1. Flrst Parl Passu charge by way of reglstered moitgage o Lhe
Property.
2. Flist Parl Passu charge by way of replstered martgane on the
Project I extluding the sold vails (as specified in Annexure 11E
herete, but including any cancellations and excluding the units
charged to PB Global Limited.
3. Furst Par] Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on the
future Scheduled Feceivables of the Praject 1 and all insurance
proceeds, both present and future,
4. First Pani Passu charge by way of registered mertgage on
securlty of all rights, e interest, chaims, benefits, demands
under the Project Documents of the Project 1 both present and
Future.
%. First Pari Passu charge by way of registerad mortgage sn the
Escrow Aneount/s of the Project 1 and the BSE Account all manles
craditedy i therein (in form the same may be),
and all Investments in respect theveof {In whatever form
the same may he};
| Indlan Bank-RDPL{MaRs) Loan [ C.¥. - 9.15% 1. Exclusive Charge on i of Rant Rec aut of thelAs per sanction letter repayment in 150 Installinents as
Afeno. FYEBI IS ER Y. hetow montiened [vopertles. toHopes:
- {PY. - - |2 Exclusive charge by way of hypolhecation on the etcoow]l. 7 Installments of 7 Laki
6,365.60) accound and all the recelvables and all porrent assets, present andf2, & Installments of 8 Lakh
future below mentioned properties. 3. 12 Inzkallments of 12 Lakh
3 Exclusive charge over Debt Service R ve Account malntakned|d 12 I lh of 20 Lakh
with Bank, equivalent to 1 Month. 5. 10 Installments of 25 Lakh
4. Registered Mertgage of Shop ne G-7. G-164, G-160, G-16, F-5,|6. & Instaliments of 3 Lakh
1.2, T-18, T 19, G-13, 522 & 30, G-10A, G-11, F-1, F-5, T-12, T5|7. 18 Intkaliments of 35 Lakh
&6, 51, 52 53,526,527,528, 516, S17,518 and terrace, TIA, T-1,|8. & Instaliments of 40 Lakh
T-7, T-15 F 16 5-14, 5 41 of R Mall, BS Marg, Mulond West 9 4 Instaliments of 46 1 akh
5. Reglstered Mortgage of commerclal shops situated at Fheor no, 2{10. 11 installments of 5t Lakh
to 6, Shop nos. G-i, G-3, G-14, Common Area, F-4, F-5, F-9, F-]11. & Installments of 56 Lakh
10, F15, %2, 55, K&, K7, 510, 511, 512 of R Odeon Malh]12. 8 Installments of 62 Lakh
Ghatkopar East. 1210 Installments of 70 Lakh
14. 13 Installments of 75 Lakh
T4 4 Inatallments af KY Likh
146, 12 Instaliments of 90 Lakh
17. 10 Installments of 25 Lakh
13, 1 Instaiments of 93 Lakh

LS P BT P 2
1ol (P¥ #1439 fin)




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to financial stat for the year ended 31st March, 2024

B, Secured loans from others:

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. | Loan taken frem Outstanding| Rate of interest | Securad against/ guaranise given Terms% of repayment
no lamount
} | Aditya Birla Finance Limited - | CY. - 11.70% 1.Unzcld lnventory of “The Residence” & “The Reseive” Projects, Repayalde in 24 monthly Installments commencing from
ABFLMUMCFOO00 36752 455173 2, Personal Guarantee of Mr. Sandeep Runwal for the prop d|®1st October, 2023,
HOFHMUZ DLLOGHI 1001126 Py - facilities.
7,505 G4}
2 | Aditya Birla Flnance Ltd- 1485 | C.Y. - 11.70% Exclusive charge by way of first pari passu charge o land at Tenor of total 68 months {wherain scheduled repayment
5,6949,4% iltage Dhokali {Balkum} in Thane, along wilh Residential Building  [will starf frons (he end of Lhe 36th month from date of
[R.Y. Enowvin az Runezal Birene Tower BA to 60, 7 to 13 and TORFSI finsk disbursement)
12,238.95) thergon.
3 | Aditya BIrta Finance Lid-4071 | C.Y. - 11.15% Excluslye first Charge by way of registered morigage on land Fepay principal amownt of the fadlity to Ehe leader in 24
& LOC 3556 3,474.61 adnmeasuring 3,363 sqm located village Chokali {Balkum) in Thane |monthly instalments and in accordance with the repayment

Py
3,793.50)

districk atongwith residential building known as "Tower 14- Zenith,
devatloped Hieresn alorgwith present and Tuture consteuttion of

schedule et forth. [whereln scheduled repayment will start
from the end of the 36th mouath from date of first

4 | Aditya Birla Flnance Lkd -4369 { CY. - 11.20% Extention of first and exclusive ¢harge by way of reqistered Repay 12 monthly instalments and In accordance with:
B LOC 4265 5,435.6% mortgage o land admeasuring 25095.54 sqm out of 37,020 sgm  |repayment schedule set forlh Annexure 15, The first of such)|
A ] servey nos flssa nos mentioned in Annexure 1of wilage DRokali  [instalment of repayment shall fall dus afer 19U month
[Balkuny} in Thane district, along with TOR & FSI (exd. TDR of area|frem date of fist disbursement.
5 | Aditya Birla Finance Limited « | Y. - F1.60% 1. 28 unsokd units admeaguring 50,026 5q, R, of carpet area In the] Repayable in 60 monthly instalments commenting from
ABFMUZTEROOQQLQQ2 a0 4,164 .55 project kaovmn as Rynwal Elegante 15th Alrgust, 2022
{PY - 2. Hypothecation & Escrow of scheduled recewables of 28 unsold|
&.215.47) urits of Runwal Elzgante
3. D3RA equivalent to 1 month's interest,
4. of My, deep Rumyal for the proposed
Tactitias.
@ | Tata Capital Houslng Flnance | €Y. - 11.25% Mortaage - Pari-passe charge {with LCICI Bank} by way off 30 monthly Instalments starting from 49th month from the
Ltd- 7530 10,738.41 reglstered mwrtgage over the  nighiftittesdnterest W land|firsk disbursement.
adreasuring 57,130 sq mitrs & construction thereon of present
and futire of project 25 hours life, FSI, TOR and benefils
to the extent of borroweds share, Other security - DSPA equivalent
to 3 months Interest on autstanding amount of the facility.
? | BHFL [ i0.50% + Excluslve first charga by way of registered mortgage of T Bommower agrees and underiakes to repay principall
2,892.06 develapment rights & unsold units of tie project "Codename Rare |amounts by way of scheduled repayment of the Facihtles tol
by Punwal™ BHFL in 2& meonths after principal slandstill perod of 36
+ Criginal documents pertalning to development rights of the Imonths fron the date of first disbursement,
project
+ Exrlusive charge by way of lyp ation on the reczlvabl
oiginatined froim the sold and unsold umits of the project and all
i e procecds, both presant and future cash flows of the
profect.
+ Exclusive Charge on the eserow aceounts of the Propet
and all monies credited/deposted thereln {In all forme ).
8 | Tata Capital Houslng Finance { Y. - 12% 1. 1. Exelusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the| 72 Months Including moratorium period of 42 manths from|
Limited - 10704493 & 10,549 78 ROPL's share of right/titefinterest in the project "Runwal Timeless™|tive data of first disbursement
10705475 P - being developed on land parcel located at CS. Neos. 4 (part}, 5
&,068.21) (part), & {part), and 7 (part) of Salt Pan Dwaislon, Slon-situated at

Pratiksha Wagar, Shastrl Magar, "C" Division in FfHorth Ward,
Mumbal, Maharashtra, Including all future constructlons, FSE, TOR,
and benefits thereon to the extent of RDPL's share.

2. DSRA equivalent to 3 months” Interest on outstanding ameunt
of the facility.

1. Addltonal Security:

1. Extension of first charge by way of registered mortgage gn the|
unsold proportion of land and bulldlng of the projectz "R
[Anthurium™ and "R Square” located at LES Marg, Mulund, Mumbal,
along with any prezent and future constrsction.,
Receivables

111, Primary Receivables:

1 Exclusive charysa Ly way of hyp catlen on all rox . kol
the extent of developer's share, induding sold, unsold, insurance
receipts as well a5 development and other charges fromt ynits and
any cash flow from the project "Runwal Timeless |located at C5.
Hos, 4 (part), S (part}, 6 (part), and 7 (part) of Salt Pan Division,
Slon-situated at Pratiksha Magar, Shaslrl Nagar, “C Divigion in|
F/North  Ward, Mumbai, Haharashtra, Including &l future
constructions, FST, TOR, and benehts therson to the oxtent ol
ROPL's share,

1V Ardditinaal Rersirahlas-

1. Extenslon of fiksst charge Dy way of hypethecation on all Uhe
TeigivaBiles induding sold, unsoM, insurance receipts as well as
development and other charges from units and any cash Aaw from
the project "R Anthurivm™ and "R Square” located at LBS Marg,
Hulund, Mumbal,

¥. Pertonal Guarankee : S50r sandesp Runwal

\ C.V. - 50,506.21
Tota [P.Y. - 35,822.07)

Thig changes in liabitltles schedule Hicludes mavements for cuprent as wall a5 non - current portion of term kans,

Hate 24
Leasa Liabilities - Non Current
Lease Liabllitles irefer note 53 )

HNote 25

Non current provi
[ RIET R LU T
Mrovision for comoensated abysences

refer note 43 emplovee benefit expenses

As at
As at 31st March, 2023
diet March, 2024 [Hestated)

{Rafer Note §3)

- 348
- 3.48
As Bt
As at 315t March, 2023
31st Moichy, 2023 [flestated)

afer Nota 63

11289 B86.09
LV 53 an
172.82 140.08




Runwial Developers Private Limiled
Nutes to i i i For the year ended 31st March, 2024

M)

B}

<)

Hote 25
Daferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Deferrad tax liahilitias

Property, olant & eaulpment

Rifht of use asset

Intanaible asset

FWTPL fnanaal assets

FWOCT financial assets

Leaze equalization reserve azzets

Finizhed Goods

Revaliaton of inventary on account of busingss combanat:on

Defarrad tax assets

Invastment propenty

Carry forward losses of house propesty Income
Provision For Doubtfal Delts

Provisions for retirement benefits

Advance from custonmer

Disalfowance under section 436

Discounting on security deposils

Expenses incurred en business combination

Deferred tax assets/1i ies [net)

liation of 1ax

Amount of corrent tax r d in the f of profit and loss
Deferved 1ax (charge) / credit

Froperty, plant & equipnent

Right of uze aszet

Intanaible asset

FYTPL financial assets

Leave equalzation reserva atsets

Finizhad Good=

Revaluation of inventery an account of business combinatlon
Carry foreard losses of house preperty income

Investrment property

Provislon for Dgubtful Deblis

Provislans for retirensent benefits

Aftvance from cuskomes

Disallowance under section 438

Discounting on secunty decosits

= Incurred on busi [

Total of B

Totalof A+ B

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Proflt before tax

Tax @25 168% {PY @25.1685%)

Tax effect of @

Permanent [Nsalowance

Tax on exempted income

Taxalda temporary difference

Income kaxed at different rate

Deductible temporary differences

Unused capltal osses

Deferred tax not considered in pravious year
{Expenses) f income offered in tax beoks (net)

Tax expenses recoqnised

Nota 27
Current borrowings
Sacured
Bank overdraft [refer table below)
Corrent itias of fang-tarm b
From banks
Froan otiers
Wehicle [ban from bank

{also refer apte 23)

Unsecured
Btk overdraf
Preferance Share*

{All amounts in 5. Lakhs, uniess otherwise staled}

Az at
J1sk Mapch, 2024

As at
31zt March, 2023
[Rastated]
[Refer fiote 63)

*3% Redermabla Preference Shares of 1,53,533 Rs. 10 each pendicg For

(297,69 (1,405,100
(24.,86) 126,70}
£3.28) LR
1214.53) (303
{16.69) x4y
{16.18) (33,943
(61.91) (116,204
{635.14} {1,550.06]
179.69 157.16
- 35.23
9271 113.57
3646 913
19.44 44.15
4,59 2264
- 27.58
£.85 1.72
353,75 A31.28
{283.39) {1.158.78)
Ax at
As at 3Lst March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
—{Refer Note 63)
(1,833.34} {2.310.42)
L7l §3.51
1.84 038
(4. 16} .88
[213.a4% 10947
12,78y [8.53%
17.76 68,00
48.29 -
[35.23) -
*2.53 157.1%
120.95} 113,67
7.33 3.83
f2a.¥1% f111.15)
1.95% 5804
[27.58) [0.53)
(0.86) [0.88)
877,39 279,66
(955.95) {2,530.76)
5.194.23 10,745.7%
1,300.24 2.705.26
88973 135.85
{40.41% {94,591
{1,114.08) -
116178} -
37.95 -
{20.83 -
- {195,494
88.07 {20.27%
555,95 2,530,765
At at
As at Z1st March, 2023
31t March, 2024 [Rastated]
3.579.95 4.164.66
1.538.45 31034
1.951.73 H8.80
3776 16.93
0,87 25.12
1%5.35 15.35
7,185.11 4,621.20




Runwal Dl:\relol:lers Pr}vate L-mnled
Notes te stand. For the yvear ended 315t March, 2024

(All amounts jn Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Bank cverdraft

Rate of interest

i:’ Bank ovardraft taken frem ::;i::‘dmg' Secured against/ guarantee given Terms of repayment

1| HOFC Bank Ayc - CY.5, .93 700 B5L1 ULIF Policies of Mr, Sandecp Runwal & Mr. Subodh Runweal, | Renewal every year
200056023408 A8 FD of Rs. 2,80 or for 2Amonths on auts rengvial il the tenore of
3,99E6.93) e Facility.

2| ICICI BANK AfC - C¥. 1,210.89 1060 The Facidity, all interest thergon, costs, charges, expenses and all | Repayment 30 monthly installment commenting fram 49 th
DFAGOS0GOE0F [CAN. )] other momes [n respect tiwresf thall be secured with Dther Faciily [montls from the date of it disbursement af such 0D facility
i nill last QO deduction date

i
1. First Parl Passu charge by way of registered maortgage on the
Proprrty.

2. Flrst Par] Passu charge by way of reglstered mortgage on the
Project 1 exeluding the sold units (as specified in Annexure 1168
hereto, but induding any cancellations and excluding the unils
chatgad to PB Global Limited

3. First Pan Passu charge by way of regisiered mortgage on Lhe
Fulure Stheduled Recamwabiles of the Project 1 and all inzurance
proceeds, both present and future.

4. first Pari Passu charge by way of registered mortgage an
secunty of all rights, title, interest, clalms, benefits, demands
under the Project Docusments of bhe Project 1 borh present and
flture,

. First Pari Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on the
Escrow Accountys of the Project 1 and the DSR Account all nuonies
credited/ ited therein {In form the same may be),
and all Investments in respect thereof {in whatever form

the same may be);

3| ICKCT BANK LTD AfC C.¥. -566.71 11.25% 1. Exclusive charge by way of iegistered mortgage on the Property | The Borrower shall be entitled to repay the GO facility at
QFAG05002599 {&Y NIy 1- any me from the date of disbursement of such 0D facility,
2, Exclusive charge by way of reglstered mortgage on ull the last OO0 reductlon 15th November, 2023,
devalapmant rights of the Property.

3. Exclutive charge by way of reglistered mortgage on the
Scheduled Recelvalbles and all insurance proceeds, both present
and future.

4. Excluslve charge by way of registered mortgage on secority of
all rights, title, Interest, chaims, benefits, demands under all the
docunents gertaining ko the Praject Documents Doth present and
future.

5. Exclusive charge by way of reglstered mortgages on the Escrow
Account and the DSR Account along with all monigs

credited, therain {in wh - farm the same may bal,
and all mveslmenrs In respect theraof (in whatever form the same
may be).

5| MCICT Bank 11d AfC Y, - Hl 11.25%
623905028781 [PV, 165.73)

6| ICICE Bank A7C CY. - 10.35%% The Facillty, all itevest thareon, costs, charges, expanses and all
07400550026% Main 1,245.33 other monies in respect thereol shall be secured with Other Fadlity
by:

1. Firsl Fari Pazzu charge by way of reglstered mortgage on the
Property.

2. First Pari Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on the
Project | excliding the £ald units {as speahed In Annexugre IIE
herete, but induding any cancellations and excluding the units
charged to PE Ghobal Limited_

3. fivst Pari Pastu charge by way of registered mortgage on the
future Scheduled Receivablas of the Praject 1 and all Insurance
proceeds, bath present and future,

4. First Par| Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on
security of all rights, title, interest, clatms, benefits, femands
under the Project Documents of the Project 1 both preseat and
Tuture.

5. First Pan Passu chacge by way of registered mortgage on the
Esc,row J\c:ounr,.rs of the Progect 1 and the DSR Account alf menies
credited /o d thereln {in farm the same may be},
and all mvestmems in respect thereof {in whataver form

the same may bel;

7| HOFC Bank Afe - CXY.- 5209 Book Owver Draf

MBIZTEHN04TIE

Tolal C.¥.-3,579.95
(P.Y. -4,164,66)




Runwai Drevelopers Prlvate Limited
Hates to d.

Note 28
Lease Liabilities - Current
Lease Liabilities {vefer noke 53 )

Note 25
Trade pavables

Ta Farties ather 1han refsted parties

it Total outstanding duss of micro enterprises and small enterprizes
Iy Total outstanding dues of crediters other than micra enterprises and small enterprises

Retention money

1) Dues of micre en and small

for the year ended 315t March, 2024

iy Cues of creditors other than miclo enteronises and small enterprises

For lransactions with related parties, refer to note 47

For explanations on the Company’s credit rizk management proceses, refar to note 57

All amounts in ks. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

As at
31t March, 2023
21st March, 2024 {Restated]
- 1.23
- 1.23
Az al
As at Aist March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Resizted]

{Refer Mote E3)

1445
6,796,001

331276

6237
E,0483.93

142.39
1.799.13

10,130.22

10.79%8.22

bDetalls of dures to Micke, Small and Medlum Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medlum Entesprises Development Act, 2006 {1efer nate ne 53)

Ageing of trada payables ¢

Aj Ageing of trade payables as on 315t March. 2024

Particular

for

from the b

ing date

Unbilled

Less than 1
year

1= 2 ytar

2 -3 years

More ithan 3 yeacs

Total

Undisputed trade payobles

Micia erderprises and Al enterprises

7.58

B 54

16.45

Orhers

21.8%9

5.144.5%

744 89

3.49

28219

5,795 03

Disputed trade payables

Micro emterpHses and small enterprises

Others

Total

2168

5,152.41

744.89

11.98

882.19

6,512.46

Particular

B} Aqeing of trade payables ag on 31st March, 2023

Far following periods from the bocking date

Unbilled

L&ss than 1
year

1 - year

2 -3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undizputed trade payables

HMicrg enterprizes and small enterpiises

216.62

493.09

35.89

17.51

026

762 77

Otheis

1.149.41

6.327.60

42,55

113.90

365.43

2,048.93

Lritputed brade pavables

Micro enterprizes and smali enterprises

Qthers

Total

1,365.43

6, 820.6%

128.48

331.41

365.69

2.£11.70

Retention money |s collected and retained based on vanpus terms and conditions agreed upon wath the contractors. In varlous instances, retention money is payable when the milestone of the
sqtire tel of services is cormpleted and that Loo with a covenant that g will be pald after a period which ranges betwesn 3 o 5 years, if no dehciency is found during this speclfied perlod towaids
the services which were rendered by them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

Note 30
Other current financtal Habilities
To parties other than related parties
Salary and benus payable
Fecurlty deposits
Deferred income
Expenses payable
Other Pavable
Interest accrued but not due
Amcunt payable towards canceied flats

Note 31

Other current liabilities

To parties other than related parties
Advance from custemers &
Soclety Maintenance payablke
Statutory dues payable

Drelerred liability against purchase of development right:

Other pavable

7 Refir nole 46 - Rovenwy from conlrads with customery

Hote 32

Current pravisions

Propvigion for gratuity

Provision for compenzated absences

Refer Note d3 eaployee henelir Ryprncpe

As at
5 Bt 31st March, 2023
316t Macch, 2024 [Restated]
Jze2 248,85
1.372.02 1.252.07
2025 44,00
#3254 179,36
- 115.20
155,89 33533
56,81 596,20
247036 2,764.91
Az at
As at 31st March, 20232
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
—iBefer Note 63}
95.432.09 72,950.04
16296 39525
30%.30 454.64
F.0ELFA 444 98
- FEXAT]
1,02,967.09 82,502.50
As al
% ot 21zt Maech, 2023
A1t March, 2024 [Rectatad]
31.59 29.67
2716 2578
58,15 53.45




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated)
{refer note 63}

Note 33
Revenue from operations

Sale of Flats 23,197.55 23,821.23
Sale of TDR - 718.38
Income from lease rental 1,258,590 1,018.59
Sale of Electricity Power &60.05 61,55
Deferred revenue from joint development arrangement 1,382.23 1,098.68

25,898.73 26,718.43
Other operating revenue* 1,558.96 1,524.55

27,497.69 28,242.98

* Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed payment from customers, other

charges towards sale of flat.club usage charges etc.
Refer note 46 on revenue from contracts with customer

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated)
{refer note 63)

Note 24
Other income
Business support service 150.00 710.00
Interest income
on fixed deposits 78.3% 121.53
on debentures - 26.96
on ICD 574.69 563.10
on other deposits 561.64 2.49
Profit on safe of Property Plant and Equipment 854.66 0.02
Profit on redemption of mutual fund .90 1.03
Share of profit from firm {alsc refer Note 55) 160.57 417.60
Miscellanecus inceme 784.97 276.27
Fair value gain on investment 1,488.60 14.69
Reversal of Provision 83.27 -
Sundry balances written back 354.95 3,877.12
5,100.64 6,010.81

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated}
{refer note 63)

Note 35

Cost of construction and development expenses

Cost of construction and develcpment expenses 33,491.42- 54,249.55
33,491.42 54,249.55

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated)
{refer note 63)

Note 36
Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of stock




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standaione financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 {Restated)
{refer note 63}

Note 37
Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction
work-in-progress

Opening stock

Finished goods 22,112.36 32,025.69
Construction WIP 1,39,793.72 87,812.85
Stock in trade 571.00 70.00
Closing stock
Finished goods (19,770.30) (22,112.36)
Construction WIP (1,59,634.61) (1,39,793.72)
Stock in trade {576.64) {571.000
(17,504.47) {42,568.54)

Refer note 56 on Construction work in progress.

For the year ended

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 (Restated)
{refer note 63)
Note 38
Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and benus 3,896.38 3,242.37
Contribution to provident and other funds
{refer note 43 employee benefit expenses) 90.23 75.00
Gratuity expense
(refer note 43 employee benefit expenses) 30.95 31.58
Expenses related to compensated absences
(refer note 43 employee benefit expenses) 15.36 22.94
Staff welfare expense 150.71 95.03
4,183.63 3,466.92
Less: Transferred to construction work in progress {3,035.32) {2 384.63)
1,148.31 1,082.29

For the year ended
For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 {Restated)
{refer note 63)

Note 39
Finance costs

Interest cost an financial liabilitiy measured at amortised cost

On fixed period loan 5,290.04 4,958.43

Other interest cost 191.44 69.88
Dividend on redeemable preference shares - 2.31
Finance chames 50.17 33.99
Total Interest expense 5,531.65 5,064.61
Less: Transferred to construction work in progress {3,453.69) {(2,544.20)
Total finance cost 2,077.96 2,520.41

For the year ended

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 {Restated)
{refer note 63)
Note 40
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment{refer note 3} 210.87 202.47
Amortisation on right to use asset (refer note 4) - 7.31
Depreciation on investment property (refer nore 5) 89.54 89.54
Amworlisalion of intangible assets (refer note 8) 46.98 3.h%

337.39 302.87




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 {Restated)
(rafer note 63)
Note 41
Other expenses
Electricity charges 353.89 342.59
Cost of Project 407.87 -
Repairs and maintenance
Building 5.14 11.41
Others 629.93 430.58
Insurance 32.12 31.60
Rates and taxes 408.96 495.42
Legal and professional fees 96.82 307.24
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 34.94 42 .45
Advertising and sales promotion 1,027.00 3,885.28
Loss on Sale of Kurla Property 441.03 -
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets D.38 -
Donation 102.00 5.95
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 57) 243.40 313.08
Brokerage commission 348.86 289.53
Allowances for expected credit losses - 217.78
Miscellaneous expenses 406,99 913,98
Other outsourcing expenses 0.14 10.70
Sundry balances w/foff 64.45 84.40
4,603.92 7,382.09
Payment to auditor*
Audit fee 27.00 42,00
Certification 7.94 0.45
34.94 42.45

* Exclusive of G5T




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalene financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earmings per share is caltulated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deductlng preference dividend and

attributabie taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable for the year to equity shareholders (after adjusting for dividend on the
preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into eguity shares,

Continuing Operations
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and difuted EPS computations:

Sr. no. Particulars

A Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic / diluted earnings

B Qutstanding number of equity shares
i Total number of equity shareholders outstanding at the beqginning of the year
fi Total number of equity shareholders outstanding at the end of the year
iii Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as
autstanding at the end of the year (as per Ind AS 33 "Earnings Per
Share”™)
v Basic and Diluted sarnings per share (in Rs.)

Discontinued Operations
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Sr. no. Particulars

A Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for basic / diluted earnings

B Outstanding number of equity shares
i Total number of equity shareholders outstanding at the beginning of the year
i Total number of equity shareholders outstanding at the end of the year
iti Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as
outstanding at the end of the year (as per Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per
Share"}
iv Basic and Diluted earmings per share (in Rs.)

Combined {Continuing & Discontinued Operations)
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compukations:

Sr. no. Particulars

A Profik attributable to the equity sharehoiders for basic f diluted earnings

B Outstanding number of equity shares
i Total number of equity shareholders outstanding atk the beginning of the yea
il Tokal number of equity shareholders outstanding at the end of the year
il Total weighted average number of equity shares considered as
outstanding at the end of the vear (as per Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per
lv - Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Naotes

For the year ended

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

21st March, 2024 {Restated)
(refer note 63)
7,487.66 8,254.88
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
3.36 3.70

For the year ended

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

31st March, 2024 (Restated)
(refer note 63)
{3,249.54) (35.36)
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
(1.46) {0.02)

For the year ended

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

31st March, 2024 {Restated}
{refer nnte 63)
4,238,12 8,219.52
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
2,228.90 2,228.90
1.90 3.68

Earning per Equity Share been cafculated /restated, as applicable, for all the year(s)} presented after considering the new number of equity shares post sub-
divislen and issue of bonus shares, as explained in Note 21, in keeping with the provisions of the applicable Ing AS.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2. Sensitivity analysis method

The sensitivity analyslis have been deterrnined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligatlon as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptiens may be correlated,

Furthermcre, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
obligation as reccgnised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

VII The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total

Insurer managed funds MWIL MNIL
VIII Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate 7.14% 7.20%
2. Salary escalation 9% 9%
Indian Assured Lives
Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14
3. Mortality rate during employment Mortallty 2012-14 (Urban) {Urban)
4, Mortality post retirement rate 0 0
S. Rate of employee turnover 29% 29%
Notes :

"(i} The actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March,2024 The present value of the
defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.”

{ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term
of the gbligations.

(iit) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand
and supply in employment market.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Interest rate risk:
A fall in the discount rate which Is linked to the governiment securlties rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher

provision.

Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the

galary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liabllity.

Asset liability matching risk:
The plan facae tha ALM rigk Ae to the matching cash flow. antity bac to manage pay-out basad on pay as you go basis from own funds.

Martality risk:
since the benefits under the plan is not payable for lIfe time and payable till retirement age onfy, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(ii}). Compensated absences
The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the company.

As at
As at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)

Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year g7.09 77177




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43
Employee benefits expenses

(A} Defined contribution plans

Contribution to defined contributfon plans recognised as an expense for the year are as under:

For the year ended 31st

March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated)
{refer note 63)

Employer's contribution to provident fund 88.71 73.35
Employer's contribotion to ESIC 1.37 1.50
Labour weifare fund contribution for workmen 0.11 .13

(B} Defined benefit plans
(i} Gratulty (unfunded}

Gratulty Is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and reslgnation in terms of the
provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, Benefits would be paid at the time of the separation.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as foliows

I Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{Restated)
{refer note 63}

1, Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 70.70 100.52
2. Interest cost B.29 5.18
3. Current service cost 20.66 24.13
4. Past service cost - -
5. Liabillty transferred infacquisitions 48.03 23.66
§. Liability transferred out / divestment (2,28} (29.07)
7. Benefits paid directly by employer {1.27) (10.29)
8. Benefits paid - -
9. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 1.39
10. Actuarial changes arlsing from changes in financial assumptions 0.23 {6.66)
11. Actuarial changes arising from changes in expericnce adjustments .52 .90
12. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 144.88 115.76
IX Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheat
1. Present value of defined benefit abligation at the end of the year {144.88) (115.76)
2. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -
3. Amount recognised in the balance sheet {144.88) {115.76)
4. Net (liability )/ asset- current {31.99} {29.67)
Net (liability)/ asset- non-current {112.89) {86.09)
III Expenses recognised in the statement of proflt and loss for the year
1. Current service cost 20.66 24.13
2. Interest cost on benefit obligation {net) 8.29 5.18
3. Total expenses included in employee benefits expense 28.95 29.31
IV Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demegraphlc assumptions - 0.05
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.23 {0.84)
3. Actuarial changes arising from changes jn experience adjustments 0.52 6.84
4, Return on plan assets excluding interest income -
5. Recognized in other comprehensive income 0.75 6.05
V Maturity profile of defined benefit ohligation
1. Within the next 12 months (next anneal reporting perlod) 31.99 29.67
2. 2nd followlng year 30.43 18,70
3. 3rd following year 25.08 20.35
4. 4th following year 22.20 17.27
5. 5th following year 17.66 14.17
6. Sum of years 6th to 10 years 41.38 34.69
7. Sum of 11 years and above 10.62 9.20
VI Quantitative sensitivity analysis tor signiticant assumptlon i5 as below:
1. Increasef(decrease) on present value of defined benefits cbiligation at the end of the
year
{l) One percentage point increase in discount rate (3.65) (3.27)
{ii} One percentage point decrease In discount rate 3.89 3.50
{i} One percentage point increase In rate of salary increds, 3.21 2.05
(i) One percentage point decrease in rate of salary inched; (3.07) {2.96}
(i} One percentage point increase in employee turnove {1.14} {1.49)
(il) One percentage polnt decrease in employee turnovel 1,17 1.54
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Metes to standalane financial statements for the year ended 315t Masch, 2024

Note 45
Segment repoerting

The Company has identffied following as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 103!
a) Real ectate segmeant;

b} Lease rental activity;

£} Power generation (refer note 20)

As per para 4 of the Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, segment has besn disclosed in consolidated financial statements. Hence, no separate
dizclosure has been glven |n standalone finanaial statement of the Company.

Nete 46
IND AS 115 - Revenua from Contracts with Customers
{@} The amaunt of INR 23,197.55 lakhs (Previous Year: INR 23,821.23 |akhs) recoqnised in contract liabilities has been recognised as revenue,

(b} Sigmificant changeas in contract azzat and contract liabilities balances are as follows:

As at

- As at A1st March, 2023

particulars 315t March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63}
Contract liability
At the beginning of the reperting period { advances from custemers including
Amount Payable towards canceled Flats) 73,546.21 55,484.21
Amounts received durlng the year 45,140.20 41,6883.13
Amount recognized as revenue during the year 23,197.55 . 23,821.23
Al the end of the reporting pericd 95,458.86 73,546.21
As at
As at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)

Contract Hability (JDA} -
At the beginning of the reporting period £,444.98 . 9,543.66
Ampunts received during the year - -
Amount recognized as revenue during the vear 1,382.23 1.098. 68
At the end of the reporting period 7.062.75 B.444.98
Contract asset (1DA)
At the beginning of the reporting peried £,444.98 9,543.66
Amounts paid during the year - .
Amount recognized as Expenses during the year 1.382.23 1,098.68
At the end of the reparting period 7,062.75 B.444.98

Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuant to agreements executed with such customers for construction and sale of residential
units. The terms of agreements executed with customers require the customers to make payment of consideration as fixed in the agreement on achisvement of contractual milestones though
such milestones may not nacessarily coincide with the goint in time at which the Company transfers control of such units to the customer. The Company is liable for any structural or other
defects in the resldental units as per the terms of the agreements executed with customers and the apphcable laws and regulations.

The Company expects to satisfy the said performance abligations when {or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such performance obfigations relates are completed Such real
astate projects are in various stages of development a5 ab 31st March, 2024,

(c) Disagaregated revenue information
Set out below | the dizaggregation of the Company revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services,




Runwal Developers Private Limited

MNotes te standal financial stat ts for the year ended 31st March, 2024
Asg at
As at 315t March, 2023
A1st March, 2024 [Restated]

Particulars (Refer Note 631
Timing of transfer of goods or services - Continued Operaticns
Revenue from goods or servlces transferred to customers at a polnt wi time 268,115,464 27,144.32
Revenyue fiom goods oF services transferred over time 1,382.23 1,098.68

Timing of transfer of geeds ar services - Discentinued Operations
Fevenue from goods or services transierred (o customers at & point i time 574.85 553,90
Revenue from goods or services transferred gver time , -

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised {Continued Operations) the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

For the Year

Ended
Particulars F;' ;stth:‘:;ahr::::d 31st March
2023 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)
Revenue as per contracted price 23,197.55 23,821.23
Adjustments - -
Discount - -
Revenue from contract with customers 23,197.55 23.821.23
(d} Assets recognlsed from the costs to obtain or fulfil @ contract with a customer
As at
As at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
Particulars (Refer Note 63}
Briokerage costs pertaining to sate of residential units 348.86 289,53
Deferred Brokerage Outstanding at Balance Sheet Date 5,461.94 2,692,186

{&} The transaction price of the remaining performance obligations as at 31st March, 2024 INR 1,19,977.69 lakhs, 315t March 2022 is TNR 1,10,708.17 lakhs. The same is expected to be
reconised within 1 to 5 years

(f} Revenue from major custemer (more than 10% of tumover)

For the year ended
For the year ended  31st March, 2023
31st March 2024 {Restated)
{refer note 63)

Mr.Bhavesh Tarachand Parmam 2,400.00 -
Mr. Bilav Dilip Parmani 2,400.00

Reconciling the amouwnt of revenue recognised {Discontinued Operations) the statement of profit and [oss with the contracted price

For the Year
Ended

Particulars F;:::;:;zr;:::d 31st March

. 2023[Restated]

(Refer Note 63}

Revenue as per contracted price ' 574 88 553.90
Adjustments - -
Discount

Revenue from coatract with customers 574.58 553.90




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Motes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 315t March, 2024

(Al amounis in Rs. Lalhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Note 47
Related party disclosure
A) List of related parties

(i} Person having Control
Mr. Sandeep Runwal

(ii) Close family members of person having control
Mr. Subhash S. Runwal (Father)
Ms. Chanda S Punwal (Mother}
Ms. Priyanka Runwal {(Spouse)
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal {Brother)
Mr. Saurabh Sandeep Runwal (Sond
Ms. Sanya Sandeep Runwal {(Daughter)

{iii} Subsidiaries companies
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Aathon Developers Private Limited{wef 01-11-2023)
R Retail Ventures Private Limited {wef 30-13-2023 previpusly was Joint Venture}
R Mall Developers Private Limited({waf 25-04-2023 previously was Joint Venture)
Galleria Retail Private Limited {wef 25-10-2023)
Runwal Construction Private Limited(wef 06-07-2023}
Siddhatva Developers Private Limited{wef 30-10-2023}

(iv) Subsidiary partnership firm
Runwal Constructions*

(v) Associate company
Wheelahrator Alloy Castings Limited*#* (ceased wef 22-03-2024)

{vi} Subsidiary of Subsidiary
Histyle Retail Private Limited{Subsidiary of R Retail Ventures Private Limited)

{viii} Others [entities controlled by person mentioned (i} & {ii} having control or joint control)
Anand Developers
Ariane Qrgachem Private Limited
Harizon Projects Private Limited
Subhash Runwal HUF
Runwal & Assuuidles
Funwal Farms Private Limited
Runwal Foundation
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Sanabh Ventures Private Limited
Sandeep Constructions
Saurabh Funwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

{ix} Key management personnel (KMP):
Ms.Pallavi Matkari, Director
Mr.Ravl Sharma, Director {Appointed Wef 24-02-2022 & Resigned Wef 31-03-2023)
Mr.Mahesh Iyer, Directar (Fesigned on 16-05-2022)
Mr.Ashok G Darak, Director {Appointed Wef 12-03-2024)
Mr.Mukesh Jaitiey, Director (Appointed Wef 21-03-2024)
Ms.Sujata Rao, Director
Ms.5weena Natr, Lompany Secretary (Appomted wef U1-12-20.22)

* Runwal Constructions was converted into Private Limited Company wef 06th July, 2023,
** Wheelabrator Alfoy Castings Limited ceased to be associate wef 22.03.2024

B) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Year Ended
Sr. . . - For the year ended 31st March
No. Nature of transaction / relationship 31st March, 2024 2023[Restated]

{Refer Note 63}

1 Sale/purchase of material

Runwal Constructions - oz

Runwal Construction Pyt Ltd 0.05 -

Horzon Projecks Private Limilted - 12.71

R retail Ventures Frivate Limited - 0.38

R, Mall Pevelopers Private Limited - 0.27
les L

Horizon Projects Privale Limited
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{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Purchase

Runwal Constructions

R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limited
R Mall Developers Pvt, Lid.

Purchase Return
Horizan Projects Private Limited

2 Sale of flats/Property/Land
Mr.Sandeep Runwal
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

3 Sale/purchase of Fixed Assets

Runwal Constructions

4 Sale of Shares (Avalor Developers Private Limited}

Mr.Sandeep Runwal
5 Sale of TDR
Runwal Constructlons

& Reimbursement of expenses
Horizon Projects Private Limited

Aethon Developers Private Limited
Siddhatva Developers Private Limited

7 Sub- letting Rent Income
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

] AMC Charges

Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited

9 Sale of electricity
R Mall Developers Private Limited

10 Business facility services
R Mall Developers Private Limited

11 Project Management Fees
R Retail ¥Yentures Private Limited

12 Maintenance service given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

13  Dividend Paid
Anand Developers
Runwal Associgtes
Funwal Constructions
Sandeep Constructions
Mr.Sandeep Runwal
Ms.Privanka Runwal
Hr.Subkadh Subhash Runwal
Mr.Saurabh Runwal *
* amount is less than 500

14  Investment in partnership firm/AOP
Rupwal Constructions
Capital Introduced
Capilal Wilhdrawn

15 Share of profit /(loss) from firm

Runwal Constructions (Till S5th July,2023)

16 Security deposit given
Given

Aethon Developers Private Limited

Repaid

Acthon Developers Private Limited

17  Securlty deposit taken
Recejyed
R Retail Yentures Private Limited
Repaid

R Fetail Ventures Private Limited
Harizon Projects Private Limited

3.23 15.26
- 4.19
- 5.94
- 0.86

603.15 -
2,110.00 -
1,513.31 -

15.00 -

- 718.38

71.43 -
278.56 -
0.02 -

5.79 L.00

- 242,57
621.61 507.17
60.00

150.00 650.00
52.95 52.37

- 0.01
- 0.01
- 0.01
- 0.01
- 1.58
- 0.06
- 0,64

g8.828.88 23,776.70
14,255.22 23,692.70

160.57 417.60
1,100.00 -

1,100.00

852.50 : 582.50

882.50 882.50 oo

0,287.93 /7




Runwal Revelopers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18  Intercorporate deposits received

Taken

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited - 150.00

Repaid

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited - 150.00

Runwal Farms Private Limited - 508.00
19  Intercorporate deposits given

Given

R Retail Yentures Private Limited 1,150.00 -

Avalor Developers Private Limited 8,600.00 31.00

Ariane Grgachem Private Limited £,163.90 190.00

Galleria Retail Private Limited 29,515.00 -

Runwal Construction Private Limited 8,434.07 -

F. Mall Davelopers Private Limited 12,500.00 -

Aethon Developers Private Limited 18,414.00 -

R Retail Ventures Private Limited 1,130.00 -

Avalor Developers Private Limited ~ 6,900.00 -

Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 520.00 235.00

Gallerta Retail Private Limited 11,475.00 -

Runwal Construction Private Limited 19,620.42 -

R Mall Developers Private Limited 12,500.00

Aethon Developers Private Limited 5,924.00 -
20 Loan Taken

Taken

R Retail Ventures Private Limited 1,272.63 -

Repaid

R Retail Venturas Private Limited 1,272.63 -
21 Loan Given

Given

Saurabh Sandeep Runwal 1,414.00 -

Received

Saurabh Sandeep Runwai 1,345.70 -
22 Investment In equlty shares

Avalor Developers Private Limited - 99.00

Runwal Construction Pvt Lid 100.00 -

Galleria Relail Privale Limibed 1.00 -

Aethon Developers Private Limited 1.00 -

siddhatva Developers Private Limited 1.00 -

Sanabh Ventures Private Limited * - 1.00

*Sold in the Previous year {0 unrelated party
23  Redemption of debentures

H Mall Developers #nvate Limited - 100000
24 Interest on debentures

R Mall Developers Private Limited - 26.93
25  Advertisement Expenses

R Mali Developers Private Limited - 2,500.00
26 CSR expenditure

Runwal Foundation 243.40 313.08




Runwai Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

27

28

29

30

31

32

)

B8

Salary
Ms. Privanka Runwral
Mr. Mahesh Iyer

Mr. Ashok G Darak{wef 12-03-2024]) & Salary

Considered from that date)
Ms. Sujata Rao

Mr. Ravi 3harma

Ms. Sweena Nair
Mr.Sandeep Runwal
Ms.Sanya Runwal

Brokerage charges paid
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP

Capital Subsidy
Funwal Constructions

Sharing of infrastructure
Runwal Construction Private Limited
Harizen Prajects Private Lirnited
Ariane Orgacham Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Runwal Foundation
{Transaction of nen moenetary nature)

Maintenance Service and Property Tax Reimbursment

Ms.Chanda Runwal

Donation Given
Runwal Foundation

Amount due to / from related parties

Inter corporate deposit
Given
Avalor Developers Private Limitad
Galleria Retail Private Limited
Aethon Developers Private Limited
Runwal Construction Private Lirmited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

Advance from Customer

Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Saurabh Runwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

Security Deposit
Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Mr, Subhash Runwal

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

50,00 90,00
- 30.53
12.90 -
62.87 39.97
- 3578
25.68 7.32
150.00 -
7.31
54.24 -
- 10.00
7.19 -
100.00 -
Year Ended
For the year ended 31st March
31st March, 2024 2023[Restated]

{Refer Note 63}

1,731.00
18,040.00
12,490.00

1,684.57

5,643.90

B.31

15.00
115.00

Investment of capital In partnership firm (fixed and current capital}

Runwal Constructions®

Investment in debenture
Harizan Projects Pyt | td

Other advances
Mr. Subhash Runwal

Investment in equity shares
Avalor Developers Private Limited
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Galleria Retail Private Limited
R Retail ventures Frivate Limited
Aethon Developers Private Limited
Funwal Constructlon Private Limited
Siddhatva Developers Private Limited

Trade receivablas
Runwal Construction Private Limited
Horizon Projects Private Limlted
R Mall Developers Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

2,000.00
6.00

85.00

463.00
1.00
20,313.00
1.00
100.00
1.00

43.45
70.22
21.61
899.14

31.00

59.40
8.31
1,513.31

15.00
115.00

18,236.69
7,000.00
6.00

100.00
1.720.86
463.00

20,313.00




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Co

Loan Given
Mr.Saurabh Sandeep Runwal

Trade payable
Runwal Construction Private Limited
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited
R Retail ventures Private Limited
R Mall Bevelopers Private Limited

Reimbursemeant receivables
Siddhatva Developers Private Limitad
Aethon Developers Private Limited

Maintenance receivablas
Mr.Subhash Runwal
Ms.Chanda Runwal

Salary Payable
Ms. Privanka Runwal
Ms. Sujata Rao
Ms_ Sweena Nair

Lease Rent payable
Mr.5ubhash Runwal
Mr.Sandeep Runwal

bividend payable
Mr.Subodh Subhash Runwal

Advance to KMP
Ms.Sujata Rao

tion of key m g

Nature of transaction / relationship

Short-

tarm employee benefits

Post-employment pension and medical benefits®

Other

long term benefits®

Termination benefits

Share

* Provislon for gratulty and leave encashment benefits are determined on actuarial valuation basis. Hence the same is not

bazed payments

separately reported here for KMPs.

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

The transactions with related parties are made on terms eguivalent to thoze that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

68.71 -
3.52 a.320
041 1.38
2.05 4,19
0.12 2,900.00
0.02 -
278.56 -
- 3.18
7.19 3.59
- 5.12
- 219
- 1.45
Q.13 1.53
0.03 0.18
- 0.66
0.24 0.24
Year Ended
For the year ended 31st March
31st March, 2024 2023[Restated]

{Refer Wote 63)

nt personnel of the Company

348.76

203.59

assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial pasition of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecurad and sattlement occurs in cash.

3y

LS B

Uns
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notas to standal financial stat for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

(All amaunts in Rs. Lakhs. unless otherwise statad)

Hote 45
Information on assoctates, jsint venture & subsidiaries
__ Percentage of voling power

Ax at

. As at
Name of the entity Frincipla place of businass 31t March, 2024 3 1;.:;;?“,
Subsidiarias
Avalor Developars Private Limited India a23.00%% 100.00%
Punwal Construction Private Linited? India ab.99% 100,00%
R mall Develgpers Private Limited{30% of shares held by
Avalor Davelopers Private Linntedy india 49 75% -
. Retail Ventures Private Limited (50% held by Galleria
Retail Developers Private Limited) Inda 50.00% -
Galleria Retail Private Limited India 100.00% -
Aethon Developers Private Limited India 100.00% -
Siddhatva Developars Privata Limited India 1060.00% -
Hiztyle Retail Privale Limited{ 100%% of shares held by f
Retail Yentures Private Limited} India - -
Joint venture
k. mall Cevelopers Private Limited# Indla - 49 75t
R Retail Ventures Private Limited (RRVPL}S Indla - A3.57%
Subsidiary of joint venture .
Fearcantage holding of joint ventira (RRVPL)
Galleria fetail Private Limited India - 180.00%
Histyle Retail Private Linvdted= India - 100.00%;,
Aethon Developers Private Limited India - 100.00%
Associates
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited** India - 34,26%

*0n the Gth july 2023 Funweal Construction was converted in Runwal Construction Private Limited.
* ¢ Wheelabratar Alloy Castings Limited ceased to be assaciate wef 22.03.2024
#F Mall Develapers wel 25.04. 2023 and R Retail Venturas Private Limited wel 3(.10,2023 Ras been considered a2 subsidjary

Note 56

Fair values disclosure

The fair values of the financial assets and Yabilities are included at the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged dn a current transaction between marker particlpants at the
measurement date, other than i a forced or Eguidatlon sale.

Fair value of cash and shart-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term [eans from banks and okher finansial institutfons appraximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitizs of these instruments.

The Company uses the fallowing hierarchy For deternuning and disciosing the fair value of financlal Instruments by valvation technlque:

Level 1! Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) m actlve markels for identical assets os labilitias

Level Z:Inputs are other than quotad prices induded within level 1 that are observable for the assets or labilivy, either direcily (i-e. prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3: Inputs that are pot based on observable marker data unobservable inputs, Fair value are determined in whole or in part using a valuatlen model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactlons in the same mstrument not are they based on avatlabls markel data,

Carrying amouat Fair value
Fair value
Ag at March 31, 2024 Falr value thraugh
through ather Amaortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
profit or loss comprehensive
income

A. Financial assets
Non-current

Investments 3532.92 20,%954.00 344,61 3,188,331

Other finanaial assets 826.13
Current -

lnvestments 700000

Trade recewvables 563.14

Cash and cash equlvalents 77202

EBank balance other than above 1,105.51

Loans 54,256.69

Other financlal assels 683,29
Tatal 3,532,993 - B2,470.79 - 344,61 3,188.31
B. Financial liabilitias
Non-currant

Borrowlngs &2,439.73 - -
Currant

Borrowings 7.185.11 -

Trade pavables - 10,130.22

Qther financial liabilities s 247036
Total - - £2,225.42 - - -




Bumwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial stat

ts for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Bs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

l:arryix_:g amount Fair vaiue
Fair valua
Fair valus Mthrough
As at 3i1st March, 2023[Restatad] {Refer ifote 63} through other Armortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
profit or loss comprehensive
incoma
A. Financial assets
Non-current
Investments 348,32 22 65680 34832 -
Qther financlal assets 1,4E1.9%
Current
Investivents 25,136.6% -
Trade recelvables B35.43
Cash and cash equlvalents B,222.84
Bank lalance other than above 2,181,237
Loans 9,248,838 -
Other finanoal assets 338,58
Totat 348.32 - 70.060.14 - 348,32 -
B. Financial fiabijlities
Non-current
Barrowings 43,526.09 - -
Lezase Liabiity 348
Current
Borrowrings 4,621.20 - -
Leasa |iablity 1.23
Trade pavables 10,748.22
Other financial liab 2,764.91
Total - - 61,665.13 - - -

'During the reparting period ending 315t March, 2024 and 31st March 2023 , there were no transfers betwean Level 1 and Level 2 far value measurements.
The management agsessed that cash and cash equivalents, loans, short term deposits/loans/overdrafls, trade receivables, Inter corporate depnsits, trade payables and other current
liabilitiesfassets approxi their carrylng amounts largely due to the short-tarm materities of thase instrements.

The fair values for security depesits approximates s carrylng amount as the same are repayable on demand.

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cast
Current [pans measured at amortised cost includes inter corporate loans, the falr value of which Is as staled below:

Az at
As At
31st March, 3“[‘;:::::::]023
Particxrlars 2024 {Refer fote 63}
Loans 50,256.6¢ 9.348.88

As Jgans are current in nature, fair vadue of inter corporate foans qiven are consldered to be at carrylng amount.

Nate 51
Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital

, capital ncludes lssued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent, The

prunary objechive of the Company’s capital I t iz ko the shareholder value,
The groups policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to malntain nvestor, creditor, and market confidence and ko sustain fuiure development of the busi M g I} the
return on capltal as well as the level of duadends to ocdinary holders,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of changes in economlc conditions and the requirements of the financal covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capftal to shareholders or [ssue new shares, The Company monitors capital using & gearing ratio, which is net
debt dividaed by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, tnterest bearmng loans and borrawings, less cash and cash equivalents, ex¢luding discontinued operations,

As at At at
3ol Marih, 31st March, 2023
2024 [Restated}
{Afer Hute 83)
Particulars
Borcavinga{Nola 23 and Mole 27) 60,624,84 AE,147.29
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Mote 15
eq { 3 77202 822285
Hat debt 68, B53,82 34,924.94
Eauity 2,228.90 223890
{Other eaulty 1,11,377.77 1.07.140.19
Total Equity 1,13,606,67 1,08,369.09
60.61% 36.50%

Gearing ratic

In order to achicws this overall objective, the Company’s capltol management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that It meets tinancial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrovtings that define capital structure requirernents, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to imnwediately cail loans and borrowings, Thera have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any interast-bearing loans and borcowing in the current period.

'Mo changes were made in the objectives, pollcies or processes for managing capital during the years endsed 31et March, 2024 and 31t March, 2023,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Motes Lo standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024

(Al amaunts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nete 52
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Cempany's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowlngs, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to
provide guarantess to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include lpans and advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly fram [tz aperations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's semor managermeant oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior managament
ensures that the Company's financisl risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed i accordance with
the Company's policies and rlsk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrurment wil floctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and cormodity risk. Financial Instruments alfected by market risk indude deposits, FyTOCI mvestments.

The sensitivity analysls In the follovang sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023,

The analysls exclude the Impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obliganions; provisions; and the non-financial assets and
ligbilities of foreign operatlons.

The following assumptions have heen made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This I based on the finanaal assets and financlal llatihtles held at 31st

March, 2024 and 31t March, 2023

Interest rate risk
Tnterest rate risk can be either fair value Interest rate nsk or cash flow interest rate risk, Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing
investmants because of fluctuations in the interest rates, Cash Aow interest rate nsk is the nsk that the Future cash Hows of floating intérest bearing investments will flucturate because of

fluctuations in the interest rates.
The Compary Is exposed to the cash flow interest rate risk due to which the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investrieants fluctuate because of Auctuatlons In the Interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obiigabons; provislons; and the non-financlal assets and
habiities of foreign operations.

Fhe following assumphons have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This i3 based on the financlal assets and fnancial liablllbes held at 31st

HMarch, 2024 and 31zt March, 2023

Particulars Increase/decrease in existing interest rate Effect on profit before tax
For the year endad 31st March, 2024 + 1% 437,93
Fnance cost incurred - 1% [437.93})
For the year anded 31st March, 2023 + 1% {130.96)
Finance cost incorred - 1% 130.96

Exposure to interest rate risk

In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards £0 interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate
interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate finandal instruments in s total portfolic. According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is
only for ficating rate borrowings. The interest rate prohle of the Companys interast-beacing fnancial instruments as reparted te the management

of the Company is as follows.

Particulars As at
Ax at A1st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated] {Refar
Note 63}
Fixed rate instrument
Financial asset ;
Bank deposits 1,752.29 3,790,758 ;
Loans 50,256 69 9,348 .68
{A) 52,008.98 13,139.66
Financiad liabilities
Preference shares
Vehicle Loan . . 194.92 46,65
(B) . . . 194,92 . 46.65
Varlable rate instrument .
Financial liabilities ;
Term loan 40,213.00 0,031.01
Bank gverdraft 3,579.95 4,164.66 H
{<} 43,793.03 13,095,569

Foreign currency risk
There is no foreign currency assets or liabllity as on 31st March, 2024, Thus there is no foreign currency risk as on 315t March, 2023

b} Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a fnanclal Instrument or customer contract, leading to a financlal lass. The Company 15 exposed to cradit risk

from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activitias, induding deposits with banks and financlal Institutlons, forelgn exchange transactions and other
financial Instrumants.

Exposure te credit risk :
The earrying amount of financial assels represents the maximom cred|t exposure,

Trade receivables
Trade recewahles and unhilled revenus are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Crad
through credit approvals, estabhshing credit limits and continuously monitering the credit worthiness of customers to whig
business,



Runwal Developers Private Limited
Hotes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 31st March, 2024

(all amcunts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment lass or gain. The Company Usas a provision matrix to compute the axpected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenuss. The provision matrix takes into account factors such as default risk of industry, historical experience for customers st
The maximum exposure bo credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financizl assets, The Company does not hold coMateral as security. The Company evaluates
tha concentration of risk with respect to trade recenvables g low, as |ts customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely mdependent markets, (for Detal moverment m
provislon for trade receivables refer Note 14)

Financiafl insty ts and bank deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and flnanaal mstitutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance vath the Company's palicy, Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties and within credlt mits asslgned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an
annual basis, The llinmts are set te minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate finanaial loss through counterparty’s potential faiflure to make payments.

The Company's maxenum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31st March, 2024,
Loans

The Ipans and advances alse includes loans In the nature of advances for project and hence risk on them s minimal, Based on the above factors and historical data, loss on collaction of
receivables is not material and hence no provision was made in respect of these loans.

As at
Particulars . As at a1st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated] (Refer
Note 63)
Loans ather than project advances 50,256,649 9,348,885

Expected credit loss assessment of loans as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March , 2023;

Considering the nature of the busmess, the Company has a policy to provide foans to Its group entitles for undertaking projects, based on s primary business model of undertaking
project developments. The loans glven to these entities are repayable on demand and there is no past History for any default / delay f wregularlty In repayments based on demands made.
Mareaver, 3l the group entities to whom loans have been advanced, have substantial potential in the projects to repay the loan based on the valuation of such entities and ther actinties
are controlled and managed by the Company. Accardingly, in view of such control over operations and underlying security of the project / assets, these Ioans are considered adequately
secured for repayments, except In cases where the independent valuation of underlying projects warrant provision for impairment.

€} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk |5 the risk that the Carnpany will not be able to settle or meet its obhgations as they fall dua. The eompany's policy on liguidity risk is to maintain sufficient liquidity in the form
of cash and investment in ligutd mutual funds to meet the Company's operating requirenments with an appropriate level of headroom. In addition, processes and policies refated to such
risks are overseen by senior management. Management manitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basls of expected cash flows. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding maturing within 12 months ¢an be rolled over with existing lenders,

Maturity profile of financial liabilitles
The table below provides details regarding the remalming contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on confractual undiscounted payments,

As atMarch 31, 2024 0n demand Less than 1 year 1t 5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings - 7,185.11 49.971.63 12,468.09 69,624.83
Trade pavables - 6,812.46 3.317.76 - 10,130.22
Other financial liabilities - 2,470.36 - - 2,470.35
Total - 16,467.93 532,289.39 12,468.00 B2,225.41 |
As at 31st March, On demand Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
2023(Restated)

L) iti:
Borrowings - 4,712 86 38,638.47 4,780.60 48,131.93
Trade payables - £,511.70 1.936.52 - 10,748.22
Other finandal lizbilities - 2.764.91 - - 2,764.91
Total - 16,289.47 40,574.09 4.780.60 61,645.06
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Note 53
Leases

Assel given under operating Jlease

tall amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has recovered Rs,1258,90 Lakhs rent from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized during the year in respect of this is given

belour:

Particulars

Rernt income recogmzed during the year

(1) The Company has taken Land on leave and license basis,

Cetails of rental expense recoqnized during the year in respect of this lease is aiven befow:

Particulars

Carrying value of right of use assets at tha end of the reporting period

Transferred to Mon-Current Assets Classified as Held for
Sale and dizcontinued operation {refer nota 20}

{ii} Analysis of Lease liahility:

Movement of lease Habljities

- Opening lease liabilitizs
Addition during the year /period
Interest Cost
Cash outflow towards paymant of lease [labilibias
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements
Transferred to Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for
Sale and discontinued operatlon (refer note 20}
Closing lease liabilities

(i} Maturity analysis of lease Habilities {an undiscounted basis)

FParticulars

Less than 1 year
Batween -5 vears
More than 5 years

{iv] Lease liahilitles included in statement of financial positlon

Particulars

Current
Hon-curment

Note 54
Significant Accounting Judi ts, Estimates and A

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 20232

1.258.90

1.01E.58

1,258.90

1,018.59

As at
31st March, 2024

Asg at
31st March, 2023

106,08

106,08

(108.08)

106.08

As at
21st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

4.70 -
- 580
0.43 0.61
{3.70% (171}

(3.48) -
- 4,790

As at .
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

1.71
398

5.69

As ak
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

1.23
348

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Finandal Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and ligbilities, and the accompanying disclosuras, and the disclosure of conbingent

liabilies, Uncertalnty about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or

llabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are basad on historical experience and varnious other factors that are believed to

be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared, The estimates and underlying assomptions are reviewed on an
vlyulny basls, Pevision o aceound g estimeles s recogilsed b Uhg yeor Inowehioh Uie eslimales gre tevioed g e gy Tuluee yean affecled.

Note 55

Share of profit from investment in partnership firm ("the firm"} and investment in the firm is bazed on financial statements of the such firm a5 audited by
the respective auditor, The audited IGAAP financiad statements of the partnership fire Runwal Constructions (w.e F 15t Octobar, 2021) i which the
Company is a partner excapl for complying with the Guidance Noie on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions {revised 2012} are prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards nolified vnder Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (ax amended) under Lhe Acl read wilh Rule 7 of Lhe Companigs
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (a5 amended), and other generally accepted accounting principles in India {cellectively referrad to 25 “Indian GAAP™),

Note 56
Constroction Work In Progress includes:

Apptoval Fegs
Employee Bansfits
Finance Cost

Land

Materlals & Labour
Others

As at
As at 31st March, 2023
Zist March, 2024 [Restated]

{Refer Note 63}
25,946.71 24,786.24
3,035.32 6,460.22
P,302.64 6,830.41
£5,548,07 £4,550,40
43,140.03 30,094.20
12.660.05 17,054,24
1,59.634,62 1,29.793.71




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to standal financial stat ts for the year ended 31st March, 20249
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 57
Details of corporate social r ibility {C5R) ditures

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Cosporate Soclal Responsibllity (CSR) commulies has been formed by the Company. The funds are
utilized on the activities which are specified in Schedule ¥If of the Companies Act, 2012

As at
Asg at 31st March, 2023
Particulars !
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63}
Gross ameunt required to be spent for CSR activity 24340 312.2%
Amount spent during the year 243,40 313.08
Dataile of axcess i
Balance excess spent as at the beqinning of the year 2.20 1.37
Amount spant during the yesr * . 243.40 31308
Amount required to be spent durmg the year 243,40 312.25
Balance excess spent as at the end of the vear 2.20 2.20
During the current yaar, the Company has spent Rs. 243.40 Lakhs {P.Y, 313,08 Lakh) to Runwal Foundatien for Varous CSR activity,
Hote 58
Details of duees to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises;
As at
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
31st March, 2024 [Restated]
{Refer Note 63)
Amount unpaid as at year end - principal 16.45 905.16
Amount unpaid a5 at year end - interext Wik HIL
The amount of interest paid by the buyar in perms of sectlon 16, of the Migro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the ‘Act'yalong with the amounts of the il Nil
i i

paymant made to the supplier bayond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay o making payment {which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the Nil Nil
interest specified under Act.

The amount of Intarest accrued and remalmng wunpad at the end of each accounting year,

il il
The amount of further Interast rermaining due and payable even in the succeading years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually pald to the small enterprise
for the purpose of disallowance a5 a deductible expandlfure under sectlon 23 of the Act. Nil NIl

Disclosure of outstanding dues of micro and small enterprize under trade payables is based on the informaton available with the Company regarding
the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Mediurs Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further, outstanding dugs Lo miceo and
small enterprizes are on account of deficiency in servicef products! documents. Hence, interest has not been provided on these overdus amounts, This
fact has also bean dlackosed in the MSME form T {return} filed on half yearly basis by the Company with ROC, This has been relied upon by the auditor.

Motae 59

The Code on So0al Secunty, 2020 ("Code’} relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment banefits recaived Presidential assent
in 5eptember 2620, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code wil coma into effect has not been notilled
and the final rulesyinterpretation have not yst bean issued. The Company will assess the Impact of the Code when It comes Inte effect and will record any
related impact in the period the Code becomes effective,

Note 60
(1} There are no naw standards that are notified upto the date of issvance of the Company's financial statements,

a) Hewly Issued standards
There were no standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} during the year ended 31st March, 2024,

Note 61
Events occurring after bajance sheet date

{i} ©On 11th July, 2024 a share subscription cum purchase agresment was entered between Cf y, Avalor Developers Private Limited {(Subsicary of
the company) and R Mall Developers Private Limited {Subsidiary of the company) to acquire Class A 20,00,00 Equity Shares and Class 8 47,142 Equity
Shares of R Mall Developers Private Limited, Co has allotted 1,54,67,296 equity shares at Premiom of Rs 535/- on preferential basis te Avalor
Developers Private Limited at agreed consideration of Rs. 82,987.66 Lakhs

Note 62
Other infarmation
1 The Company doas not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initlated or pending against the Company for holding any benaml
property.

2 The Company has availed varicus borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns o
statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of account. .

w

The Cempany reglstered il the charges and satisfaction of charges with registrar of companies within statutory period,
4 The Company dows not have any transackions with tompanies sreock off.

5 The Company has not traded or invasted in orypte currency o virtual currency during the vear,

iy

g The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {funding party} with the understanding (wh
recorded in wriling or otherwlse) that the Company shall:

8 directly or indirectly lend er invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannet whalsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
{ultimate beneficiaries) or
by wiovide gy yguotonles, seturily wo Lhe like Lo e on Delialf of Le ullimdte Deneflcianies,

=
The Company does not have any transaction which |5 not recorded in the books of account that has bean surrendered or disclosed as income during 4}
7 the year in the tax assessments under the Incomae Tax Act, 1961 (such a3, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, ,_fo
19G1). 3
ned
the Com) h b declared willtul detaul bank. i} ¥ y ¥ ¥ g "i MUMBA[ =
8 pany has not been declared willtul dataulter by any bank or hinancead mstbibubion or govarnment or any government aulhgiity ¢ othar landa ]
in gecordance with the guidelines on willful defaulter issued by the Reserve Bank of India. %’/ ?"\

Title deeds are held in the name of the company

The Company has not advanced or loaned or mvested lunds (0 any other parson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the

1y understanding that the Intarmadiary shall dwectly or indlrectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an
behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) except for amount of Rs. 29,515 Lakhs advanced by the Company to Gallena Retail Private iimited as
Intercorporate depesit in the month of Gotober / November 2023,



Runwal Deveiopers Private Limited
Netes to standal financiat stat ts far the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 62
Cther information

14 (Continued. ..}
During the year a subsidiary of the Company Galleriy Retail Private Limited acquired shaves of subsediary from White Harbour Invstment Limited
(Ultimate Beneficiary] on 30th October 2023 by ulihsing the above funds,

11, The Company did not provided any quarantee, security or the hke to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Note 63
Amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with Runwat Devetopers Private Limited:

() amalgamation of Dhrruva Woollen Mills Private Limited (DWMPL) with Runwal Cevelopers Private Limited {RDPL):

Durlng the year, the Board of Directors of Runwat Drevelopers Private Limited (“Company® or “Transfaree Company”), in ther meeting held oa 08th May, 2023,
considered and approved a scheme of amalgamation of Dheava Wesllen Mills Private Limited (*Transferor Company™) inte and with the Cempany and theic
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 te 232 and other appllcable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Compromises,
ArT: and Amals } Rules, 2016 and other rules and regulations framed theraunder {“Schame").

The Mambai Banch of the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT} vide its ordar dated 13th February, 2024, have approved the Scheme of Amalgamation
{the "Scheme") of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with the Company vath appointed date of D1st April, 2023, undar section 230 to 232 and other
apphicable provisions of the Compamas Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereundar. The sa-d Scheme has been effective from 11th March, 2024, on
compliance of all the conditions precedent mantioned therein, Consequently, above bsldiary of the Comp got amalgamated with the Company
veef. 01st April, 2023. Since the amalgamated entity 15 under common control, the accounting of the sald amalgamation has baen done applying Pooling of
Interest methed a3 prescribed in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations’ w.e.f the first day of the earhiest perlod presented 1.e. 018t April, 2022
While applying Pooling of Interest method, the Company has recordad ail assets, liabilities and reserves attributable to the subsidlary at thelr carrying valuas
as appearing in the ¢ lidated financial stat: ts of the Ot y as per guldange given in JTFG Bulletin 9,

Further, pursuant ta the Scheme of Amalgamation, the authonsed share capital of the Company has been increased 1o 34,55,50,000 (Previous Year -
29,55,50,000).

The previous yaar figures of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and Staterment of Cash Flaws have baen
restated congidering that the amalgamation has taken place frem the first day of the sarliest period presented i.e., 1st April, 2022 as required under
Appendix C of Ind AS 103,

The stamp duty payable on such issue amoeunting to Rs. 31 has been debited te Sacuritles Fremium Account on 10th April 2024,

The Company alioted (9% Redeemable preferance sharas of R5.10 2ach to the shareholders of the transferee company vide resolution dated Lst Apnl, 2024,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 63 (Continued)}
Below is the summary of restatement of previous year figures: (Refer restated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023)

Amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with Runwal Developers Private Limited:
Restated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2023

As at As at Adjustment/ As at

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023 Elimination 31st March, 2023

{Reported RDPL) (Reported DWMPL) {Restated)
Assets
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7,126.20 217.72 0.02 7,346.94
Right-of-use asset 106.09 - - 106.09
Investmeant property 4,383.88 - (.02} 4,383.86
Intanglble asset 1.42 - - 1.42
Capital work-in-progress 58.14 - - 58.14
Intangible assets under development 167.46 22.ag - 189.86
Financial assets - - - -

i1 Invastments 42,970.75 154.58 {20,080.15) 23,045.18

i} Loans - - - -

ii} Other financial assets 1,467.90 - 13.59 1,451.49
Other nen-current assets 20.43 1.91 - 22.34
Non current tax assets 2,990.59 394,28 {0.01) 3,.384.86

59,295.86 790.89 (20,066.57) 40,020.18
Current assets
Inventories 98,152.94 64,644 .42 0.02 1,62,797.38
Financial assets - -
i} Investments 12,471.55 12,665.13 0.01 25,136.69
i} Trade receivables €53.43 - - 653.43
lil) Cash and cash equivalents 2,753.40 5,469.51 {0.07} 8,222.84
v} Bank balance other than (iii) above 1,576.12 205.26 {0.01) 2,181.37
v} Loans 2,131.22 6,500.73 716.93 9,348.88
vy ther tinancial assets 258.41 F/9.79 (b99.62) 33454
Other current assets 7,246.69 3.075.68 {30.98) 10,291.39
1,25,643.76 93,340.52 (13.72) 2,18,970.56
Total Assets 1,84,939.62 94,131.41 {20,080.29) 2,58,990.74
Equity and liabilities
Equfty
Equity share capital 2,228.90 31.46 {31.48) 2,228.90
Other equity 75.567.52 51,636.80 (20,064 .18) 1,07,140.16
Total Equity 77,796.42 51,668.26 {20,095.62) 1,09.369.06
Man-currant Habilitiag
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 27,493.62 16,032.45 0.02 43,526.09
iy Lease labililies 3.48 - - 348
Provisions 81.87 58.21 - 140.08
Defarred tax liability {net} 1,189.33 {30.55} - 1,158.78
28,768.30 16,060.11 0.02 44,828.43
Current Hahilities
Financial liabilities
i} Borrowings 4,605.86 15.24 4,621.20
#} Lease liabilities 1.23 - 1.23

ifi} Trade payables

{aY total outstanding dues of micro :

enterprises and small enterprises 3132.30 541.85 0.01 205,16
(b} total gutstanding dues of other

than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 6,623.43 3,219.65 {0.02) 9,843.06

iv) Other financial llabilities 2,417.12 369.68 (21.59) 2,764.91
Other current liabilitles 60,286.58 22,194.03 21.89 82,502.50
Provisions 34.62 18.84 {0.01}) 53.45
Current tax liabilltles (net) 4.092.76 §.99 {0.01) 4,101.74
78,374.90 26,403.04 15.31 1,04,793.25

Total equity and liabilities 1,84,939.62 94,131.41 {20,08{(.25) 2,58,990.71




Runwal Develaopers Private Limited

Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 21st March, 2024

Note 63 {Continued)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amalgamation of Dhruva Woeotlen Mills Private Limited with Runwal Developers Private Limited:
Restated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenseg

Cost of construction and development expenses

Purcahse of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and construction wark-in-
progress

Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amaortisation expenses

Other expenses

Total Expenses
Frofit before tax
Tax {ex

Current tax

MAT cradit reversal
Tax related to previous year

Deferred tax

Profit for the year (Continued QOperatlon)
Loss from Discontinuad pperations

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

{i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan
Mat (loss)/gain on IVTOCT aquity Securities

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share

Restated {(Face value of Re. 1 each)
Basic {Face value of Re, 1 each)
Diluted {Face value of Re.l each)

For the year
ended

For the year

ended

For the year

ended
31st March, 31st March, Discontinued
2023 2023 Adjustment "o ations 315;:';3":"’
(Reposted (Reported (Restated)
RDPL) DWMPL)
19,910.28 8,695.30 191.30 (553.90) 28,242.98
1,251.60 4,954.58 (193.26) {2.11) 6,010.51
21,161.88 13,649.88 {1.96) (556.01) 34,253.79
14,018.28 40,231.28 (0.01} 54,24%,55
501.00 - - 501.00
(7,192.35) {35,376.19) - {42,568.54)
847.53 234.76 - 1,082.29
Z,657.28 68.00 {0.02) {204.85) 2,520.41
471.77 42.9¢ 0.01 (217.90) 302.87
577%.19 1,773.43 {1.91) (168.62) 7.382.09
17,082.70 5,980.27 {1.93) (591.37) 23,469.67
4,079.18 5,669.61 {0.03) 35.36 10,784.12
(1,128.03) (1,682.39) - (2,810.42)
313.52 (38.34) - 281.18
(808.51} {1,720.73) - - (2,529.24)
3,270.67 4,948.88 {0.03) 35.36 8,254.88
{35.36) (35.36)
3,270.67 4,948.88 {0.03) - 8,219.52
3.84 2.21 - 6.05
(0.97) {0.56) - (1.53)
3,273.54 4,950.53 (0.03) - 8,224.04
1.47 1,573.81 (0.02) 3.68
1.47 1,573.81 (0.02) 3.68




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Motes to standalene financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2024

(All ameunts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
MNote 62 [Continued)
Amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with Runwal Developers Private Limited:
Restated statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Additions

For the year ended  For the year ended (Elirninations) For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023 Adjustment oty account of 31st March, 2023

{Reported RDPL) {Reported DWMPL) amalgamation {Restated)

DWMPL
Wet cash flows from / {used in}
aperating activities (A) 12,925.74 (10,979.44) (3.26) - 1,949,565
Met cash Hows from / {used in)
investing activities (B) [3,473.79) 3,266.26 Q.00 - {207.53)
Mt cash flows from f (used In}
financing activities (C ) (9.120.01} 1,596.78 3.41 - {7,516.64}
Statement of Reserve Reconciliation on Amal tion of subsldiary as at 1st April, 2022
Patrticulars Secu.”tv Reta!ned Tokal
Premiurn Earnings
DvMPL 20,063.30 26,622.97 46.686.27
Total (a) 20,063.30 26,622.97 46,686.27
i e company and subsidi

DWHMPL [20.063.30) - {20,062.30}
Total {b) (20,063.30) - (20,063.30}
Total (at+b) - 26,622.97 26,622.97

Note : All the disclosures for the comparative pariod for the / as at year ended 31st March, 2023 from nobe 42 to 64 have restated on
account of scheme of amalgamation.

During the year, before order for merger, Dhruva woollen mills private limited has bought back its own shares {no. of shares 600) of Rs 10. each.
Company has created "Capltal redemption reserve” of the same amount {ie. Rs 6000), which has been shown in other equity,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 64

{i} Other than disclosed, there are no other significant events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements
as at the Balance Sheet date.

(i} Previous period figures have been re-grouped and rearranged whenever necessary to conform to current years's preparation.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Singhi & Co. For Runwal Developers Private Limited
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Firm Regn. No 302049

\\..\\v u{% %o,
wl;f\bg,.‘ \\“:v
X

<,

|n.d Agal Ashok G Darak | Sujata Rao

Partner Director Director
Membership No.123314 DIN: 08673236 DIN: 03478837
Date - 23-09-2024 Date - 23-09-2024

Place - Mumbai Place - Mumbai

/).
g
Al

Sweena Nair
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17636



B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4™ Floor
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel

Smgﬁz GZ CO Mumbai — 400 013 (India)

+91 (0) 22 6662 5537 / 55338
mumbai@singhico.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Runwal Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Runwal Developers private Limited
(the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
the “Group”), which includes the Group’s share of profit in its joint ventures and associate, which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate, referred to in the Other Matters section below,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its joint ventures and associate as at March 31, 2024, and
their consolidated Profit and other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, its joint ventures and associate in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with these ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore, Ahmedabad, & Raipur
Hyderabad, Nagpur
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, compare with the financial information of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate audited by
another auditor, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
and based on the financial information provided by the management, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group including
its joint ventures and associate in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Management
and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, and of its joint ventures and
associate are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group, and of its joint
ventures and associate.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based
on our audit.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, and of its joint ventures
and associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group, and of its joint ventures and associate to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditor. The financial information of other entities, included in the
Consolidated Financial Results, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. The amalgamated financial statements of R Mall Developers Private Limited (Transferor Company) and
Avalor Developers Private Limited (Transferee Company) as at 31 March 2024, are considered to give
effect to the scheme of arrangement as on 25 April 2023 (i.e. the appointed date for the scheme of
arrangement as pronounced by National company law tribunal, Mumbai bench vide order dated 09th
December 2024 and effective date is 16th December 2024), the financial statement of the above company
was audited by other auditors, whose report expressing unmodified opinion thereon, has been furnished
to us by the Management.
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2. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 5 (five) subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 2,35,733.87 lakhs as at March 31, 2024, and total
revenues of Rs 26,720.16 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 3,157.42 lakhs for the year ended on that date.
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which
financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the
management. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of Rs
587.91 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of 1 (one) joint venture and 1 (one) associate, whose financial statements, other financial
information have been audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect our reliance on the work done
by and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified
by management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, joint venture companies and associate companies, incorporated
in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph. We give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit on the consideration of report of the other
auditors separate financial statements and other financial information of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associate, as noted in the other matter paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. Wel/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associate, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its joint ventures
and associate, Incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and its associate,
incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report.

g. The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, incorporated in India for the year ended March
31, 2024

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate, as noted in ‘other matters’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated
financial position of the Group, its associate and joint ventures, in its consolidated financial
statements — Refer Note 52 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group, its joint ventures and associate did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-
term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its joint venture and associate incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2024, in accordance to the provision of the Act, and rules made
there under.

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures, respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the note 65 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures, respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the note 65 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures, shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us
or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the holding company, its subsidiaries,
joint ventures, and associates, incorporated in India

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and based on the other auditor’s reports of
its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and associates incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have used accounting software for maintaining their
respective books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024, which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.123314
Date: 28 December 2024 UDIN: 25123314BMLKYC6230
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of our report of even date of Runwal Developers Private Limited)

According to information and explanations given to us, following companies, which are included in consolidated
financial statements, have certain remarks included in their reports under Companies (Auditors Report) Order,

2020 (“CARQ”) which have been reproduced as per the requirement of the Guidance Note on CARO:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the
auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Holding Company, we report that in respect of
those companies where audits have been completed under section 143 of the Act, there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies included in the

consolidated financial statements except for the following:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding Clause number of
No. Company/ the CARO report
Subsidiary/ which contains
Joint Venture/ qualification or
Associate adverse remarks
1 R Mall Developers U70200MH2018PTC313615 | Subsidiary vii (b)
Private Limited
2 Runwal Construction U41001MH2023PTC406024 | Subsidiary vii
Private Limited
3 R Retail Ventures U45201MH2006PTC163273 | Subsidiary
Private Limited
4 Histyle Retail Private U70109MH2019PTC319330 | Subsidiary
Limited
5 Avalor Developers U70109MH2019PTC324563 | Subsidiary
Private Limited
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Further, according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of the following companies
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the CARO report relating to them has
not been issued by their auditors. Following are the basic details of the same:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding Company/
No. Subsidiary/ Joint
Venture/ Associate as
on 315t march 2024

1 Aethon Developers | U70109MH2021PTC364477 Subsidiary
Private Limited

2 Galleria Retail Private U70200MH2019PTC319329 Subsidiary
Limited

3 Siddhatva Developers U68100MH2023PTC414680 Subsidiary

Private Limited

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.123314
Date: 28 December 2024 UDIN: 25123314BMLKYC6230

Office: Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore, Ahmedabad, & Raipur
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Runwal Developers Private Limited
(‘the Holding Company’) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), its joint venture
and associate (read together with the paragraph of other matter as specified in Annexure A) as of that date .

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The management and the Board of Directors of holding company, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Group including its joint
venture and associate.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A Holding Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Holding company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Holding company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Holding
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Holding company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group, its joint ventures and
associate as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Group, its joint ventures and associate.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Group,
its joint ventures and associate which are companies incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal consolidated
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by such Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it
relates to five subsidiaries which is audited by other auditor, is based on the corresponding reports of such
auditors. Further other one subsidiary of group which are consolidated and report under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls is not applicable to it.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.123314
Date: 28 December 2024 UDIN: 25123314BMLKYC6230
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Runwal Developers Private limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet

as ot March 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
Ax at As gt
w1 tiotes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Mon-cumen! Assets
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4,182.34 7.581.80
(b} Right of use Assal 4 19288 106.0%
{c} Capilal Work In Frogress 5 1.923.14 58.14
[dl irvestment properly & 2,14,827.95 5284212
(e] Invesimend properdy under Construction 7 1.95379.27 -
[} Goodwill on Consofidation a 25,334.84 .22
[g] Oiher Intangible Assels 2 35939 142
Ih] Inlangible Assels under Devalopment 10 21226
{ll  Equity accounted Invesiees 1A 26.374.57
fil Rnanclal Assels
i} Investrents (1] 197205 348.4%
[ill Othet Financiol Assets 12 343150 1.622.18
(k} MNon Current Tax Assels 36.636.53 9.848.94
Il Cther Hon-cument Assets 13 6.797.61 22.34
Tolal Non-curren) Assets 5,04,029.00 29.018.40
Cumrent Assels
[a} Inventories 14 3.58,307.1 22844791
i) Financial Assels
{il Investmenis 15 7.000.00 7.000.00
(i} Trode Receivables 16 3,524.53 1.437.48
{iil] Tash and Cash Equivolents 7 8.860.15 10,478 44
{iv] Bank balances other than {iif] above 8 1,901.2% 2,597.04
v} Loans 9 1206113 B.600.14
v} Olher Financial Assels 20 1.891.7¢ 1.393.42
{c} Other Current Assets 21 51,087.04 21.050.83
Total Current Assets 49,4150 2.81,005.48
Norn-cument assets classified as held Tor sale 22 B1.56 -
Tokal Assets 9.95.728.87 3,80,024.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{0} Share Capital 23 219137 219137
{b]  Olher Equity 24 30535697 1.15,606.61
Equily otiributable to equity holders of the parenl 3,07.548.34 1,17.797.98
lc]  Non - Conirolling Interesls 47 239,39 26,465.14
Total Equity 3.07.787.73 1,44,243.12
LIABILITIES
Nen-cumrend Llabilities
[a] Fnancial Liabilities
i} Borrowlngs 25 2,44,991.70 6494237
fii] Lease Ligbilities 26 A48
i) Oiher Financial Liabilities 27 285302
{b) Provisions 28 296.31 177.25
{c] Delerred Tax Liability jnet) 29 79,785.26 15612 4]
Tolal Non-cumrent Liabiities 3,29,9246.31 a0,942.51
Current Liablithes
{a) Finonciol Liabhities
fil  Bomowings o 15085.86 B8.622.50
fli} Leose Liabilities 3 10271 123
{ii} Tracle Payables az
total oglslcnding dues of micro enterprises and small 44208 1.359 61
enterprises
fotal oulstanding dues of cregifors other than micro 19.640.34 11,98328
enterprlses and small anterprises
{iv] Other Financial Liabilities 33 15.171.80 520207
{b) Cther Curent Labilities 34 2.78.680.31 1.23.006 23
{c]  Provisions 35 227,43 19982
{d} Cumrenl Tax Lobilities 28.421.70 4,443 71
Total Current Liabllities 3,58,012.63 1,54,818.45
Total Llabllities 8,87,930.94 = 2,35.?60.?6_
Total Equity and Liabilitles 95,724,467 3,80,024.08
Malerial accovnling pelicles 2

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these

As per our report of even date
For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accounlanis
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Tin Lakhs
} Forthe yearended  For the year ended
Parkiclidry Hotys Morch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from Operations 3 54,214.82 30,319.08
Other Income 37 4.880.86 4,163.29
Total Income 59,095.48 34,482.37
Expenses
Cost of construclion and development expenses 38 78,032.03 68.435.13
Purchase of Stock in Trade 32 - 501,00
Changes in invenlories of finished goods and
Conslrgucﬁon work in progress ¢ 40 (61.753.40) (57.476.27)
Employee Benefits Expenses 4 2,725.12 1,275.33
finrance Cosls 42 12,255.76 3.220.04
Depreciation and Amaorhisalion Experse 43 10.323.90 1,424.14
Other Expenses 44 16.754.6% 10,281.24
Total Expenses 58,345.10 27,660.45
Profit/{Loss) before share of profit/{loss) of Joint Venture and exceptional items 750.58 8.621.72
Share of profitf{loss} of Joint ventures and assoclate 48 42538 {4,.428.81)
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional lems ond tox 1.245.94 439201
Exceptional Iterns 40 1,15,92%.51 -
Profit/{loss) before tax 1.17.175.47 4392.91
Tax (Expense)/Credit
Cument tax (2.758.80) {2,201.27)
Shor / [Excess) Provision of Tax relating 1o earlier years - {53.84)
Deferred tax [Expense)/Credi 5.946.12 2,7%6.00
Total Tax (Expensa)/Credit 3,187.32 (159.13)
Profit 7 {Loss) for the year (nel of tax) (A) 1,20,362.79 4,233.78
Other Comprehensive Income / {Loss)
{a) tems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss In subsequent peariods
Remeasuremeni Gain /{Loss) on defined benefit plan 50 17.55 13.41
Income Tax lmpact 14.29) {4.10)
Qther Camprehansive Income /{loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 1324 ¥.31
{b) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Share of other comprehensive income in associate and joint venture - 8.29
Tolal Other Comprehensive Income for the year {a+b) (B) 13.24 17.60
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) 1.20.374,05 4,251.38
Profit/(loss) for the year atiributable to:
Equity holders of the parenl 1.20,362.95 1,792.80
MNon - Controlling Inlerest 10.14) 2,440,986
Other Comprehensive (loss) / Income for the yeor aftributable to:
Equity holders of the parem 13.23 16.67
Non - Controlling Interest 0.03 093
Total Comprehensive Income for the year atiributable fo:
Equity holders of the parent 1.20.376.18 1,80%.47
Non - Conlrolling Interest 0.13) 2,44191
Earning Fer Equity Share (EPS$)
Basic and diluted, computed on the basis of profit for the year attributable to equlty a5 5403 0.82
shareholders of the Parent Company (7} (Face Value ¥ | Per Share) 3 '
Materiol occounting policies 2

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these consolldated linancial statements.

For ond on behalf of the Board of Directors
Runwal Developers Private Limited

CIN: U70100MH1988PT 45%
M VW ﬁ% i

As per our report of even date
For Singhl & Co.

Chartered Accountanis

Firm Regisirajon No.; 302049€

inf-Agal Nirmala Murali  SujaTa Rao Sweena Nair
Partnel Director Direclor Company Secielary
tAemibership Mo 123314 DIN: 09408883 DIN: 03478837 Membership Moo 417634

Flace : Mumbao
Date: 28.12-2024

Ploce : Murmbaoi
Date: 28-12-2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
fiiculars Morch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{A) Cash llows from operaling activilies
Profit/{Loss) before tax 11717547 8,621.72
Adijustrnents 1o reconcile profit before 1ax 10 net cash flows:
Cepreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1032370 1,424,186
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset (829.82) (22.76)
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 8.90) {15.72)
Share of profit/{loss) of Joint ventures and associate [495.38) -
Inferest on iIncome 1ax refund [4.04) -
Exceptional item - Gain on Fair Valuation an accounl OF Buisness Combination {1,18,201.58) =
Exceptional ltem - Loss on Fair valuaiion of Investment 2,27207 -
Loss on Sale of Property 441.03 -
Impaimment Loss 3,170.08
Fair Yalualion of Investments (21.15} -
Defered Expenses from Joint Development Arangement 1.382.23 1.098.43
Defemed Revenue from Joint Developmenl Arrangerment [1.382.23) {1.098.68)

Provision for Expecled Credit Loss 50.60 261,71

Licbilities / Provisions no longer required wrilten back E 93.44
Finance Incoms (2.041,08) {1,065.48)
Finance cost 12,255.76 3,220.04
Dividend Income [0.17)

Reversal of Provision {175.21) -
Sundry balances w/back (443.38) {3.877.15)

Provision for Gratulty & Lecve Encashment - OCl Adjusment 21.14 072

Operating profit before working capital changes 23,359,386 8,870.66
Changes In working capital:
Increase /[decrease] in Trade Payables [123.93) 3.798.30
Increase fjdecrease] in Other Courrent and Mon-cument Financial Liabilities [23,129.05) {1,005.00)
Increase /{decrease) in Other Curren Liabilities 86.20B.14 36.275.10
Increase /ldecrease) in Provisions [26.94) -
{Increase}/decrease in Trade Receivables 2,359.80 362,85
[Increase)/decredse in Inventories {63.153.94) {51,687.78)
fincrease)/decrease in Other Current and Non-curen Assets 113,75%,37) 566501
{Increase)/decrease in Current and Non-curen Financial Assets 1.642.84 £,356.69
Changes due to Working Capltal movemenis {9,982.47) (234.83)
Cash flows from operaling aclivities 13.3746.89 8.635.85
Less : Income tax {Paid) {4,731 45) [3,991.20)
Net cash lows irom operating activities (A} 8,44544 4.544.45
(B) Cash flows from invesfing activilles
Purchase of property. plant and equipmenl {2.509.53) {34841}
Purchase of Inlangible assels (including Intangible assels under development) {92.18)
Purchcse of investment property {3.52} (205.78)
Proceeds from Sale of property. plant and equipment 2,162.10 9328
Froceeds from sale of invesiment 1,000.00
Advance against intangible asset under development - [212.26)
Payment towards acquisition of subsiclicries [87.50% 63) -
Invesiment in Preference Shares and unils of mulual funds [net) [1.894.58)
Paymenits for invesiment property under Conslruclions {10,801,87) -
Investment in units of mutual funds {net) - {268.568)
Loans and advances lo relaled parfies and olhers (given)/repaid (nel) 18,275.40 {577.72)
Redernplion/lincrease) of bank deposits (1.548.10) {1.225.109
interest receaived (nonce income) 1.826.6% 41017
Net cash flows from invesling aclivities (B) (52.217.20) {1.134.48)
{C) Cash flows from financing aclivities
Interes! paid (20,272 %0) (8,128.33)
Lease renlal and inleres! payment [58.21) {1.71)
Proceeds from Non-curenl bomowings 11952275 2,607 74
Proceeds / (Repaymenl} of Current borrowings (net) {84,167 05) [10.565 71)
Net cash {used in}) finoncing activities {C} 15,023.90 (.087.80)
Net Increase / {Decrease) in cash and cosh equivalents (A)+({B)+(C) (28,547 .88) (5.577.43)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,408 60 14,9864 43
Additien on account of acquisilion of subsidiary 2753834
8.799.28 9,408.80

Cash and cnsh,c@\!dfe{_lj;‘elxlhe end of lhe year
>~ N0

(=




RUTNIWU UeYSIORpeTs fiivadile Limiiled
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2024

%in Lakhs
: for the year ended Forthe year ended

Eaiiculors March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Notes to Cosh flow Statement :
Cash and cash equivalents as par above comprise of the followling :
Cosh and cash equivalents {refer note 17) 8.850.15 10,478.48
Less : Book Qverdirgft {60.87) {1.06%.68)
Balances as par statement of cash flows 8,797.28 %.408.80

The Stcdernent of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' sel out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financlal staternents.

As par our report of even date For and on behokf of the Board of Directors
For Singhl & Co, Runwal Develapers Frivate Limited
Chartered Accountants CHN: U70100MH1988PTC0A44643
Firm Registraljon No.: 302049E ;.U*}‘JJ S M}
bhl‘;t}n;ulo Muroli Sujatd Ra Sweena Nair
\oirector Director Company Secretary
mMembership No.: 123314 DIN: 09408883 DIN: 03478837 Membership No: A17636

Place ; Mumba
Date: 28-12-2024

Place : Mumbai
Dote: 28-12-2024




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. General information

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Runwal Developers
Private Limited {the Holding Company} together with its subsidiaries {coliectively referred to as The
Group*) and its joint venture and associate enfity for the year ended March 31, 2024,

The Holding Company is a private limited company incorporated in the year 1988 and domiciled
in India having its registered office at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, 5th Floor, Off, Eastern Express
Highway, Opp. Sion Chundalohatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022,

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024, were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide Board meeting held on dated December 28,
2024.

Material Accounting Policies and notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended
fo serve as a means of informative disclosure and a guide to better understanding of the financiol
position of the Group. Recognising this purpose, the Group has disclosed only such policies and
notes which fairly present the needed disclosures,

2. Summary of material accounting policies
1. Basis of preparation
a. Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with
Indion Accounting Standards {Ind AS) nofified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 {as amended from time
fo fime) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule I}, as applicable to this financial staterments.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the material accounting
policies and measurement bases summarized as below. Thaese accounting policies have been
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements,
except where the Group has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition
to Ind AS.

b. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following:
o Assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value
o Certgin Financial instruments are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments}

Principles of Consolidation and Equily Accounting
(i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries include all entities over which the Group has contol, The Group controls an entity,
when the group is exposed 1o, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

and has the ability 1o affect the returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the
investee,

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group members’
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements fo ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by
line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany
tfransactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on fransactions between Group companies
are eliminated.,

Non-conftrolling inferests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Balance Sheet respectively,

(ii) Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates or Joint Ventures are all entities over which the Group has significant influence or Joint
control but not control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voling rights or where decisions over the relevant activities are unanimous in case of joint
venture. Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting after initiolly being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the excess of cost of investment over the proportionate
share in equity of the associate/ joint venture as at the date of acquisition of stake is identified as
goodwill or capital reserve as the case may be and included in the carrying vatue of the
investment in the associate/ joint venture,

The consclidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations
of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCl of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCL. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
jointventure, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associate, or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate or joint venture. If an entity’s share of iosses of an associate or joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture {which includes any long term interest that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additicnal losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture,

Ii an entity's share of losses of an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture {which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or consiructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial stalemenis for the year ended March 31, 2024

venture, If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit and loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting year
as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group.

After applicafion of the equity method, the Group determines whetherit is necessary 1o recognise
an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture, At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or
joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its
carrying value and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate or joint venture' in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value, Any difference between the
canrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investiment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

d. Current and non-cusrent classification

The group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is;

i) Expecied to be redlised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv] Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

i) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

jii] It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the setlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The operating cycle is the lime between the acquisition of assets tor processing and their
redlisafion in cash and cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Group's real estate operations
varies from project to project depending on the size of the project, type of development, project
complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilifies are
classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets
and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelve
months.

e. Functional and presentation currency

The consclidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ({"INR") which is also the
functional cutrency of the Group. All values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

li. Use of accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

(n the applicafion of the Group’s accounting policies, management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilifies
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actualresults
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both cumrent and future periods. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the
basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Following are the key areas of judgements, assumpfions and estimates which have significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

a. Estimation of net realisable value (NRV) for inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV of completed or developed inventory is assessed by reference to market conditions, prices
and frends existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Group based on comparable
transactions observed fidenfified for similar properties in the same geographical market serving
the saome real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory under development is assessed with reference to market prices and
trends existing at the reporting date for similar completed property, less the estimated cost to
complete construction and an estimate of the fime value of money to the date of completion.

Estimated cost to complete is reviewed at each year end by considering cost escalation and
overruns basis the progress of the project.

b. Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indicafion that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment festing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and ifs value in use. When the carrying amount of an
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Notes to consolidation financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2024

asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal,
recent market fransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
or other available fair value indicators.

¢. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs for impairment calculation, based on Group's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Useful life and residual value of properly, plant and equipment

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in
Schedule |, they are based on technical advice. Assumptions also need to be made when the
Group assesses whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the
asset may be capitalised.

e. Recognifion and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assets,
trends in salary escalation and attrition rate, The discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of
the underlying bonds corresponds to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

{. Fair value measurement of financial instrumenis

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilifies recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable market
wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Any changes in assumptions could affect the tair value relating 1o financial instruments.

g. Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parfies and other
contingencies. For contingent tosses that are considered probable, on estimated loss is recorded
as an accrudl in financial statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not
provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the
likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are
not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounis are received or receivable.
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Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

h. Recognition of deferred tax asseis

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax credits to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probability
with regard to the redlisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the
entity and budgeted data for the future.

lll. Measurement of fair values

The Group measures financial instruments, such as certain investments at fair value at each
balonce sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic bestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuaiion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of uncobservable inputs.

The Group has an established control framewaork with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information is used to measure fair values, then the Management assesses the
evidence obtained from third parties to support the conclusion that such valualions meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Group uses observable
market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability falt into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hiercrchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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The Group recognises fransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

IV. Propedty, plant and equipment & depreciation
da. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The Cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of:

i, its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

ii. any costs direcily attributable to bringing the asset o the locaotion and condition necessary for
it fo be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the item is acquired or
as a conseguence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other thon to
produce inventories during that period.

iv. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of Property, Plant and
Equipment, which takes substantial period of fime to get ready for its intended use are also
included to the extent they relate to the period fill such assets are ready 1o be put to use.

v. Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to
the location and condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner intended
by Management are recognised in Statement of profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book
value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenses incurred for acquisition of capital assets excluding advances paid towards the
acquisition of Properly, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are
disclosed under Capital Work in Progress.

Capital Work in Progress in respect of assets which are noi ready for their intended use are carried
at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group in the year of disposal.
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c. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use on straight line
method as per the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment including property held as
Investment as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation is calculated on a prorata basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the date
the assets are sold or disposed.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

Nature of the asset Uselul life
Computers 3years
Plant & Equipment 5 Years 1o 25 Years
Building 60 years ]
Solor 25 years
wWindmill 22 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicle 8 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically.
d. Derecognition

An item of properly, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any Gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset [calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

V. Investment properties

Building, that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
in use by the Group, is classified as Investment Property. Investment property is measured initially
atits acquisition cost, including related fransaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the canying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The carrying amount of investment property is reviewed periodically for
impairment based on internal and external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the
carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the greater
of the asset's net selling price and value in use.

Investment properties (Building) are depreciated on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are in line with Schedule |l to the Companies
Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.
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initial direct costs incurred by the Group in hegotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method to allocate the cost of assets, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life of investment property is 60 years,

An investiment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognifion of property is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the same period.

VI. Intangible assels
da. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are caried ot cost less accumulated amorfisation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price including any import duties and
other taxes [other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

b. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

¢. Amorfisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the
date the asset is available o the Group for its use. The amortisation period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed atleast at the end of each
reporfing period.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of the asset Amortisation period B
Computer software {ERP) - 5 years - license period
Computer software {other than ERP) 3years _

d. Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from the refirement or disposal of an infangible asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the asset and
recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

VIl. Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non- Current assets and disposal greups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount wilt
be recovered principally through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset {or disposal group) is available for immediate
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sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset {or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable, Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify tor recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-Current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell except for those assets that are specifically
exempt under relevant Ind AS. Once the assets are classified as "Held for sale", those are not
subjected to depreciation till disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subseguent write-down of the asset {or disposal
group] to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs 1o sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment
loss previcusly recognised.

A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset {or disposal
group) is recognised at the date of derecognifion.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet.

Discontinved Operations

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale and that represents a separate line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with @ view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

VIil. Foreign currency transactions / franslations

a. Foreign exchange transactions are recorded ot the closing rate prevailing on the dates of
the respective transactions or at the contracted rates as applicable.,

b. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated into the functional currency ot the exchange rate at that date.

c. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on ftranslating
monetary items ot rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recognifion during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise,

tX. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liakility or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liakilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair valve of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs direclly atftributable to the acquisition of
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financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

a. Financial asseis

All regular way purchases of sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a frade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognised financial assets are subsequentty measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principat and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTIOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenits of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On inifial recognition, the Group makes an irevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining
to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for frading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in tair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the Reserve for equity
instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irevocably elects on
inifial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for frading. Other financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition,

iv. Investment in associates & joint venlure

Investiment in associates are measured using the equity method of accounting after initially being
recognized at cost less impairment as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements,




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

v. Impairment of investiments

The Group reviews its cairying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more frequently
when there is indication forimpairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its camying amount,
the impairment loss is accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

vi, Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of o financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has fransferred its right 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
'‘poss-through'’ arrangement? and either [a) the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has fransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group confinues to recognise the transfered
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associoted liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.,

vii. Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance, The Group recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or gl
frade receivables that do not constitute a financing fransaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amoeunt equal to the 12 month expected credit losses
or at an amount equal fo the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

viii. Step acquisitions (subsidiary is acquired in stages):

When the inifial investment made by the Group in any other entity was not falling under the
category of an associate, joint venture or subsidiary of the entity, cost of such enfity gets
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments™ at fair value.

When such an entity becomes a subsidiary, the Group accounts for the cost of the investment in
the subsidiary as the sum of the consideration paid for the initial interest, plus any consideration
paid for the additiondl interest {accumulated cost approach).

When the accumulated cost approach is applied, the Group recognises the difference belween
the fair value of the initial interest at the date of obtaining control of the subsidiary and its original
consideration in profit or loss, regardless of whether, before obtaining control, the initial investment
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had been measured ot fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI),

b. financial liabilities and equity instruments
i. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equitly instrument,

il. Equily instrumenis

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

fii. Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised inifially at fair value and in case of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, net of directly attibutable transaction costs. Al financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

iv. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
concelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and toss.

c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and licbilities on initial recognition. After
inifial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business model occurs
when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest,
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d. Offsefting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and setlle the liabilities simultaneously.

IX. Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development aclivity is inventorized. Other expenditure
{including borrowing costs) during construction period is inventorized to the extent the
expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition forits intended
use. Other expenditure {including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which
is not directly attibutable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is
charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on
specific identification to the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased
specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

a. Inventories comprise of: (i} Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed
projects {ii) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction /development
including land held for development on which construction activities are yet to commence {iii)
Transferable development rights (TDRs)

b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

¢. Cost of Really construction / development is charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss in
proportion to the revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over
under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty
construction / development includes all costs directly related fo the Project {including finance
cost atfributable fo the project} and other expenditure as identified by the Management which
are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project [net off
incidental recoveries / receipts} upto the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from
the relevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, fransferable
development rights {TDR), construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to the
projects undertaken by the Group.

Net rediizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

X. Revenue recognition

a. The Group has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in this
Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s} with a customer: A contract is defined as on agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for
every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
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Step 3. Determine the fransaction price: The fransaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entifled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the fransaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the fransaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be enfitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity safisfies a performance obligation.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs; or

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
entity has an enforceable right o payment tor performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the pointin time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of fime and over a period of fime based on the conditions
in the contracts with customers.

The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:
(i} Income from Property Development

The Group has determined that the existing terms of the confract with customers does not meet
the criteria to recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time
with respect to coniracts for sale of residential and commercial units as and when the control is
passed on to the customers which is linked to the receipt of occupancy certificate and on issuing
the possession letter of the property, However, in those cases where the receipt of occupancy
certificate is significantly delayed after an application is made towards the respective project with
the appropriate authorities, revenue is recognised when the entire sales consideration of the
respective units are received and the soft possession for fit outs being given to customers,

(ii) Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land ond
Development Rights as and when the control is passed on 1o the customers,

(i) Income from Investment in Partnership Firms & LLP, AOPs

Share of profit / loss in Partnership firms is recognized when the right to receive is established as
per agreement / agreed terms between all the partners / members.
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(iv}) Interest income

Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate {EIR method).
(v) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services fransferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by fransferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
[i.e., only the passage of fime is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract kability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
confract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract,

¢. Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
if the Group expects to recover those costs. The Group incurs costs such as sales commission when
it enters into a new contract, which are directly related to winning the contract.

d. Joint development arrangement

The Group executes projects through Joint Development Arrangements {JDA), wherein the land
owner provides land and the Group undertakes to develop properties on such land fi.e.
development right) and in lieu of land owner providing land, the Group has agreed to transfer
certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds or
certain percentage of surplus to the land owner. Transter of such constructed area or revenue or
surplus in exchange of such development rights/ land is being estimated at fair value as per the
terms of the agreement and accounted for on launch of the project as the cost of development
right [inventory) with its corresponding liability. When the fair value of the land cannot be
measured reliably, the revenue and cost is measured at the fair value of the estimated
construction sefvice rendered to the landowner adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents fransferred. Subsequent to initial recognition, such liability is remeasured on each
reporting pericd depending on the type of the arrangement, to reflect the changes in the
estimate, if any,
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In case of JD arrangements, where performance obligation is satisfied over time, the Group
recognizes revenue only when it can reasonably measure its progress in satisfying the
performance obligation. Until such time, the Group recognizes revenue to the extent of cost
incurred, provided the Group expects to recover the costs incured towards satisfying the
performance obligation.

Xl Income tax

a. Current income tax:

Currentincome tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable profit for the period., The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for oll deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their camying amount in financial statements, except when the
deferred tax orises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
fime of tfransaction.

Deferred tax assets and liakilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is setled. based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asset in respect of carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses are
recognized to the exient that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

c. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred fax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in OCI, in which case, the current and
deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in OCI, The Group offsets current tax assets and
current tax liakilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it intends either to sette on a net basis, or to redlize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Group has a legally enforceable right 1o set off corresponding current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the Group.
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XiI Employee benefits

a. Short term employee benefils

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the reloted service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post-employment benefits

{i) Defined Contribution Plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided,

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.

(i} Defined Benefit Plans

Payment of Grotuity to employees is in the nature of a defined benefit plan, Provision for Gratuity
is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The Group's net obligatfion in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eared in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses
and the return on plan assels {excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest) are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income {OCI). Net
interest expense/ (income) on the net defined lability / {assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / {asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of o
defined benefit plan when the setflement occurs.

a. Other long term employee benefits

The Group's liability towards compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Past services are recognised on a straight line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss as income or expense or recognized under Other
Comprehensive Income 1o the extent such actuarial gains or losses arise due to experience
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adjustments. Obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using
a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance Sheet date
on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are consistent
with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Xl Leases
a. Where Group is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for ail leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities 1o make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date
the underlying oasset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease paymenis made ot or before the commencement date less any
lease incenfives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expecied to be paid
under residual value guarantees.

In calculafing the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Group applies the short-tetm lease recognition exemption to those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase opfion.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

a. Where Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on




Runwal Developers Private Limited

Notes to consolidation financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Inifial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

XIV Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective
borrowing.

Borrowing costs allocated 1o qualifying assets pertains to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time dall the
activities necessary to prepare the qudlifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Borrowing cost are suspended from inventorisation/capitalisotion when development work on the
project/assets is interrupted for extended period and there is no imminent cerfainty of
recommencement of work.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

XV Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent as reported in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. However, for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise of cash and short term deposits as defined in Ind AS 7.

XVl Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equily shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year, Farnings considered in ascertaining the Group's earnings per share is the net profit for the
year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all years
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is also adjusted for
freasury shares. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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XVIl Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required fo settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into gccount the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its canmying amount is the present value of those cash
flows {when the effect of the time vaiue of money is material).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the confrol
of the Group or

{ii) Present obligations arising from past events where itis not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in Financial Statements. If an inflow of economic benefits
has become probabie, contingent assets are disclosed.

Confingent Assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the Financiol Statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the Financial Statements of
the periocd in which the changes occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contfingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.

XVIll Segment reporiing

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenvues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 1o
transactions with any of the Group's other components, and for which discrete financial
information is available.,

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors 1o make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

Accordingly, the Group has identified following as its reportable segment for the purpose of ind
AS 108:

o} Real estate segment;

b) Lease rental activity;

<) Power generation

Redl Estate segment {RE) comprises development of land, sale of land, sale of Transferable

Development Rights (TDRs) and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects. Lease

rental comprises the rental of properties as Shopping Malls. Power generation is through Solar and

Wind Mill Ner
2
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Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit
orloss in the financial stotements. Also, the Group's financing (including finance costs and finance
income} and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are not allocated to operating
segments. Transfer prices between operatling segments are on an arm'’s length basis in @ manner
like transactions with third parties.

XIX Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations for the
businesses which are not under common control. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideratfion transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assefs. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the idenfifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilifies assumed include contingent
licbilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
imespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at
the basis indicated below:

a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with ind AS 12 'Income Tax'
and Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' respectively.

b] Potential tax effects of temporary differences and cairy forwards of an acquiree that exist
at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12

€) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
confractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of the reacquired right.

Any contingent consideration to be fransferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 1092 'Financial Instruments', is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate nd AS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting
dates and ifs subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assefs and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
atits acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or ioss or OC,
as appropriate.
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Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the group are accounted for using
the pooling of interests method as follows:

» The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,

* No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

» The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date,

* The balance of the retained earnings appedaring in the financial statements of the fransferor is
aggregated with the comresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

* The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves
of the ransferee.

+ The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional considerafion in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
sthe transferor is tfransferred fo capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital
reserves,
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4 Right of use asset

_ Z in Lakhs
Particulars Office Premises Land Total
| Cost:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - 113.57 113.57
Additions - 5.80 5,80
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - -
Balance as af March 31, 2023 - 119.37 119.37
Additions - - -
Addition on account of Business 146,38 . 146,38
Combination {refer note 49)
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1446.38 119.37 265.75
Il Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - 597 597
Depreciation charge for the year - 7.3 7.31
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - -
Balance as at Morch 31, 2023 - 13.28 13.28
Depreciation charge for the period 5228 7.31 59.59
Dispasal / Discarded / Adjustments - ~ =
Balance as at Morch 31, 2024 52,28 20.59 72.67
Particulars Office Premises Land Tetal
Carrying Amount:
As al March 31, 2024 24,10 98.78 192.88
As at March 31, 2023 - 106.09 106.09

Notes:

I The Group has taken office premises on Lease period of 40 months with @ non-cancellable period of 36 months.

il Refer note 5% on Leases

5 Copital Work In Progress

Zin Lakhs
FMlant and Electrical Furnifure Office

Description of Assets Bulldings Equipment and Fixiures Equlpments Total
Cost
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - - - -
Additions 58.14 58.14
Capitalised during the year - . = ~
Balance os at March 31, 2023 - 58.14 - - 58.14
Additions 96,73 1,618.23 98.54 23.83 1.837.33
Additions on account of Business 27.67 27.67
Combinaticn {refer note 49
Balance as at Morch 31, 2024 #6.73 1,704.04 $8.54 23.83 1,923.14
Ageing Schedule;

a. As at March 31, 2024 Zin Lakhs

Amount In CWIP for a period of

Capital Worlk In Progress Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years M,: r::::" Total
Projecis in progress 1,865.00 58.14 - = 1,923.14
Total 1,845.00 58.14 - - 1,923.14

b. As at March 31, 2023 _ Zin Lakhs

Amount in CWIP for o period of

Capital Work In Progress Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years M: {(ee:::n Total
Projects in progress 58.14 - 58.14
Total 58.14 - 58.14
Notes:

i) Refer Note 52 (¢} for disclosure of capital commitment af construction of Property, Plan! and Equipment.
ij The CWIP relates to project which are in Progress, No such projects are suspencled.
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& Investment Properly (Measured at cost)

% in Lakhs
Peutic ulews Land Development Righis Buliding Total
I Cosl:
Baolance as al Aprl 01, 2022 9.504.74 - 43,430.81 52,935.35
Additions 1.805.95 1,805.98
Reclassificalion [1711.35) 111.35
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments - - - -
Balance as of March 31, 2023 #.393.3% - 45.347.94 54,741.33
Additions - - 3.52 352
Addilion on account of Business Combinalion
frafer nole 49) 20,482.57 1.51.042.07 1.71,524,64
Qisposal / Discorded f Adjusiments - . = s
Reversal Falr Valuallon -
Balance as of March 31, 2024 .393.3¢ 20,482.57 1.96,3%3.53 22626949
Il Accemulated Depreclation
Balance as ot Aprl 01, 2022 945,25 45,25
Depreciation charge for Ihe year 953.95 531,95
Disposal / Discarded / Adjusiments - -
Bolanca as ot March 31, 2023 - - 1.899.20 1,8%9.20
Depreciation charge for the period . 254234 9.942.34
Disposal / Discarded f Adjusiments
Balance as ot March 31, 2024 - - 11,441.54 11.441.54
Farticulars Land Davelopment lt-hhla Bullding Total
Carrying Amovunt:
As at March 31, 2024 9.393.39 20,482.57 1.84,951.99 2.14,827.95
As at March 31, 2023 9.393.37 43,448.74 5284212
Nates:

4a) The Group investment properties consists of commercial properties at Rmall Mulund, Runwal Odeon mall and Rmall Thane,
R Cily Moll Ghalkopar. Fudher, the Company({R Mall Developsers Privale Limited) had acquired Development Rights [TDR) for conshruchion
of Commercial properly {R City Mall). Company is in ihe process of entering inlo an agreemeni wilh the land owner granting Ihe
perpetual lease/Conveyance of the related land,

b} Falr Value of Investment Propartias
The foir value of the Group's investment properlies at the end of ihe period hove been determined on 1he basis of valualion camied out
by independent valuers regisiered as defined under rwle 2 of Companies [Regislered Voluers of Valualion Rules, 2017, The calculalion
has been conducied through a Sale comparison jechnique, The fair value measvrement for the investment propery has been
categonised as a Level 2 fair value medsurement.
Total fair value of Investment Properly is  3.24,184 Lakhs, [Previous year 2 64,249 Lakhs) as per valuation repor,

<} Informatlon regarding Income and expenditure of investment Property
The Group has earned a rental income of T 12,704.59 Lakhs and has incurred expense of ¥ 24,348 94 Lakhs {including Depreciation ot ¥
?.542.34 Lakhs) towards Direct operating expenses for Investment Properly. [Previouws year rental incorne of ¥ 2,293.03 Lakhs and has
Imeured expense of € 2,110.85 Lokhs Including Depreciation of ¥ 753,95 Lakhs}

d)} Leasing arrangemenls
The Group has given mall premises on lease which includes both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the |leases are
renewable lor fulher perod on mutuclly agreeabls terms and obko include escalotion clouvses. The rental income in respect of leases is
disclosed os 'License fees and renlal income’ in nole 34, With respect to non-cancellable operaling leoses, The uture minirnum lease
payments are as follows:

%in Lakhs

Parficulars As at As at
= —— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Wilhin one year 8,594.01 1.527.15
Later than one year bul not later than § years 5,306.48 1,234.02
Total 14,902.4% 2,641.17

e) Conlingenl renl recognised 03 income during the period T 1,275.60 Lakhs [Previous year 2 299 09 Lakhs})

1) The Group has no reslriclion on the realisabilily of ils invesiment properties and no conlractual obligations lo purchose, conslrucl or
develop invesiment properties or for repairs, mainienance and enhancements.

4] Onadopfion of IND AS, inventory diven on lease renlalis classitied under head inveslmenl properties as per para 57 of Ind AS 40

h}  Cairying amounl of Investmnel Properly charged as security againsl borowings 2 184,251 .29 Lokhs (Previous year 2 43,448.74 Lakhs)

i] Investmenl Properly Land having Grass Carrying Yalue of ¥ 909.30 Lakhs has been Iransferred to the Runwal Conslruclion Prvale Limited
pursvanl (¢ conversion of Parlnership Flrrn The Sald Lond i in the name of Runwal Construclions (Parlnerskip Firm), The litle desd of
above lond are pending mutalion in the naome of the Company which is procedural in noture and the Company is in the process of
gelting this done
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7 Investment Propery under construction

Description of Assels Freehold land Bullding Total

Cost

Bolance as at Aprll 01, 2022 - 1,600,22 1,600.22
Additions - - -
Capilalised during the year - [L500.32] (1.600.22]
Bolonce as af March 31, 2023 - - -
Addillons - 10.852.33 10,852.33
Addiflons on occownd of Business 28,801,829 1,55,725.05 1.84.526.94

Combinalion frefer note 49)

Capltalised duringihe period - . .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 28,801.89 1.66.577.38 1.95.379.27

Note:
a)  Invastment propery Thelude lond and capital work in prograss for construction of shopping mall and commercial oflices. The project 1s
locoted at Mumbai & Pune,

b)  Fair Value of Invesiment Properties al Mumbal
The valuation of investment properly is based on valualion performed by R ¥ Shah & Assoclales, an accredited independent and
govermnment cerlified valver. The valuation has been conducted through Discounted Cashflow Method . Under this melhod, average
rale for estimaled leasable area has been oblained from various lease inslances for similar properiss alter adjusling varous faclors
associated with the propedy under valuation, esfimated developmenl costs, rate of relurn on investment property. all resulling fair valus
eslimates for Invesiment properties are included in level 3.

¢} Fair Value of Investment Propedies at Pune
The valugtion of investment propery Is based on valualion performed by B ¥ Shah & Associates, an accradited independend and
govemnmeanl cerlified valuer. The valualion has been conducted through markel value melhod. Under market value method, ready
recokner rale which is equals to market value of commerclial land properly is considered as fair value of land. All resulling foir value
estimates for investmenl propedies are included in level 3.
Total fair valve of invesiment Property is ¥ 1,95,379.27 Lakhs os per valuation report.

d) Agelng Schedule:
a. As at March 31. 2024 ¥in Lakhs
Amound In investment Property under comtruction for o perod of
Less than 1 More than
Caplial Work In Progress ol 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 32 Years Total
Projects in progress 1,22.240.90 B.813.57 25,874.01 38.450.79 1.95,379.27
Total 1,22,240.90 B,813.57 25.874.01 38,450.79 1,95379.27
b. A3 ot March 31, 2023 % in Lakhs
Amount In Investment Property under construction for a perlod of
Capital Work In Progress LEs iyl 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeans LEm el Total

yeor 3 Years
Projecis in progress -
Total - - - -

e}  Refer Note &3 for information on Investment property under construction offered as secuiily against borrowings laken by the company,

n There are no capital work-in-progress whose compietion is overdue or has excesded lis cosl compared o s ofiginal plan,

& Goodwill on Consolidation

2 in Lakhs
At of As at
el bl March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cpening Balonce as al beginning of he year 022 0.22
Adiusiment on account of Business Combination [refer note 49) 36,324.84 -
Reversal on accounl of cessation of Conlrel of Subsidiory on Merger 0.22) -

Closing Balance as ol end of the yeor 346,324.84 0.22
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? Other Intangible Assets

% in Lakhs
Compuier
Particulars Trademarks T Total
1 Cost
Balance as at Apri 01, 2022 - a2 3182
Additions - Q.53 0.53
Transfer / Disposals / Other Adjusiments - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 32,35 32,35
Additions - 304.80 304.80
Acquisition through Business Combinalion frefer note 49} 14.21 417 108.38
Disposals 3 |3.45} {3.46}
balance o3 at March 31, 2024 14.21 427 .84 442.07
Il Accuvmulated Amortlsallon
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2022 . 2738 27.38
Amorlisalion for the year - 3.55 .55
Transfer / Disposols / Olher Adjusiments - - -
Balance as af March 31, 2023 - 30.93 A0.93
Amorlisation for the period o 5482 54283
Transfer / Disposols { Olher Adjusiments - {3.08) {3.08}
Balance o3 ot March 31, 2024 [+E1]] B82.47 82.48
Compuier
Parliculars Trademarks T Total
Camylng Amount:
As ot March 31, 2023 1.42 1.42
As at March 31, 2024 14.20 345.1% 359.3%
10 Intangible Assets under Development
? in Lakhs
Parllculars Soft
Cost
Balonce as al Apsil 01, 2022 -
Addltions 21226
Balance as al March 31, 2023 212.24
Addlfions 44,80
Capilalised during ihe year 12337 .08}
Bal e as al March 31, 2024 -
Inangible ossels under development s expeanditure towords soflwoare [SAR] which is copltalized during the year.
a) Ageing schedule as al March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2024
¥ in Lakhs
Amount In Intangible it under develop t lor a perfod of
Intangible assels under Less More
development than 1 Ir& i3 than 3 g
vear years years
Projects in progress
Totol -
As at Morch 31, 2023
% in Lakhs
Amount In Intangible assets under develocpment for a pertod of
Intanglble assels under Less 1.2 2.3 More Tolal
development than 1 than 3
years years
vear vears
Prajects in progress 212.24 - - - 20226
Total 212.26 - - - 212.26
Notes:

i} The Intangible assets under development are relaled lo projects which are in Progress. No projects are suspended,
il]  No projecls have exceeded thelr original limelines or onginal budget.
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11A Equity Accounted Investees

Parficulors

As at

Zin Lakhs
As at

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

Unquoted Investments {fully pold)
Investments measured ot equity method
i In Equity Instruments of Associate Companies (Face value of T 100 each)
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
[Previous year - 8,00,400 Shares) {refer note 118B(i] below]
ii. In Equity Instruments of Joint Venture Companies (Face value of ¥ 10 each)
R tall Developers Private Limited - Class A
[Previous year - 19,90,000 Sharss{refer nole 49)
R tAcll Developers Privale Limiled - Class B
[Previous yeoar - 47,142 Shares){refer nole 49)
R Retoil Ventures Private Limiled
{Previous year - 20,31,10,000 Sharesrefer note 49 & refer note 118jil) below)

5,239.37

15,924,258

521092

26,374.57

118 Other Non Cunrent Investmentis

Particulars

Unquoted Investments (fully pald)
a Invesiments measured ot Amortised Cost
i InPrefarence Shares of Other Companies {Face value of T 10 each)
Freeway Contractors Privale Limited
2,00.00.000 Shares - 0.01% Non-cumulative Redsemable Preference Share

b Investiments (Valued ot Falr Value Through Profit or Loss) {fully paid)

i. In Eauity Shares of Other Companies (Face Value of T 100 each)
Ariane Orgachem Privale Limiled
Nil {Previous year - 100 Shares)
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited
8,00,400 Shares (refer note (i) below)

il. InMutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life Saving Fund - Growth - Direcl Plan
14,121,402 units {Previous year 14,121,402 units)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mulual Fund Savings Fund - Growth - Regular Plan
54,776.216 units {Previous year 60,736.6405 units)

Total of Investments valved at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Total Non Current Investments

As at
March 31, 2024

440.03

Zin Lakhs
As at
March 31, 2023

440.03

318831

71.48

27313

017

66,41

28191

3,532.92

348.49

3972.95

348.49

Notes:

1] Ceased to be an associate during the period w.el March 22, 2024 on accound of amalgamalion belween Runwal Commercial Assets

Privale Limited & Wheslabrator Alloy Castings Limited vide order daled March 22, 2024,

i During the previous year, investment of R Retail Ventures Private Limited CCPL Series 2 - 0.01% preference shares of T 20,310 Lakhs equivalent
to 20,31,00,000 shares of T 10 each converted into equity shares of ¥ 20,310 Lokhs equivalent 20,31,00,000 equily shares of

% 10 each approved through Board Resolslion.

12 Other Non-current Finoncial Assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Z in Lakhs

Particylars As of As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Bank deposits
[With moturity for more Than lwelve months){refer note (i) below)] 2.535.63 161.88
Lease Equalization Reserve 446,21 8241
Secuity deposits {refer nole (i) below) 450,04 1,377 8%
Total 3.431.90 1,622.18
Notes:

il fank deposits held as margin money and lien marked for issuing bank guorantees amounting lo ¥962.66 (Previous year E 80 Lakhs)

i) secuily deposils are towards utilily deposils and olher deposits. During the yeor Securly Deposit of Ecsy Homes Privale Limited got converted

into Inler Corporate Depaosil,
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13 Other Non-cument Assels
{Unsecvured, considered good unless stated otheiwise}

Tin Lakhs
As at As at

raiculars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
To relaled porlies
Security depaosit {refer note below) - 20.43
Capilal Advances 150,00 -
Te parties other than related parties
Capital Advances 5.195.06 1.91
Deferred Interest Cost 1,440.57 -
Prepaid Expenses 11:98 -
Total 6,797.61 22,34
Note:

i} Securnity deposits will be adjusted against the land for which the amount is given,
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14 Inventories
(At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Zin Lakhs
As ot As af
[icuiay March 31,2024  March 31,2023
Raw material 7.083.47 527.10
Construction work in progress (refer note (i) below) 3,66,131.38 2,03,473.60
Finished goods 21,235.45 23,946.21
Stock in Trade 576.64 501.00
Stock of Consumables 111.68
Transterable Development Rights 3,170.69 -
Total 3,98,309.31 2,28,447.91
Nofes:
il  Refer note 63 for inventories charged as security against borrowings.
i) Refer note 41 for break up of construction work in progress.
15 Current Investments
Zin Lakhs
As at As at

Raricutars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Unquoted Investments {(fully paid)
Investments {Valued at Cost)
In Optionally Converible Debenture ("OCD"} of other companies
Horizon Projects Private Limited
7.000 (Previous year - 7,000 ) 0.01 % Oplionally Convertibie Debenture Series 3 of 7.000.00 7,000.00
2 1,00,000 each (reter note (i} & (ii) below)
Total 7,000.00 7,000.00

Notes:
il The Tenor of the QCD Series 3 shall be until March 31, 2024, or such extended term as moay be determined by the board with the

prior written consent of OCD Series 3 holders recdeemable at a premium, which is to be decided at the fime of redemption.
At the expiry of the tenor any unredeemed face value OCD Series 3 may be converted to Class C Shares. The OCD Series 3 shall

be unsecured, The QCD Series 3 shall not carry any voting rights,
i} for transactions with relaled parties & balances payable to Related Parties refer note 51.

14 Trade Receivables Zin Lakhs
As at As at

PopisIch March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Secured, considered good 2.614,18 612.21
Unsecured, considered good 1.328.42 816.79
Unsecured, Credit Impaired 442.89 504,24

4.405.49 1,933.24
Allowance for Credit Losses {880.96| {495.56)

3,524.53 1,437.68
Note;

i) Also refer note 55 for disclosures related to reverve and for ageing of receivables.
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17 Cash and Cash equivalents

2 in Lakhs
As ot As at
fadiculars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Balances with banks

In current accounts

(refer note (ii) below) kg 7.661.77

Bank deposits {with original maturity for three months or less)

{refer note (i) below] 209477 2,759.50
Cash on hand 7.02 57.1%9
Total 2,840.15 10,478.46
Notes;

it Shori-term deposits are made for varying perieds of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Group and eamns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

i} Includes ¥ 3.049.15 Lakhs held in escrow account for a project under Real Fstate [Regulation and Development]) Act, 2014

{"RERA"). The money can be ufilised for payments of the specified projects,

18 Bank balances
(Other than cash and cash equivalents)

¥ in Lakhs
As ot As at
LI Ee March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Bonk deposits
{(With maturity for more than three months but less than twelve months) 1.901.39 2:597.04
Total 1.901.39 2,597.04
Note:

i} Bank deposits heid as margin money and lien marked for issueing bank guarantees amounting 231,61 Lakhs (Previous year

2164.43 Lakhs)

19 toans
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2024

Z in Lakhs
As at
March 31, 2023

To related parties

Inter Corporate Deposit (refer note (i} below) 7.118.%1
Others 68.71
To parties other than related pariles
Inter Corporate Deposit 11,583.97 7.310.40
Security Deposit 289.54 1,289.54
Total 19.061.13 8,600.14
Note:
i} Inter corporate deposits given lo relaled parties are repayable on demand. {refer note 51)
2 in Lakhs
As ot As at
Type of Borrower March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total

Promolers 0.00% 0.00%
Directors 0.00% 0.00%
KMP's - 0.00% 0.00%
Related Parties 7.118.21 100.00% 0.00%
Total 7.118.91 100.00% .
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20 Other Cuirent Financlal Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Zin Lakhs

Parficulars F] Asidt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

To related parlies
Receivable towards cancellation of lease 6.00 6.00
Other Advances 85.44
To parlies other than related parties
Other Advances (refer note (i) below] 287.92 219.43
Unbilled Revenue 84,43
Other Receivables 5.50 36.50
Dividend Receivable 017 -
Security Deposils [refer note (i} below) 1,014.24 304.88
Loans and advances io employees 13.72 7.98
Lease Equalization Reserve 236.34 44.96
Interest accrued but not due on depaosits 157 98 771.67
Total 1.891.76 1.393.42
Motes:

it  Other Advances to parties other than related parties are repayable on demand.
i) Security deposits are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards olher deposits which are repayable on
demand.

21 Other Cumrent Assets
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

% in Lakhs
Particulars Ao A
March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2023

Advance against Land/TDR/Others (reler note below] 15,428.28 8,960.28
Advance to Suppliers & Contractors [refer note below) 19.303.05 3.575.21
Advance agoinst Flals 1,351.80 1,080.99
Balances with Statutory authorities 1.570.34 997.85
Prepaid experises 289.25 130.16
Other Receivables 1.27 -
Deferred Inlerest Cost 7%.48
Deferred Brokerage 13,043.57 6,306.34

51,067.04 21,050.83
Note:

i}  Advances agoinsl Land/TDR/Goods/Expenses are towards purchase commitments, are nen - interest bearing in nature and shall
be seltled against future purchase of such assets,

22 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Z in Lakhs

Particulars vt Avat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
windmill Land at Dhule 20.00 -
windmill Plant & Machinery at Dhule 27.50
windmill Plant & Machinery at Dhule 632.52
Total Gross 680.02 -
Less: Accumulated Depreciation on Plant & Machinery [{598.46) -
Net Assets Held for sale 81.54 -
Notes:

i} Refer Note 2{VIl] for accounting policy on Non-current assels {or Discenlinued operalions groups) held for sale.

i} The Holding Company had installed two windmill plants at Dhule, Maharashira. These plonts have been operalionat for a period
of more than 20 years, Inilially the generation was vsed as captive consumption and later with the changes in the rules and

_—tegulations, was sold to the electricity board MSEDCL. The Holding Company at its board meeling daled August 03, 2023

Jﬁ“t@ﬁé‘” to sell the units. The prospective buyers were identified and the same was sold fo Repoweringlndia (OPC) private
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23 Share Capital

Zin Lakhs
As at As at

et March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Share Capital (Fully Paid) {refer note (I} below)
2%,55.50.000 (Previous Year - 29,55,50.000 ) Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2.955.50 2,955.50
Increased on accounl of Busingss Combinalion(s,14,00,000 Equity shares of 1 each) 514,00 -
Total Equity 3,449.50 2,955.50
Praference Share Capilal
1,860,000 {Previous Yeor - 1,60,000} Preference shares of ¥ 10 each 16.00 -
Total Preference Share Caplial 15.00 -
Total Authorised share caplial 3.485.50 2,955.50
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up equity shares
22,28,%0,150 [Previous Year - 22,.28.90,150) Equily shares of ¥ | each 2,22850 2.228.90
Less: Treasury Shores {refer note {ii} below) (37.53} [37.53)
37.52,700 (Previous Year - 37,52,700 ) Equily shares of T 1 each
Total 2,191.37 2,191.37
Notes:

i} During the year Autharised Equity Share Capital of the Holding Company out of 53,00.000 equity shares having face value of T 10 each,
51,40,000 equity shares has been converted 5,14,00,000 to 1 each and 1,860,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each converted to 1,60,000
preference share of % 10 each on March 07,2024, During the previous year, Authorised Equity Share Capilal of the Holding Company has
changed from 1,03,50,000 Equily shares of Rs. 2 10 each & 55,000 Equity shares of ¥ 100 each to 29,55,50,000 Equily shares of T 1 each,

iy Treosury shares
COne of the subsidiary "Runwal Constructions” - a partnership firm{now Runwal Construction Private Limited w.e.f July 04, 2023), holds
37.52,700 equity shares [previous yeor 37,52,700 equity shares) of the Holding Cormpany [Runwal Developers Private Limited), which are
considered ireasury shares.

a. Reconcilation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the and of the reporﬁng_ period.
As ot March 31, 2024  As al March 31, 2023

Farticulars
No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginning of the period 21,91,37,450 636,829
Issued during the perod:

Add: Sub -Division of Existing Equity Shares {refer note (i} below) - 57,31,481
Add: Issuance of Bonus Shares [refer note (i} below) . 21,65,21,840
Less: Treasury Shores - {37.52,700)
Qulstanding at the end of the period 21.91,37. 450 21,%1,37.450

Notes :

il Sub -Division of Existing Equity Shares : Duiing the previous vear, there was sub-division of existing 4,346,829 equity shares of face value
of T 10 each fully paid up into 63,868,290 equity shares of T 1 each fully paid up and issucnce of fully paid up bonus shares pPost sub-
divison of shares in the ratio of 34:1 {i.e. 21.65,21,860 bonus shares of T 1 each fully paid up for 63,648,290 equity shares of T 1 each fully
paid up). which have been approved by Ihe shareholders on September 28, 2022,

1] Issuance of Bonus Shares ; The bonus shores were issved by capitalizalion of profits Iransferred from general reserve. The bonys shares
oilotted shall ronk par possu in all respects and carry the same ights as the existing Equity Shares and shall be entilled to porticipate in
full, in any dividend and other corporate action, recommended and declared after the new Eguity Shares have been allotted.
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b. Terms / rights aftached to equity shares
iy The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is

enfilled to one vote per share.
i} Inthe evend of iiquidation of the Holding Company the holders of the equity shares will be enlitled 10 receive remaining assets
of the Group, after distibution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proporfion to the number of equily shares

held by the shargholders,
c. Details of shareholders holding more than §% shaves in the Holding Compan
Particulars As ot March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shores % holding
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each fully poid
Mr. Sandeep 5 Runwal 15,08,12,120 72.15% 20,53,90.150 92.15%
Mrs. Privanka Sandeep Runwal 2,62,36,665 11.77% - 0.00%
Total 18.70.48,785 83.92% 20,53,90,150 92.15%
d. Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 32_2.4 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
tr. Sandeep S Runwal 16,08,12,120 72.15% 20,53,90,150 92.15%
Totat 16,08.12,120 72.15% 20,53,90,150 92.15%

There |s change in promoters sharehelding during the current and previous year.

24 Other Equity

% in Lakhs
As at As at
fiotiicpiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Reserve [refer note (i) below) [33,695.5%) {33,695.59)
Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note (i) below) 0.04 -
Capital Reserve on Consolidation {refer note {ii] below) 96,795.01 53.821.63
Securities Premiumn [refer note {iv) below) 23,838.64 23,834.64
General Reserve [refer note (v) below) - -
Retained earnings {refer note (vi] below) 2,18,4146.85 71,64393
Total 3.05.354 %7 1,15,6048.81
Zin Lakhs
As ot As at
Foficliar Morch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a. Copital Reserve (refer note {ii} below)
Balance ol the beginning of reporting pernod (33.695.59) [33.695.59)
Movement during the year - s
Closing Balonce (33,695.59) {33,695.59)
¥in Lakhs
As at As at
Ll ED March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
b. Caplial Redempllon Reserve (refer note (i} below)
Balance at the beginning of reporting penod . =
Creation on Redemption of Preference Shares D06 1.803,22
Amount utilised for issuance of Bonus Shares - {1.803.22)

Closing Balance 0.04
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Zin Lakhs
As ot As at
Pawticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
c. Capitol Reserve on Consolldation {refer note (lil) below)
Balance ot the beginning of reporting period 53,821.63 53.821.63
Movement during the yeor 42,977.38 -
Closing Balance #4,799.01 53,021.43
2 in Lakhs
As at As al
P ST Match 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
d. Securities Premium (refer note {lv) below)
Balonce at the beginning of reporting period 23,835.44 24,198.64
Movement during the yvear - {362.00}
Closing Balance 23,834.64 23,834.44
Zin Lakhs
As at As at
hafcviay March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
e, General Reserve (refer note (v) below)
Balance at the beginning of reporting pericd - 22500
Movement during the year - {225.00)
Closing Balance =
%in Lakhs
As at As at
fiticitas March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
f. Retained Earnings (refer note (vi) below)
Balance at the beginning of reporting period 71,643.93 71,376.22
Add: Profit/{loss) for the period 1,20,362.95 1,792.80
Add: Remeasurement of defined benafit plans {net of tax) 13.23 16.67
Add: Reversal of NCI 26.465.14 -
Add: Transfer / Utilisation of Reserves - 36,44
Less: Adjusternent on account of Business Combination {refer note 49} [68.34) -
Less: Creation of Capital Redemplion Reserve [0.06)
Less: Reversal of excess value of Treasury Shares - {1,578.22]
Closing Balance 2.18.414.85 71.443.93
Nat n rpose of reserves :

i} Capital reserve comprises of ¥ 35,718 lakhs on account of merger in the year 2018-19 of Runwal Realty Private Limited ("RRPL"}, Runwal
Projects Privale Limiled {"RPPL") and Rurwoal Township Private Limited {"RTPL" have merged into Runwal Developers Privale Limiled
resulling into o negalive capilal reserve of T 10,175 lakhs, negative capital reserve of T 28,640 lakhs and a positive copital reserve of ¥
3,097 lokhs.

i) Duing ihe previous yeor capital redempiion reserve created out of general reserve & relcined eamings for the redemption of
preference share. It was utilised for issue of bonus shares during the previous period.

ifi] Capital reserve arising on account of consolidation of subsidiaries,

iv] On account of merger of RRPL and RPFPL being accounted for using the pooling of interest method, the securilies premium of the
respeclive companies as appearning on the appoinled dale of merger is merged into RDPL's reserves,

v) The general reserve is used from fime fo time to fransfer profils from retained earrings for appropriction purpases. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, itemns
included in general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently 10 profil and |oss.

vi] Relained earrings represent the amount that can be distibuled as dividend considering the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013. During the year, ne dividends are distibuted to the equity shareholders by the Holding Company.
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25 Non-current Borrowings

% in Lakhs
ﬁ
As af As at
Fanicviars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Secured Borrowings af omorfised cost
Term Loans
From Banks _ 1197,228.70 13,097 .45
From Financial Insfitutions 58,970.85 53,060.74
Yehicle loan from bank 194,92 29.72
2,56,394.47 66,187.91
Amount disclosed under the head Current Borowings (7,075.19) {615.07)
Unamortised borowing cost (2.327.58) (630.47)
Total 2,46,991.70 64,942.37
Note:
i} Refer note 3 for securities, Rate of Interest, Terms of Borrowing and Repayment Schedule of Borowings.
24 Lease Liabilities - Non Current
% in Lakhs
——— y
As at As at
Faieular March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Lease Liabilities - 3.48
Tolal - 3.48
Note:
il Refernote 59 on leases,
27 Other Non-current Financial tiabilities
T in Lakhs
“
As at As at
fatticolars March, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security Deposits from Occupants/Licensees 2,518.55 -
Defered Income (Ind AS) 334,47
Tolal 2,853.02 -
28 Non-current Provisions
% in Lakhs
ﬁ
As at As at
fiEta March, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity frefer note 50) 20186 109.15
Provision for Leave Encashment [refer note 50) 94,45 68.10
Total 296.31 177.25
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29 Income Taxes
a. The major components of iIncome tox expense for the perlod ended March 31, 2024

e —— 2 in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars Mdrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amounts charged to stalemenl of profit and loss
Cuwrent Tax:
Currenl Income Tax Charge [2.758,80) (2.955.13)
(2,758.80) (2,955.13)
Dalemmed Tax:
Inrespeci of cutrent perlod orlginalion 554612 2,726.00
5.944.12 2.796.00
Income tax expense reporited In the statement of profit and loss J.1687.32 {159.13)
Income tax recognised In other comprehensive income
Delerred tax credit on net gain on remeasurements of defined beneflt plans [4.2%) 14.14)
Income tax charge to olher comprehensive Income (4.29) (4.10)
Jotal Income Tox Expense 3,183.03 (163.23)
. Major Components of Deferred Tax Liabliity / Asset {nel)
%1n Lokhs
As of As ot
[ofichas Morch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tox Liabliky

Property. plani & equipmenl [349.99] [1.449.54)

Righl of use asset (24.86] 26.70)

Intangible assel (3.54) 0.88

Investment propery [8.981.58) [12.8464.27)

Financial Assets measured at FYTPL {214.53) {16471}

Lease equalisation reserve {188.48) [58.42}

Revalualion ol invenlory o account of business combination {61.21} 1110.20)

Finished Goods (185.68| {311.25)

Loan Processing Fees [148.53) 131.59)

Delerred Interest Cosl [382.57) -

Conslruction Work In Progress [1.944.57) {1.589.54)

Defered tax igbllty due lo lair valuollon (62.342.79)

Difference in carrying amounl of cor parking equipmenl as perincomea tax and books of accounts [0.07) -
Gross Delemred Tox Liablily {a1,829.08} {14,405.34)
Daterred Tax Assets

Investmient in shores at Amartised Cost 22308 -

Carry forward losses of house property income 3523

Provisions for doubtlul debts 154.72 12902

Provisions for retirement benelits 75.16 48.35

Disollowance under seclion 438 2543 23.64

Discounling on securlty deposlts 1375 (1.7}

Expenses incurred on business combination . 1.72

Adverlisemen) Expenditure 3é4.44 504,00

Advance irom customer 19.44 44,14

Expenses incurred on business combinallon 0.86

Leose Liabilities 2502

Expenses disallowed claimable in luture years 002

Unabsorbed Depreciation 10,40

Deferred tax on inlerest on Inter corporate depaosil 112086

Unpaid M5ME credilors during the year 0.42
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 2,043.80 785.93
Met Defefrad Tax Liabliity (79,785.28) (15.819.41)
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<. Movement in Deferred Tax Liablity / Asset {net) for the perlod ended March 31, 2024;

2 In Lakhs
Parliculars ﬂ_\s at &1;::::’""' of Recognised in Recognised In As at
March 31, 2023 = fion P&L oci March 31, 2024
Tax effect of tems constitulingDeterred Tax Liabiiifles:
Property, plant & equipment [1.449.54) [20.45) 1.119.99 - {350.00)
Right of use asse! [26.70) . 1.84 . [24,86)
Investment properly [12.864.27) - 3.882.71 - 1B.281.56)
financial Assels measured af FVIPL [164.71) - (49.82) - [214.53)
Lease equallsalion reserve assels (58.42) (76.97) 153.09) - (188.48)
Revaluation of invenlary on account of
business combination {2} ) SEE . S5
Deferred Interest Cost . 1382.57) - 382.57)
Finished Goods {311.25) - 125.56 - [185.67)
Unamorfised Loan Processing Fees {31.59) {114.24) - (148.53)
Construcfion Work in Progress [1.58%.54) - [355.03) {1.944.57]
Difference in canying amount of car
parking equipment s per income tax and f0.11) 0.04 - [0.07}
baoks of accounts
Adijustrment on account of fair valuations - [71.244.24) 1.901.47 [62.342.79)
Intongible asset 0.88 . {4.42) {3.54
{16.405,34) {(71,241.7%) 4.118.05 - (81.82%.08)
Tax eftect of ifems constthutingDetemed Tax Asset:
Invesiment In shores ol Amortised Cosl - 223.08 . 223.08
Carry forward losses ol capital fronsaclion 3522 [35.23) .
Provisions for doubtful debts 129.02 100.57 (64,87} - 164.72
Frovistons for retirement benelits 48.35 12,15 11.95 [4.29) 7514
Disallowance under section 438 22.64 1.9 1.40 2543
Discounling on security deposits 117 - 14.92 13.75
Expenses Incurred on business combination 1.72 - [0.84) - 086
Advertisement Expendilure 504.00 - 1141.56) 364.44
Advance from customer 44,14 24.70) . 19.44
Lease Libitity - - 2502 - 2502
Unabsorbed Deprecialion 10.60 10.80
Expenses disallowed claimable in Iuture Years . 0.02 - 0.02
Determred Tax on interesl on ICD 1.120.57 029 - 1.120.84
Unpald MSME creditors during the year . 0.42 0.42
Carry forward losses of Business ' 192.41 {192.41) . .
785.93 1.434.09 {171.93) {4.29} 2,043.80
Net Delerred Tax Liabllity (15.819.41) (69,907.70) 5.946.12 (4.29) (79,785.28)
c. Movement In Deferved Tax Liability / Asset (net) for the period ended March 31, 2023:
2 In Lakhs
As of Recognkedin Recognised In at
e L March 31, 2022 Pal oci March 31, 2023
Tax effect of hems constitytingDeferred Tax Liabilltles:
Property, plart & equipmemn {1.504,97) 5543 11.44%.54)
Flaht of use assal 127.08) 038 [26.70)
investment property 113.323.49) 45922 (12.844.27)
Financial Assets measured at FvIPL 17581} 1.1 [164.71)
Lease equalisation reserve 175300 14.88 {58.42}
Revaluation of invenlory on account of business combination 111020} - L110.20)
Capilol gain on ursold Irventory [land) - .
Finished Goods {397 28) 8603 1211.25)
Loan Processing Fees {31.59) [31.59)
Construction Work In Progress (2.73672) 1.147.18 - {1.569.54}
(18,350.85) 1,744,423 - (16.504.22)
Tax effect of lems constitulingDeferred Tax Asset:
Intangible asset 0.88 0.88
Carry forward losses of hoyse property income 3523 3523
Frovisions lor doubtiul debis 129.02 129,02
Provisions for retirement bengfils 4337 9.08 14.10) 48.35
Disallowance under seclion 438 26.11 {3.47} 22,64
Discounting on security deposils 2811 129.28) (1.17)
Expenses incumed on business combination 2,58 [0.84) - 7]
Advertisemen! Expenditure 50600 506.00
Advance irom customer [395.84) 440,00 - Ad 14
(260.48) 1,051.37 (4.10) 786.81

Net Deferred Tax Liabillity (18,611.31) 2,796.00 (4.10) (15.81%.41)
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29 Income Taxes (Contd..|
d. Reconcliiation of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit mulliplied by applicable lax rote ;
This note presents the reconciliation of Income Tax charged os per the applicable lax rate specliied in the Income Tox Act, 1981 & the achual

provision made in Ihe FAnancial Stalements as at March 31, 2024 with breakup ol differences in Proflt as per the Financial Slatements and os per
Income Tax Acl, 1961,

Tin Lakhs
As al As at

Rartiobiafe March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Profll Before Tax as per Statement of Profif & Loss 1,17,175.47 4,392.91
Tax Rote for Corporate Enlity as per Income Tax Acl, 194 25.168% 25,168%,
Income tox using the Company's domestic tax rate 29.490.72 2,083.53
Tax, 4
Permanent Disallowance 4.988.64 1.032.60
Tax on exempted Incomea . (40.41) [94.59)
Taxable lemporaly dilference _ [4.836,13) [2.266.59)
Income laxed al dilferen! rate [1.205.28) [327.24)
Deduclible lemporary differences 243454 68.40
Unused capilal lossos o ?1.14 ]
Deferred ax not considered In previous year ‘ [195.49)
Comolidation Adjustment 1.282.06 -
Exceptional ltems 129,176,65) .
{Expenses] / income offered in tax books [net) 154,40 [409.99)
Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at effective rate 3.183.03 (109.37)

@ Tox Rale for Corporate Enffty :
The Group has decided to opl for the reduced cofpordle tax rates. Accordingly, the Group has fecagnised provision for income lax as per the
provisions of the relevant section,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

TinLakhs
As at As at
poric viors March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
I Secured
Bank Overdraft frefar note 44) 7,617.50 4,164,686
Current maturities of Non-Current borrowings (refer note 25)
Frorn Banks 5,085.49 394,30
From Others 1.951.73 88.80
Vehicle Loan 37.76 16.93
I Unsecured
Book Overdrafl 60.87 1,06%.66
Preference Shares frefer note beiow (i) 15,35 -
I From related parties
From Others 316.96 388,15
IV From parties other than related paries
From Financial Institution - 2,500.00
Total 15.085.86 8,622.50
Note:
i} 9% Redeemable Preference Shares of 1,53,533 #10 each pending for allotment pursuant 1o business cormbination.
31 Lease liabilities - Current
Tin Lakhs
As of As at
(Qicuions March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Lease Liabilities 102.91 1.23
Total 102,91 1.23
Note:
) Refernole 59 on leqses.
32 Trade Payables
Tin Lakhs
As at As at
LD March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Trade poyables
- Total oustanding dues of micro and small enferprises 408,10 1.201.91
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 13.965.56 2.683.90
Retention money
- Tolal oubstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 253.98 157.70
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and small shierprises 5,673.78 2,299.38
Total 20.302.42 13,342.89
Notes:

i)

30 Current Borrowings

Retenlion money is collecied and retained based on various terms and condi
instances, retention money is payable when the milestone of the enlire set of 5

tions agreed upon with the contractors, In various
ervices is completed and that oo with o covenont

that it will be paid after a period which ranges belween 3 1o 5 years, if no deficiency is found during 1his specified period towards
the services which were rendered by them. Hence, practicatly it is difficult 1o extract the ageing of retention money.

iy For Ageing of Trade payables refer nole 42 and for fronsactions with related parlies & balances payable to Related Pardies refer

i} For details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises under

note 51,

[refer note 58)

33 Other Cument Financial Liabilities

the mMicro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Zin Lakhs
As ot As at

hoglic ulws March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Satary and bonus payabie 60.57 204.62
Capex Creditor 3.237.21 -
Security deposits 10,457 14 3.289.34
Expenses payable 851,93 358.57
Oeferred Income {Ind AS) 305.77 121.22
Interest acciued but not due 21235 342.52
Amcunt payable towards cancelled fals 56.81 59420
Fayable loward sociely [nel) - 168,40
Ciher Payable 119.20
Total 15,191.80 5,202.07
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

34 Oiher Cunrent Liabilities

€ in Lakhs
As al As at
farchion 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Advance from cuslomers (refer note below) 2.70.318:24 1,13,107.48
Advance Income — - 38,12 -
Defered Liability against purchase of developmeni rghts {refer note below) 7.062.74 8.444.98
Statutory dues payabie 1033.79 738.53
Society Maintenance payable 164.72 273.78
Cther payable 62,68 441.46
2,78,680.31 1,23,006.23
Note:
il Refer note 55 revenue from contracts with custorners.
35 Current Provisions
e, %in Lakhs
As at As at
Peirbcotas March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Employee Benefits . T
Provision for Gratuity jrefer note 50} 61,12 40.74
Provision for Leave Encashment (refer note 50 3797 30.54
Provision for Contingent Liability 128.54 128.54

Total 227.63 199.82
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

356 Revenue from Operations

T in Lokhs
For ihe year ended For the year ended
Parliculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Flats 23,.536.43 23,881.90
Sale of TDR 156,34 -
Sale of Services - Income from lease rental 24,415.29 2,473.01
Sale of electricity power 60.05 61613
Deferred revenue from joint developrnent arrangement 1,382.23 1,098.68
49,550,346 28069.72
Other operating revenue frefer note below) 4,664.46 2,249.34
Total 54,214.82 30,319.08
Notes:

it Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges,
cheque bounce charges, club usage charges, HYAC and additional electricit

i) Refer note 55 for revenue from contract with customers,

37 Other Income

inferest on delayed payment from customers,
Y recoveries, car parking income etc,

Zin Lakhs
Fof the year ended For the year ended
HEE March 31, 2024 Mgichsilisozs
Business Support Service 150.00 380.00
Inferest income
On fixed deposits 454,21 263.53
On other depaosits 573,93 211.89
OnICD 798.5] 563.10
Onincorme tax refund 4,04 -
Others 204.43 26.94
Dividend Income 07 -
Fair Valuation of nvestments 2105 14,69
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 829.82 2274
Profit on Sale/redemption of Shars/Mutual Fund 8.0 1.03
Miscelianeous income 1.007.11 472,18
Reversal of Provision 175.21 -
Sundry balances written back 643.38 387715
Project management service - 350.00
Totel 4,880.84 $,1563.29
38 Cost of construction and development expenses
¥ in Lakhs
Forthe year ended For the year ended
LD March 31, 2024 a1 C3 12058
Cost of construction and development expenses 78,039.03 68.435.13
Total 78,039.03 58,435.13
3% Purchase of Stock in Trade
Tin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchase of stock - 501.00
Total - 501.00
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40 Changes in inventories of finished goods,

4

-

42

43

work in progress and stock in trade

Tin Lakhs
For the year ended For the yvear ended
ok culas March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the perlod
Construction wipP 2.03,473.60 1.36,521.4]
Finished goods 23,876.20 33,922.93
Stock in Trode 571.00 -
2.27,920.80 1.70.444 54
Addition on account of Business Combination jrefer note 49) 1,01,439.94
Inventories ot the end of the period
Consiruction WP {3.66,131.38) {2.03.473.50)
Finished goods {21,235.45} (23,946,217}
Stock in Trade {576.64) {501.00)
Transferable Development Rights {3.170.49) -
(3.91,114.16) (2,27.920.81)
{Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work In progress
and stock in frade (61.753.40) (57.476.27)
Employee Benefits Expense
% in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
fERERs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 6.855.04 431507
Contributions fo Provident & Other Funds frefer note 50] 147.34 94.48
Graluity expenses {reter note 50) 66.40 33.34
Expenses related to compensated absences [refer note 50) 2474 33.20
Staff welfare expenses 193.0% 112.98
7.286.43 4,591.07
Transferred to construction work in pragress & lnvesiment property under
construction {4.561.51) {3.315.74)
Total 2,725,12 1,275.33
Finance Costs
T in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
ek March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest cost on financial liability measured at amortised cost
On bank loan 19,182.01 6,674.26
On bank overdraft 145.43 -
OnICD 210.74
Onleqse liabilities 5.70 .
On Others 487,94 263.23
Dividend on redeemable Preterence Shares - 2.3
Finance charges 116,59 1,151 .42
20,148.43 8.101.22
Transferred to construction work in progress & Invesiment property under
construclion {7.892.47) {4.881.18)
Total 12,255.74 3.220.04
Depreciotion and Amodisation Expense
Tin Lakhs
for the year ended For the year ended
LT 0 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on properly, plant and equipment{refer note 3) 723.48 459 34
Depreciation on investment property {refer note §) 9.542.34 953.94
Armortsation of Right 1o use {refer note 4 59.59 7.31
Amorlisaiion of Intangible assets [refer note ?] s483 3.55
10,380.24 1,424
Iransferred 10 construction work in progress & Investmen! property unde (56.34)

LNNstrucion

10,323.90
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44 Other Expenses

For payament to auditors, refer note 53

% in Lakhs
For the year ended For'the year ended
it Maich &1, 2054 March 31, 2023
Cost of project 430,17 59.41
Eleclricity charges LT 938.02
Repairs and maintenance
Building YEET 52.22
Plant & Machinery SO -
Others 1.333.45 772,52
Insurcnce SOEGE 60.14
FRates and tc_lxes 2,425,02 756.75
Legal and professional fees ) 733.59 388.13
Loss on Sale of Property 541,03 -
Impairment Loss of property plant ond equnpmeni 3,170.08 -
Payment to Auditars (refer note below} 40,25 47,62
Adverlising and sales promotion 2.673.00 5,093.95
Rent 0.04 -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 362.58 313.08
Donation 102,00 5.95
Fees & forms - 9.86
Brokeroge commission o 36077 290.47
Allowances for expected credit losses 50.60 261.71
Sundry balances w/off < 93.44
Conveyance Expenses T el 3113
Cost Of Goods Sold She -
Facility Management 72497
Security Expenses 542.86
Hiring and Recuitment expenses 103.77 -
Transmission Rent Charges JlE -
Miscelianeous expenses 870.64 1.095.53
Other outsourcing expenses 0.22 11.33
Total 16,754.69 10,281.26
Note:
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Noiles to Consolidated Financial Statlements

for the vear ended March 31, 2024

49 Business combination {Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2024)

During the year ended March 31,2024 the Group had acqguired controlling stake in R Mall Developers Private Limited, Galleria Retail
Private Limited & R Retail Ventures Private Limited and as a part of the acquisition accounting, the Group measures all assets and
liabilities as at the acquisition date ot its fair values, The Group engaged an independent valualion specialist to assess fair values of
tangible and infangible assets. Fair value was determined using Discounted Cash Flow Method,

Acquisition of R Mall Developers Private Limited

During the year Share purchase agreement [SPA} cated April 01, 2023 was entered between R Mall Developers Private Limited
{"Joint Venture"}, Reco Ghotkopar Privaie Limited {"Joint Yeniure Pariner”) and Avalor Developers Private Limited {“Subsidiary™). As
per SPA 20,00.000 Class A Equity Shares and 47,142 Class B Equity Shares have been Purchased by Subsidiary from Joint Venture
Pariner. The transfer of shares has taken place on April 25, 2023, Thus R Mall Developers Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.t April
25, 2023,

Merger of Avolor Developers Private Limited [ADPL) with R Mall Developers Privated Limited (RMDPL):

National Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai bench vide their order dated December 09, 2024 sanctioned the scheme of merger
between R Mall Developers Private Limited and Avalor Developers Private Limited, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for the amolgamation of the transteror with fransferee. The scheme became effective upon filing of certified copies of the

Orders of the National Company Law Tribunal to Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on December 16, 2024,

The Scheme has oppointed date i.e April 25, 2023, which, Inler alia, provides for amalgamation of Transferar Company and
Transferes Company upon the scheme becoming effective, the business of the transteror stand transferred to ond vested in the
transferee compony from appointed date as a going concern, Accordingly, Financial Statements as ot April 25, 2023 (appointed
date) has been prepared incorporafing the effect of Scheme of merger for amalgamalion of Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company.

Further after giving effect of above NCLT order, Subsidiary company {RMDPL) has held its own shares of at cost of €82.762.01 Lakhs (%
204.71 Lakhs— equity share capital and ¥ 82,557.30 Lakhs - Capilal reserve) [in its balance sheet towards the merger scheme on April
25, 2023 and as at March 31, 2024,

Acquisition of R Retail Ventures Private Limiled

During the year Share purchase agreerment {SPA) dated September 08, 2023 entered between Runwal Developers Privaie Limited
{'Company™), White Harbor Investment Limited [*Joint Yenture Partner”) and R Retail Ventures Frivate Limited {"Joint VYenture"} and
Dead of Adherence (DQA) dated Oclober 26, 2023 entered between Runwal Developers Private Limited {"Company”), White Harbor
Investment Limited ("Joint Venture Partner”), R Retfail Ventures Private Limited ["Joint Yenture”} and Galleria Retail Private Limited
{“Subsidiary™). As per DOA 20.31,10,000 Equity Shares have been Purchased by Subsidiary from Joint Venture Partner. The transfer of
shares has token place on October 30, 2023,

Thus R Retail Ventures Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.f October 30, 2023,




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

49 Business combination {Acqulsitions during the year ended March 31, 2024)

Il. Acquisition of Galleria Retail Private Limited
During the year Share purchase agreement (SPA} dated October 23, 2023 was enlered between Golleria Retail Private Limiled , R
Retail Ventures Private Limiled|"Join Venture”) and Runwal Developers Private Limited [“"Company”), As per SPA 10,000 Equily Shares
have been Purchased by Company from Joint Venture. The transfer of shares hos taken place on October 25, 2023. Thus Galleria
Retail Private Limited become subsidiary w.e.f October 25, 2023,

Assets and Lliabilities Acquired :

¥ in Lakhs
R Retall Ventures Privale R Maoll Developers Privale Gallerla Retall Private
Pariculars timited * Limited ** Limited
As at Oclober 30. 2023  As at Aprll 25, 2023 As at Octobear 25, 2023

Non-Current Asset
Property, plani and equipment 51.20 1,185.54
Right-of-use asset 144.38 -
Capital work-in-progress 7.44 20.23
Other Intangible Asset 23.58 14.80
Investment Properties - 1,71,524.64
Investment property under construction 1,84,526.95 -
Non current tax assets 493.01 498.68
Financial assels - Others 74,40 20287 -
Other non-current assets 5,510.49 296,81 -
Current Assets
Inventories 1.02,590.95 -
Trade receivables - 4,322.04 -
Cosh and cash equivalents 689.99 27,247.92 0.43
Bank balances 10.00 - -
Locns 28,006.00 -
Other financial assets 1,433.55 479.85
Other current assets 9.425.37 1,084.24 -
Total Assets (A) 3,33,059.31 2,06,879.62 0.43
Non-Curmrent Liabillties
Financial llabilities
Borrowings 34,613.08 27.913.49
Lease lialbilities 2277 -
Other financial liabilities - 1,372.97
Provisions 55.82 28.62
Deferred tax liabilily [net) 37.611.24 32,296.47
QOther non-current liabilities - 186.9%
Cumrent Liabilities
Bomrowings 3,602.2Q 88.131.00 6.00
Lease liabilities 128.64 - -
Trade paycbles 5180.99 2,544,40 1.45
Other financial liabilities 24,449.19 4,858.47 -
Other current ligbilities 69,493.69 1,354.47
Current tax liabilities {(net) - 158.80
Provisions 7.06 8.70 -
Total Llabilliles {B) 1.75.064.48 1.60,854.38 T.45
Identifioble Net Assets at Fair Value [C = A-B) 1,57.994.63 44,025.24 {7.02)
Allocated to Non Controliing Interest (D) - 239.52 -
Purchase Consideration
Purchase Consideration Paid 57.508.63 : 1.00
Fair Value of Existing Ownership Interest of 50,00% in 57.508.63
RREVPL as on date of acquistion
Fair Volue of Existing Ownership Interest of 49,75% in - 82,102.53
RMDPL as on dale of acquistion
Purchase Consideration (E) 1.15,017.24 82,102.53 1.00
{Goodwill) / Caplital Reserve (F = C-D-E} 42,977.37 {34,314.81) {8.02}

* amounts as per Consolidated Financial Staterment of R Relail Ventures Private Limited.

= amounts as per Merged Financia! Slatement of R Mall Developers Private Limited. [merged with Avalor Developers Private Limited
wee.f April 25, 2023)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

50 Employee benefits

{a) Condributions to Deflned Contribulion Plan, recognised as expense lor the year are as under :

Pariiculars

Employer's contribution to provident fund
Emplovyer’s contribution to ESIC

Labaur welfare fund contribution for warkmen
Total

¥in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
___Morch31,2024  Maich31,2023
140.21 2471
1.54 1.56
0.1% 217
142,44 95.44

{b) Defined benelit plans
i) Gratuity (unfunded)

Graluity Is payable to all eligible employees of the Group on relirement, death. permanent disablemenl and resignation in
terms of the provision of the Paymeni of Gratuity Act 1972, Benefils would be paid at the time of the separation.

Changes in the present valve of the deflned benefli obligation are as follows :

1 Change in present valve of defined benefit obligation during the year

¥ in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
naricuiars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Presenl Value of defined benafil obligalion al the beginning of the perod 149 89 131.38
2 Addition on Account of Business Combination 4013
3 Interest cost 1515 476
4 Currenl service cost 42.94 28.51
5 Past service cosl - -
4 Liability fransferred infAcquisitions 15.00 36,41
7 Lickility Transfered out / Divestment 12.73) [31,31)
& Benehts paid directly by employer |6.84) [14,13)
2 Benehits paid . -
10 Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions = 177
11 Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumplions 1.60 {8.41)
12 Actuariol changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 19146} o
13 Fresent Value of defined benelit obligation at the end of the period 262.98 14¢.8%
Il Net asset / (labillty) recognised in the balance sheet
#in Lakhs
it For the period ended  For the period ended
AT March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Present value of defined benefit obligalion at the end of the year (262.98) [14%.99)
2 Fair volue of plon assets al the end of the year . -
3 Amounl recognised in the balance sheet (262.98) [149.9%)
4 Net (liability)/ ossel- Current 141,12 {40.74)
5 Met {liability}/ assel- Non-currenl {201.846) [10%.15)
Il Expenses recognised in the stalement of profit and loss for the yeor
¥ in Lakhs
For the period ended  For the period ended
faicylan March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Current service cosl 4974 28.51
2 Interas! cosl on benefit chligation {Net] 15.15 &.74
3 Total experses included in employee benefils expense 45,09 35.28
IV Recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) for the year
% in Lakhs
For the pefiod ended  For the period ended
471 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Actuanal changes arsing from changes in demographic assumptions - [8.85)
2 Actuarial changes ansing from changes in financial assumptions 1.60 {3.75}
3 Actuanal changes ansing frorm changes in experience adjustments {19.16) 887
4 Retumn on Plan Assels, Excluding Interest Income
5 Recognised in olher comprehensive incorme {17.55) {13.41)




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024
50 Employee benefits (Contd...|

¥V  Mclurity profile of defined benefit obligation

Fin Lakhs
For the perlod ended  For the period ended
Particulars _March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| Within the next 12 months (nex! annual reporing year] &61.11 40.74
2 2nd Following Yecar 43.35 24,30
3 3rd Following Year 35.57 2608
4 4th Following year 329 2087
5 5th Following year 27.01 18.02
& Sum of years 6th to 10 years 8499 44,11
7 Sum of 11 years and above 108.25 11.44
VI The Principle Actvarial Assumptions used are os follows:
2 in Lokhs
For the period ended  For the perlod ended
FoICHe March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ciscount rate 74% - 7.22% 7.20%
Salary escalation 8.00% - 10.00% 7.00%

Mortality rate during employment

Indion Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14

{Lrbain) {Urban)
Mortality post refiremeant rote MLA, M.A.
Rate of Employee Turnover 8.00% - 30.00% 2.00%

For service 4.
In case of Subsidiary - R Retail Ventures Prvote Limiled & Histyle Refail Privette Limited it o0 O’éifs y

For service § yeors
ard cbove 2.00% p.a.

Noles:
i} Discount rate s based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as af the balonce sheel date for the
estimated term of the obligofions.

fi}  The salary escaiation rate s arived after taking into consideration the senionity, 1he promotion and other relevant factors. such as,
demand and supply in employment market,

fij The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefil abligation were canied out at March 31, 2024, The present value
of the Defined Benefit Obligafion and the related curent service cost and past service cost, were measured using lhe Projected
Unit Credit Method.

Vil Sensitivity Analysis:
The sensifivily analysis below have been defermined based on recsonably possible changes of the assumptions occuring at the
end of the reporting period. while holding ol other assumptions consiani. The resulls of sensitivity analysis is giver below:

The sensitivity analysis presenied above may not be reprasentative of the actual change in the Projecled Defined Benshit
Obligation as il is unlikely that The change in assumpllons would occur in isolation of one anothear as some of the assumplions may
be corslaled.

Furthermore. in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of Ihe Projecied Defined Benefit Obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit methed at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in
calculating ihe Cefined Benefit QObligalion as recognised in the balance sheeal,

% in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 As ot Morch 31, 2023

Increase In Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
B Change in Rate Assumpiion Assumption Assumption Assumpdion
Discount Rate [~1+1%) [10.08) 11,32 13.71} 396
Salary Growth Rale («/+ 1%} 9.43 {8.71) 3.45 {3.33)
Attilion Rate [-/+ 1%} {2.29} 2.38 {1.34} 1,33
VIl Risks associated with defined benefil plon
Inlerest Risk: A fall in the discount rote which is linked to the government secuilies rate will increase the present

value of the liability requiring higher provision,

Salary risk: The prasenl value of the defined benaht plan liabilily is calculaled by reference to the futyre salaries

of members. As such, anincrease in the solary of 1he members more 1han assumed level will incraase
ihe plan's liability.

Asset iabifity malching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk a3 1o the malching cash llow. entity has to manage poy-oul boased on
pay as you g basis from owen funds

portalily risk: Since the benefils under the plan is nol payable for lifs lime and payable till relirernent age only.
Plan does not have any longevity risk.

¢ Compensoled Absences
g employees of Ihe Group ara entillad le compensated absences as per the policy of the Group,

Zin Lakhs
js I —— As At March 31,2024 As At March 31,2023
renslil obiligation os al end ol period 1537 .43 98 &4




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Flnancial Statements

for the period ended March 31, 2024

51 Related party transactions
a List of reloted portias and relationship

Description of relafionship Name of Related Parlies
Person having Control Mr. Sandeep Runwal
Close family members of person having contro) M, Subhash $. Runwal (Falher)

trs. Chanda 5 Runwal [Mothar]
hrs. Priyanka Runwal [Spouse)
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal {Brother)
Mrs. Snehal Sulzodh Runwal [Sister in Law]
M, Saurabh Sondeep Runwal (Son)
Ms. Sonya Sondesp Runwal [Daughter)
1. Entities over which one or more Key Ariane Orgachem Prvate Limited
Managerment Personnel (*KMP") or Iheir relatives  Horizon Projects Private Limited
have significont influence / control / joint control  Rupii Consultancy Private Limiled
Runwal Famms Private Limited

Il. Entities having significant influence over the Anand Developers
Company have significant influence / control / Runwal & Associates
joint conftrol through voting power or otherwise Sandeep Constructions

Rupri Consultancy Services LLP
Subhash Rurwal HUF
Runwal Foundation
Saurabh Runwal Family Trust
Sanya Runwal Family Trust

Key Management Perscnnel Ms. Pallavi Matkari, Direcior
Ms, Sujato Rao, Director
pr. Ashok Ghanshyam Darak [Appointed wef March 12, 2024)
Mr. Mukesh Gopalkrishna Joitley {Appointed wef March 21, 2024)
Mr. Ravi Sharmao, Direclor [Appointed Wef February 24, 2022 &
Resigned Wef March 31, 2023)
Mr. Mahesh lyer, Director [Resigned on May 16, 2022)
Ms. Sweena Nair, Company Secretary {Appointed wef December
01, 2022}

b The following transactions were camied out with the related porties in the ordinary course of businass:

2 in Lakhs

For the yeor ended For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Sale/purchase of material and fixed assets

Sale
Horizon Projects Private Limited - 17.61
R retail Ventures Private Limited {refer nole 44) - 0.88
R tall Cevelopers Private Limited {refer note a4} - 0.27
Sales Return
Horizon Projects Private Limited - 246
Pyrchase
R Retail Ventures Private Lirmited [refer note 46) - 419
Horizon Projects Private Limited - 594
R Mall Developers Private Limited [refer note 48] . 08¢
Purchase Return
Horizon Projecls Privale Lirniled - 246

2 Sale of fluts/Property/Land

rr Sandeep Runwai 603.15
Horizon Projects Private Limited 211000
Sanya Runwal Farmnily Trust 1.513.31

3 Sale of Shares [Avalor Developers Private Limited)
Mr Sondeep Runwal 15.00




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

for the period ended March 31, 2024

51 Related parly transactions

Runwal Farms Private Limited

Ein Lakhs
for the yearended  For the year ended
I +
Fedicukus March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
4 5ub- lelting Rent Charges
Ariane Orgachem Private Limbed 579 1.00
§ Reimbursement of axpenses
Horizon Projects Privale Limited 7143
& Income from project management services
R Retail Ventures Private Limited - 350.00
7 AMC Charges
Wheelabrater Alloy Caslings Limiled {refer nole 44) - 24257
8 Sole of elechicity
R tall Developers Private Limited {refer note 44) - 507.17
¢ Business focilily services
R Mall Developers Private Limited - 60,00
R Retail Ventures Private Limited 150,00 300.00
10 Maintenance service glven
Arione Qrgachem Private Limited 5295 52,37
11 Dividend Paid
Anand Developers - 0.01
Runwal & Associates - 0.01
Sandeep Constructions . 0.0
Mr. Sandeep Runwal - 1.58
Mrs. Privonka Runwal - 0.06
tAr. Subocdh Subhash Runwal . D.66
Mrs_ Snehal Rurvwal * . .00
Mr. Saurabh Runwal * - 000
* amount is less than S00
12 Redemplion of Preference Shares
Anand Developers 130.70
Mrs, Priyanka Runwal 4.21
Runwal Associates 130.70
Sandeep Construction 130.70
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 1,158.582
Mr. Subodh Subhash Runwal 113.0%
13 Securlty deposit glven
Repald
Horizon Projects Privale Limited 4,374.00
14 Securlty deposit taken
Received
R Retail Ventures Private Limited {refar note 44) . 882.50
Rurrwal Foundation 365.60 297.00
Repaid
R Reilqil Yentures Privale Limited [refer note 46) 882,50
Herizon Projecis Private Limited 592393
15 intercorporate depostis received
Token
Aricine Orgachem Private Limited 150.00
Repald
Ananeg Orgachem Private Limited 150.00

508,00




Runwal Developers Private Limtted
Notes to Consolidatled Financial Stalements

for the period ended March 31, 2024

51 Reloted party fransactions

#in Lakhs
B Forthe yearended  Forthe yeor ended
el March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16 Infercorporate deposhs given
Given
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 6.163.90 190,00
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 520,00 23500
17 Loan jaken
Anand Developers - 160.72
Runwal & Associales - 179.72
Rupri Consultancy $ervices LLP - 137.49
Sandegep Conslructions - 130.72
18 loanrepald .
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 2 12,77
Anand Developers - 66.00 28.50
Runwal & Associates 5,20 21.50
Rupri Consultancy Services LLP - 137.49
Sandeep Construciions E 33.00
Arione Orgachem Private Limiled - 4,976.3)
Runwal Farms Private Limited - 7.018.69
1% loan glven
Mr, Sandeep Runwal 2,400.00 -
Rupri Consultoncy Services LLP - 780.00
Savrabh Sondeap Runwal 1,414.00 -
Privanka Rurwal SR
20 Loan given recelved
M. Sandeep Runwal 2.400.00
Mr. Saurabh Sandeep Runwal 1:345.70 -
Rupri Cansuitancy Services LLP . 780,00
Priyanka Runwal 100.00 -
21 Repayment of Capltal on Relirement
H A Visweaswaro - 0.05
Sanjay Doga - 0.05
22 Copitol Infroduced /Withdrawn
Inkoduced
Nirmala Muraili : 0.05
Sunil Satvikar - 0,05
Withdrgwn
Nirmala Murali - 0.05
Sunil Satvikoar - 0.05
23 Redemption of debentures
R Mall Developers Privote Limited - 1.000.00
24 Interest on debentures
R Moll Developers Privaie Limiled {refer note 44} 2493
25 Adverisement Expenses
R Mail Developers Private Limited 2500.00

24 Brokerage charges
Rupri Consullancy Services LLP 54,24




funwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements

for the pericd ended March 31, 2024

51 Related party fransactions

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

#in Lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

27 Maintenance Service ond Property Tax Reimbursment
Ms.Chanda Runwal

28 CSR expendtivre
Runwal Foundadion

29 Salary
Ravi Sharma
Sandeep Runwal
Privanka Runwal
Sanya Runwal
Mahesh lyer
Sujota Rao
Sweena Nair
Ashok Dorak [(wef March 12, 2024} & Salary Considered from that date)
Pallavi Matkari

30 Advance Salary to KMP
Patavi Motkar

31 Other income/Marketing Income/Reimbursement
Ariane Crgachern Private Limited

32 Donation given
Runwal Foundation

33 Reni Expenses
Chanda § Runwal
Pallavi Matkari

34 Interest on Loan
Sandeep Runwal

35 Sharing of infrastructure
Wheelobrator Alloy Castings Limiled *
Horizon Projects Private Limited
Ariane Crgachem Private Limited
Rupri Consultancy Privede Limited
Rupri Consultancy LLP
Runwal Foundation
[Transaction of non monetary nature)
* Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Lirnited fill June 14, 2023

€ Amount due to / from related parties

719

24340

150,00
£0.00
7.31
62.87
2568
12.90
90.55

1.00
104.58
100.00

13841
2.37

| 42.97

As at
March 31, 2024

313.08

35.78
20.00
30.53
3997

7.32

¥ in Lakhs
As at
March 31, 2023

Inter corporate deposit

Glven

Avalor Developers Private Limiled
Afiane Orgochem Private Limited

2 Advance from Customer
Mr. Sandeep Runwol
Sanya Runwal Farnily Trust
Saurabh Runwal Farnily Trust
Mr Subhash 5. Runwal

3 Securify deposit
Taken
Runwal Founddation

5.643.90

819.95

31.00

59.40
1.513.31

1.74

454.35
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51 Related party transactions

¥ in Lokhs
Amounl due fo [ fromrelated parties sy
: March 31,2024 tarch 31, 2023
4 Sundry Deposit
Mr. Sandeep Runwal 15.00 15.00
Mr. Subhash Runwal 115,00 11500
Mrs. Chanda § Runwal 40,00 -
5 Investment In equily shares
Arione Orgachem Privarte Limited 0.17
Wheslabrator Alloy Caostings Umited - 1,720.86
R Mall Developers Private Limited - 463.00
R Retail ventures Private Limited - 20.313.00
4 Investment in debentures _
Horizon Projects Pyt Lid 7,000.00, 7,000.00
7 Trade raceivobles
R Mall Developers Private Limiled - 16598
Ariana Orgachem Private Limited 22209 37.73
Horizon Projects Private Limiled Al .
B Trade payable
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited 0.41 1.38
R Redail ventures Private Lirnited - 717
R Mall Devetopers Private Limited 2,900.00
? Maintenance recelvables
Subhash Runwal e
Chonda Runwal 2 .59
10 Salary Payable
Ms. Sweena Nair 1.45
Mrs. Priyanka Runwal 5.2
Ms. Sujata Rao 219
11 Advance o KMP
Ms. Sujota Rao 0.24
12 Lease Rent poyable
Subhash Runwal 0,13 1.53
Sandeesp Runwal 0.03 c.as
13 Dividend payable
Mr, Subodh Subhash Ruriwal 0.66
14 Other Advances
Mr. Subhash Runwal 4,00 6.00
15 Loan L Advonces
Payable
Anand Developers 64,22 132.22
Runwar & Associates 153.02 158.22
Sandeep Construciions 9772 9772
14 Loon Glven -
Saurabh Sandeep Runwal 68,71
17 Other payable
Mr, Subadh Subhash Runwal 114.88

18 Other Receivable
Pallavi Matkord

1% Capltal Advance
Ariane Orgachem Private Limited

150,00




Runwal Developers Private Limited
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for the period ended March 31, 2024

§1 Related party fransactions

¥ in Lokhs
S o : For the year ended  forthe year endexl
Amountdue to / from related parties March 31. 2024 March 31, 2024

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Nature of fransaction / relationshi .

Shori-term employee benefits 348,76 203.5%
Past-employment pension and medical benefits*

Other long term benefits*

Termination benefits

Shore based poyments

* Provision for gratuity and leave encoshment benefits are determined on actuarial voluation basis. Hence the same is
not seperately reported here for KMPs,

Total compensailon pald to key management personned

The transactions with related parlies are made on terms equivaient to those that prevail in arm's lengih transactions. This
assessment i undertaken ecch financial yeor through exomining the financial position of the reloted party and the
market in which the related porty operates. Oulstanding talances at the year-end are unsecured ond setilement
oCCurs in cash.
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52 Confingent Liabilities ond Commitmenls
{A] Confingent Liabllites to the extent not provided for

¥ in Lakhs
As at As ot
PonCulae March 31, 2023 i Softled/Reversed . 31,2024
In respect of :
Income Tax {refer note (i to livi below| 6.015.04 15700 - 21,715.35
G5T [refer note (vi] & [vil) below} 3.043.02 291334 {3531 5921.05
Excise and Service Tax 468.78 - - 468.78
Tolal 2.526.84 18,613.65 {35.31} 28,105.18
2 in Lakhs
As at As at
Farticulars March A1, 2092 Addition Seitled/Reversed March 31,2023
Inrespechof ;
Income Tax frefer nole (i} fo [iv) below] 15,.514.00 78.10 [P.577 08} 401504
GST {reler note [vi) & [vii] bekyw) 1.4603.98 1,43%.04 - 04302
Sales Tax 48.73 [68.73} -
Excise and Service Tax [reler nole (vl below) 460.78 - = 468.78
Total 17,455.4¢ 1.517.04 (9.645.79) $.525.84
Notes:

i} Income tax demand w/s 143(3) includes disallowonce of expenses debited 1o P& L A/ on accound of BRIBIICY lor AY lrom 2000-01 to 2004-05 for
amounting to 2 120,90 lakhs against which oppeal filed with High Courl.

il Income tax demand ufs 143(3) includes desmed rent additions against deemed lel out properties and sundry creditors additions ot # £77 %4 lakhs lor
AY 2015-16 & 2016-17 againsl which appeal filed with CIT{A}.52

i) Income lax demand wis 1433) includes disallowance against sundry creditors and exempt income addifions of € 82,46 lakhs for &Y 2018-19 & 2020-21

against which appeal fled with CIT{A}-52,

The Income-Tax autherities [1he department’) had conducled search activily during the month of October 2023 al some of the premisas, sile and

residences of lew of the employaes of the Holding Company. The Company exlended full cooperalion Jo he Income-tax officials duing the search

and provided required details, clarifications, and documenls. As on the date of ssuance of these Audited financlal stiatements. the Holding Company

has not received any writlen communication rom the department regarding Ihe outcome of the search, therefore, the consequenl impact on the

Audiled linancial stalements, it any, is not ascerainable,

i

v} Service tax nolice k also issued by Commissloner of Service tox and demand is raised lor short payment of service 1ax on renting of immovable
propetly al Rmall Mulund and alse for FY 2011-12 and 2012-13 showing the payment wrongly under as input tax credit avalled inslead of showing it as
Service tax paid and for few of them an appeal is also filed in CESTAT.

vi)  GST demand against disallowance of transitional credil under $GST lor FY 2017-18, SGST appeal pending with Jolm Commissioner Appeal. CGST show
cause notice received and reply flled,

vli] GST nofice amount ol 2 1,071.63 Lakhs for Ihe ITC mismatch cases and 2 241,02 lakhs for the renting of Immovabls properly at R-city Mall and notice of
amcund of T 298.81 lakhs for the reimbursement of Water and electicily charges.

viilj The Group. after considering all available records and facts known to it is of the view that there s ne material adverse impact on The tinancial
position ol the Group and no material adjusiments are required to Ihese Audiled financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 in Ihis
regard.

(B) Leases
Operaling lease H ts — Company os |
il The Group has laken Land and Building on leave and license basis. [refer note 59)

(C} Capital Ce it Is & Othar C ] t

ij  Estimaled amount of contracts remaining fo be executed on copllat accounl and not provided for # 2435 Lakhs for The year ended mMarch 31, 2024
and ¥ 9517 Lakhs for Ihe year ended March 31, 2023,

i} The Group enters Indo conshuclion contracts with ils vendors, The linal amouynls payabls under such conlracts will be based on aclual megsurements
and negotiated rates, which are delerminable as and when the waork under the said condracts is completed

il The Group has entered into jeint development agreemenls with owners of land for its conslruclion and developmenl. Under ihe agreemenls the
Group s requlired 1o give share in built up area from such developmenls in guchonge of undivided shore in land as stipulaled under the agresments to
the owners of Ihe land and to MHADA,

{D) As per the conlractual arangernents with brokers. brokerage is payable 1o Ihem on Ihe nits sold through then only when 10% ol sale consideration of the
respective unit is received. Hence, such brokerage is conlingsnl in natue as at March 31, 2024 amounting to & 814.25 Lakhs (Previous year 2 291,89 lakhs),

(€} The Group is g parly o various legal proceedings in normal course of business (including cases pending belors RERA authorilies) and does not expect the
outcome of Ihese proceedings lo have any adverse ellect on ils financial condllions, resulls of the operations or cashflow, Amounts of such disputes are
uvnascertainable

(F}  The Group is conlesting the demands and Ihe management is of The view thal il has @ good case with likelihood of liability / any loss orising oul of Ihase
fax matters being remole. Accordingly, pending selflemanl of Ihe lax dispute, no adjustment has baen made in ke Finoncial Stalements lor the year
ended parch 31,2024, The Management. aller considering all available records and focls known o il is of the view thal there is no malsfial adverse
impact on the financial posilion o lhe Group and no materiol adjustments are required Lo These Audited financial slatements for the pericd ended 31
rarch 2024 |n this regard

53 royment to avditors {excluding G5T)

?in lakhs
For the perlod ended For the perlod ended

£qmicutars March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Audit izes 40.25 4505
Fees [or cerlilicales and other services 7.94 25

Tolal ) 4809 47.42
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54 Segment Reporting
{a)} Description of segments and principal activilies
The reportable segments of the Group's are 'Real Estate Business', 'Mall Business’ and "Power Generation'.
The segments are largely organised and managed separalely according to the orgonisation structure that is designed based on the
nature of busihess. Operating segments are reported in o manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the Chief

QOperaling Decision Maker {"CODM"},

Description of each of the reportable segments for all periods presented, is as under;

i} Real Estole Business: This Segrnent of the business includes income from sale of residential units.

il Mall Busingss: This Segment of 1he business includies rental income from R Mall Mulund, R Mall Cdean, R Mall Thane & R City

Gharkopar.

i) Power Generation Business: This Segmeni of the business includes income from sale of Electricity,

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rewal Estate Powaer
Particulars Total Business Mall Business . o neration
Revenues from extemal customers 54,214.82 25.866.55 28,288.59 59,48
intersegment revenue - E - -
Total Revenue 54,214.82 25,8856.55 28,288.59 59.60
Segment resulls before exceptional items, interest, tax and
depreciation; 23,330.24 7.398.55 19.334.87 {3.403.18)
Reconciliation to profit/(loss) for the year: . - - =
Less; Fincnce cosls {12,255.746) [1.763.85) {10,315.13) 1176.78)
Less: Depreciation and amaortisation {10,323.90} [314,5¢) {%.788.69) [220.648)
Add: Share of profit/(loss} of joint ventures and associates 495,38
Profit before exceptional iterns and tax 1,245.94
Add: Exceptional items 1,15,929.51
Profit before fax 1.17.175.47
Add: Tax Credit 3,187,232
Net profit/{loss) for the year 1.20.342.79

Reol Estate Power
Palculss Iile] Business e Generation
Segment cssels 9.59.090.15 7.61,318.48 1,.97,075.77 695.71
Unallocoble assets 36.636.53 S . .
Total assets 9.95,726.568 7,81,318.48 1,97,075.77 &95.71
Segment assets include: Equily accounted investments a - - -
Segrment liakilifies 579,731.96 3.89.282.07 1.88,345.41 1.403.2%
Unallocable liabilities 1,08,206.98 - - .
Total liabilities 4,67,938.94 3,09.983.07 1,88,345.51 1.403.29
for the year ended March 31, 2023

Reol Estate Power
Padiculars Total B Mall Bysiness Generation
Revenues from extemal customers 35,490.85 29.907.81 4,966.93 416,13
Intersegment revenue - - - -
Tolal Revenve 35,4%0.84 29,907.01 496693 616.13
Segment results before exceplional ilems, interest, tax ana
depreciation; 13,4465.92 1193017 1,127.36 408,40
Reconciliolion to profil/{lass) for the year:
Less: finance costs {3.220.04) (2,018,756} {$96.43) {204.85)
Less: Depreciation and amorlisation {1.424.16) {251.49) {$53.95} {218.72)
Add: Share of protit/{loss) of joint ventures and associales {4.428.81) - - .
Profit before exceptional items ond tax 4,312
Add: Exceptional iterms .
Profit before tax 43921
Add: Tax Credil {159.13)
Net profit/{loss) for the year 4.233.78

Real Estate Pawer
Pariculars Total Business L LLENEE . ey
Segment assets 3.70,175.13 3,05.442.51 1,906.10 6282552
Unallocable assets 9.848.96
Total assets 3,80,024.09 3,05,443.51 1,904,10 $2,825.52
segment assels include; Equily accounled investments 26.374.57
Segment liabiliies 2.15,497 .84 1,972,174 %98 1.888.26 21,434 60
Unallocable liatilities 20,263.12
Total liabilities 2,35.740.94 1.92174.98 1.888.24 21,434.40
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55 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
fa) The amount of ¥ 23,534.43 Lakhs {Previous year T 23,881.90 Lakhs) recognised in confract liabilities af the beginning of the reporling period has
been recognised as revenue during the period ended March 31, 2024.

{b) Significont changes in confract asset and contract lickilities balances are as follows:
Zin Lakhs
For the period ended  For the period ended
Raicolas Maich 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract liabillty
Al the beginning of the reporling period - Advances from cuslomers Including 1.13,703.68 72.631.38
amount payable towards cancelled flals
Addition on account of Business Combination {refer note 49} 69,367.62 -
Amount received during 1he year 1,10.840.20 64,954,20
Amount recognised as revenue during the year 23,536.43 23.881.90
Al the end of the reporting period 2,70,375.07 1.13,703.48
¥ in Lokhs
For the period ended  Forthe period ended
Rorticutors March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Confract Assets
Al the beginning of the reporling perod - Joint Development Agreement §,444.98 9.543.64
Change due to collection - -
Change due to revenue recorded 1,382.23 1.098.68
At the end of the reporting period 7.082.75 8,444,98
#in Lakhs
For the perlod ended  For the period ended
roricuian March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cantract liablity
At the beginning of the reporfing period - Joint Devslopment Agreement 8,444.98 9,543.66
Chonge due to collection - -
Change due to revenue recorded 1,382.23 1.098.68
At the end of the reporting period 7.062.75 8,444.98
(c} Conlract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuant 1o agreements executed with such
customers for construction and sale of residenlial units, The terms of agreements executed with cusiomers require the customers to make
paymeni of consideralion as fixed in the agreement on achievernent of conlractual milestones though such mileslones may not necessarily
coincide with the point in time al which Ihe Group fransfers control of such units 1o the customer. The Group is liable for any siruciural or other
defects in the resideniial units as per the terms of the agreements executed with cuslomers and the applicable laws and regulations.
{dl The Group expects to salisfy the scid performance obligalions when (or as) the underlying real estale projects 1o which such performance
obligalions relates are completed. Such real estale projects are in various stages of developmenl as al March 31, 2024,
{e] Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is Ihe disaggregation of the Group revenue from condracis wilh cuslomers by timing of fransfer of goods or services.
2 in Lakhs
! For the period ended  For the period ended
aaticuian March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Timing of fransfer of goods or services
Revenue from goods or services fransterred to customers at a point in time 52,832.59 29.220.40
Revenues from goods or services transferred to custorners over the period of time 1,382.22 1,078.63
(f} Assels recognised from the costs to obtain or fuillil a conlract with a cystomer
Zin Lakhs
For ihe perlod ended  For the perlod ended
pxiicylars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Brokerage cosls pertaining to sale of residential units 380.77 290.47
Defermred Brokerage Outstanding at Balance Sheet Date 13,043.57 6,306,34

{g} The hansaction price of the remaining performance obligations as ol march 31, 2024 # 4,01,722.90 lakhs {Previous year T 1,62,235.27 lakhs). The
same is expected fo be recognised wilhin 1 to 5 years

{h} Revenue from major cuslomer {more than 10% of lumover)
Revenue from one customer is E NIL foi the perod ended march 31, 2024 conslituted more Ihan 10% of the tolal revenue of 1he Group
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56 Fair values Disclosure
The fair values of Ihe finoncial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the insirument could be exchanged in a

current Iransaction between market paricipants at the measurement date, other than in o forced er liquidation sale.

Fair value of cash and sherl-term deposils, trade and other short term receivables, frade payables, other current liabililies, short ferm
loons from banks ond other financial institutions approximale their carying amounts largely dus to the short-term maturities of these
nstruments,

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valualion lechnique:
Level I: Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ligbilities

Level Zinpuls are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabiiity, sither direclly fie.
prices) orindirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs thal are not based on observable market dala unobservable inputs. Fair value are determined in whole orin part using
a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable cument market Iransactions in the
same instrurnent not are they based on available market data.

a The cornying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 Is as follows :

& in Lakhs
Fakr value ftwough
Parficulars other comprehensive Fak vake illwougll Amo::ed Total
g profit or loss c
Financial assets
Non-current
Investments - 3,532.92 440,03 397295
Other financial assets = - 3,431.90 3,431.90
Current
Invesiments - - 7.000.00 7,000.00
Trade Receivables - - 3.524,53 3,524,53
Cash and Cash Equivalerds - - 8,840.15 B8,840,15
Bank balances other thar above - - 1,.901.32 1,901,39
Loans - - 19.061.13 12.061.13
Olher Financial Assets - - 1.891.76 1,891.76
Totat - 3,532.92 46,110.89 49,643.81
Financial abilities
Non-cumrent
Borowings - - 2.44,991.70 2.46,991.70
Other Financial Liabilities - - 2,853.02 285302
Current
Borrowings - - 15,085.86 15,085.84
Lease Liabililies - - 10291 102,91
Trade Payables - - 20,302 42 20,302.42
Other Financial Liabilities - : 15,191.80 15,191.80'
Tolal - . 3.00.527.71 3,00,527.71
b The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 is as follows :
% in Lakhs
Falr value through
Particulars other comprehensive Lo aRis e CLah RRIEL Total
profit or loss cost
income

Financial assets
Non-current
Investments - 348 49 - 348,49
Cther financial assets . 1,622.18 1,622,18
Curent
Investments - 7.000.00 7.000.00
Trade Receivables - 1,437 .48 1.437.468
Cash and Cash Equivalenls - 10,478.44 10.478.44
Bank balances other than above 2.597.04 2.597.04
Loans - 8.400,14 8,600.14
Olher Fnancial Assels 1,393.42 1,393.42
Totat - 348.4% 33.120.92 33,477.401
Finoncial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings 64,942.37 64,942 37
Lease Liakililies 3,48 3.48
Current
Borrowings 8.622.50 8.622.50
Lease Liakililies 123 1.23
Trade Payables 13,342,832 13,342 8¢
Other Financial Ligbilities - 5.202.07 520207
Total h 92,114.54 92,114.54
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Fair Valye Hierarchy;

2 in Lokhs
As ot As at

Padigylors March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets measured at fair value
Investments
Lavel 1 . =
Level 2 344.81 348.32
Lavel 3 3.183.31 0.17

During the reporting period ending March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measuraments,
The followlng method/assumptlions were used to aslimate the fair values:

i} The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances. loans, frade receivables, Inter corporate
deposits, short term borrowings, frade poyables and cother financial kabiliies/assets opproximate their carrying amounis largely
due to the short-temrn maturities of thess instrumenis,

i) Fair vaive of mutual funds is based on the latest available Net Asset Value [NAY) as at ihe reporling dale.

The tair values for securly deposils approximaoles its camying amount as ihe same are repayable on demand.

Fair Valve of financial ossets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost
Current loans measured at amortised cost includes inter corporate loans, the fair value of which is as stated below;

T in Lakhs
As af As of
Particyl
warg Maich 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
Loans 19.0461.13 8.600.14

As loans are cumrent in nature, fair value of inter corporale loans given are considered to be at camying amount.

57 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management. capilal includes issued equity capital, share prerniurn and all other equily
reservas alfribuioble 1o the equily holders of the parent, The primary objective of the Group's cagital managemant is to maoximise
ihe sharehalder value.
The Group's policy is o maintain a sirong capital base so as to maintain invastor, crediton, and markel confidence and to sustain
future developrnent of the business. Manogement monitors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends o ordinary
shareholders.

The Group's manages its capital structure and makes adjustmenls in light of changes in economic condiflons and the
requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capilal suchore, the Group's may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital 10 shareholders of issue new shares. The Group's monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total squity, The Group’s includes within net debl, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents, excluding disconfinued operalions,

#in Lakhs
As of As at

Farirulors Morch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings [Note 25 and 30] 2,62,077 56 73,564,587
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Note 17) 8,840.15 10,478.46
Met debt {A) 2,53,217.41 43.085.41
Equity 2.191.37 219137
Olher equity 305,356 .97 1,15,806.61
Total equity (B) 3,07,548.34 1,17,797.98
Gearing rotio {4/B) 82.33% 53.55%

In order to achieve this overall objeclive, the Group's capital management. amongst other things. dims to ensure Ihal il meels
financial cavenants alached 10 the inleresl-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital slructure requirements, Breaches in
meeling the financial covenants would permil the bank to immediately call loans and borowings. There have been no brecches
in the financial covenants of any inleresi-bedring lodans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in Ihe objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the perod ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023 .
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58 Financial Risk Management Objeclive and Policies

The Group principal financial iabiities comprise borowings. kade and other poyables. The main purpose of these inancial liakilities is 1o financs Ihe Group operalions
and o provide guarantees 1o suppart its operations. The Group principol financial assels include koans and advances, trade ond other receivables, and cash and cash
equivatenis that derive direclly from its operalions.

The Group & exposed to market disk, credil sk and liquidily risk. The Group senior monagement cversee:s the management of these risks. The Group senior managesmenl
ansbras thal the Group's financlal ik aclivities are governed by appropriate policles and proceduras and thal Anancial dsks are [dentified, meosured and managed in
accordance with The Company's policies and risk objectives, The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees policies for monaging each of these risks, which are summarnised
below.

{1}

n

Market risk

Market fisk is the fsk 1hat The fair valueg of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market sk comprises three
types of risk: inlerest rale rsk, cumency risk and other price risk, such as eqully pice risk and commodily risk. Financial instrurments affected by market risk include
deposlts, FYTOC! investments,

The sensillvily amalysls In Ihe following seclions relote to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The analysks exclude the impact of movements in market varablas on: the camying values of graluily and other post-retiremenl obligations; provisions; ond the non-
financlal assets and llabilties of larelgn operations

The lollowing assumplions have been made in calculaling the sensifivity analysts:

The sensitivity of The relevant profit of 1oss item i The offec] of The assumed changes in respective market fsks. This & based on the inanclal assels and financial
ligbilties held al March 31, 2024 and march 31, 2023,

Interast rake risk

Interest rale risk can be either fair volue interest rate risk or cash flow Interest rate dAsk. Fair value Interest rale risk is 1he risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
beaning Investments becouse of Ructualions in the interest rales. Cash flow interest rote risk s Tha sk That the future cash flows of floating nlerest baoring
invesiments will lucluate becowse of luclualions in the interesl rates.

The Group is éxposed to the cash flow inlerest rote risk due to which the future cash flows of lloaling Interast bearing investmants flucluate because of fluctualions in
Ihe interest rotes.

The sensitivity andlysis in the following seclions ralale 1o the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The analyses exclude the Impact of moverments in market variables on: Ihe camying volues of gratuily and other postretitement obligalions; provisions; and the non-
financial gssels and llabilitles of fareign operations.

The followlng assumptions have been made in coalculaling the sensitivily onalysis:

The sensitivity of the relevont profil or lass ilem s the effect of the assumed changes in respective market rigks. This is based on the financial assets and Anandaial
liabdilies held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Ein Lakhs
For the perod ended For the year ended
Parficulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
: 1% Increase 1% decrease 1% Increase 1% decreass

Finanelol LioblliHes
Yorigble rate instrumenis

Bomowings [2.615.50) 2.615.50 {708 04} F0B.04
Cash flow senslitvity (nel} {2.615.50) 2,615.50 (700.04) 708.04

Exposvre to interest rale risk

In ¢roder to oplimize Ihe Company’s position wilh regards to interesl income and inlerest expenses and ko manage the interesl rate risk, freqswy performs a
comprehensive corporale interest rale sk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and flkaling rale financial instruments in ils total portfclio.
According to the Company interest rate risk sxposure Is only for Aoating rake borrowings. The interest rate proli ls of the Company's interes-bearing i nancial
Insirements as reported to the management of Ihe Company s 05 follows,

i Lakhs

Aol As ot
March 31, 2024 Mawch 31, 2023

Parliculars

Financial liabllifles

variable rale inslrurnenls {Term loon & Bank overdroil) 2.61.550.34 72,448.57
Fixed rate inslroments |Term loan & Lease liobililies) 630,14 456.63
2,62,180.48 72,495.22
Financial assels
Fliesad rale instruments (Bank deposils £ Loans) 53.255.53 14,126.54
== 53,255.53 14,126.54
Forelgn currency sk

There is no foreign currency assels or obility as on karch 31, 2024, Thus there is na forelan surency risk as on March 31, 2024,

Credi visk

Crech sk is the risk that courlerparly will nol meet its obligoticns under a finonciol instrumenl of cuslomer contraci, leading 19 @ finandial ass. The Group is exposed
10 credit risk from its operoling activilies {primarily rode receivobles) and from its linancing aaiviies, inciuding deposits with bonks and financiol instilutions, foreign
exchange fransactions and olher finoncial instrumenls

Exposura to craditrisk
The carrying armount af finoncial assels reprasents the moxmuom credit exposure




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024
a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables of Ihe Group comprises of receivables lowards sale of propertles, renlal raceivables and olher receivables,

- Recelvables towards sale of properly
The Group is nol substanlally exposed to credlt risk as property i delivered on paymenl of dues,

. Racalvables ds rental b
The Group Is nol substanlially exposed to credit sk os Group collacts secunly deposits from lessee,
- Other Recelvables

Credit ek s managed as per the Group's estailished policy, procedures ond control relating to customer credit sk manogement, Outstanding coslomer
recelvables are requlary monilored. The impairmenl anatysis i performed at eoch reporting date on an individual basis for major customers, The maxinmum
exposure 1o credit risk of the reporting dote is the camying value of each class of financial assets,

As per simplfied opprooch. the Group makes provision of expecied credil losies on frade receivablas 1o mitigale 1he dsk of defaull payrmaents and makes
appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever oylslanding s for longer period and involves higher risk

Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule
Balance as at Morch 31, 2024

Tin Lokhs
Undispuied Trade Undispuled Trade  Dispuled Trade Disputed Trade  Allowonce for
recebvables - Receivables - which Receivables Receivables significant
considered good have signiiicont = considered =which hove
Parficulors 9 s:':cu g good = Increass In credt
ik Increase In credit K /credh
tisk Impaired
Mol Dua 596,14 017 018}
Less than & ronths 1.074.58 - 31.66 [20.11}
& months - 1 year 439.80 3081 3711 [47.71}
1- 2years 293.78 92.12 21.11 {134.45)
2- Ayears 114,28 127.63 73.29 {169.53}
tdare than 3 yeors 375.41 21233 74528 1508.79}
Tolal 2.963.99 4342.5% ¥78.42 [880.97)
Balance oz at Morch 31, 2023
2 in Lakhs
Undtspuled Trade Undispuled Trade  Dispuled Trade Disputed Trade Allowance for
Iﬂcd\;uble:s;ood :acalvlul:ll:ls - v:'hlch Recel\::ble:l = R:;::v::los signiicant
consider: ave s con = consldere - ave
i e hcreasg In credii signillc ant LGRS
sk Increase In cradn flsk /credit
sk Impaked
Not Due
Less lhan & monihg 897.27 -
& months - | year 72.42 135.31 {10.60) 112301}
1- 2 yenars 284.75 89.22 16.02) 183.21}
2-3years 2424 112.47 0o {112.48}
More han 3 years 1.50.31 167.23 [27.31} {13225}
Tolal 1,429.01 504.24 {43.94} . [451.63)

) Finoncial instruments and bonk deposits
Credll risk from balances with bonks and financial instilulions i managed by the Group's lreasury depariment in accordance with the Group's policy,
Investments of surplus flunds are made only with opproved counlerparties and within credil Imils assgned to sach counlerparly. Counlerpady credil Himits are
reviewed by the Group's Board of Direclors on an annual Basis. The limits are sel to minimise he concentralion of rtks ond thersfore mitigate financial 1035
through counlesparty's potential failure to rmake paymenls

The Group's maximym exposurs 1o credil risk for the componenis of The bolance sheet ot March 31, 2024,
¢} Lodans

The loans and advonces alse incledes loons in the nature of advances for project and hence sk on Ihem is minimal, Based on the above factors and historical
data, [oss on collechon of recaivables Is nol matenial and hence no provision was made in respec of these loons.

¥ i Lakhs
Az at As at
Parlicul
ey March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans other 1han project advancss 1206113 B.400.14

Expected credit loss assessment of loans as ot March 31, 2024 ond March 31, 2023

Considenng The noture of the business, the Group has a policy 1o provide loans o its group entilies for underaking projects, based on its primary Business model of
underiaking project developmenls. The loons given to these entilies are repoyable an demand and there is no post history for any default f delay / iregularily in
repaymenls based an demands made, Moreover, all the group enlifies 1o whorm leans have been advanced, have subsianlial potential in Ihe projeclts to repay the
loon based on Ihe valualion of such enlilies and the aclivilies ore controlled and managed by 1he Group, Accordingly, in view of such conlrol over operalions and
underlying security of the project f assels. Ihese loans are considered adequalely secured for repaymenls, excepl in casss where [he independent voluation of
underlying projacls wamant provision for imparment

(iif) Liquidity risk

Liguidhly risk is the risk Thot the Group will not be aple to sellle o meel ils obligations as they fal dua. The Growp's policy on liguidity sk it o maintain sulficient liquidity
in e form of cash and invesiment in liqud ruiyal funds to meslt The Group's operaling requiremeanis wilh on appropriote level of headroom. In addition, processes
and policies relalad ko such risks are overseen by sefior management. Manogement monitars the Group's nel liquidily position 1hrough reling forecasts on the basis
of expacled cosh flows. The Group hos access 1o a sufficient variely of sources of funding maturing within 12 months con be rolled over wilh exsting lenders
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58 Financiol Risk Managemaent Objective and Policies {Cont..)

Maturity protie of Rnanclal Rabilifas
The lable below provides details regarding the remalning confraciual moturities of Ananclal liablittes at the reporiing date pased on conlractual undiscounted

payments.
2 in Lakhs
Canying
As al March 31, 2024 A On Demand Less than 1 year 110 § years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings (refer note 25 and 30) 242077.56 0.00 15,007.50 22881542 18,254,464 2,62077.56
Lease Liabilities 1029 347 P9.44 - 10291
Tracle Payabiles 20,302.42 . 20.302.42 . 20,302.42
her Financial Uabilfies 18.044.82 - 15.526.28 2.518.54 - 18,044.82
Total 3.00,527.1 3.47 50,935.64 2.31,333.96 18,254.64 3.00,527.71
¥ in Lakns
Carrylng 5 :
As al March 31, 2023 ArioUnt On Demand Less than 1 year 110§ years More than 5 years Total
Barowings refer nole 25 and 30) 73.554.07 - 8.729.51 40,054.75 4,780.60 73.564.87
Lease Liabillles 4.71 - 123 348 - 471
Trade Payobles 13342489 13,342.89 - 13,4287
Oither Francial Liapiilles 520207 369.68 483239 . - 520207
Total 92,114.54 3469.68 26,906.02 60,058.24 4,780.40 92,114.54
Delalis of dves fo Micra, Small and Medium Enlerprises:
2in Lakhs
As al As-al

Festicuss March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Arnouni unpaid as at year end - principal 662,08 135241
Amouni unpaid as at year end - inlerest ] il
The amount of inferest paid by 1he buyer in terms of section 14, of the Micro NIl Nif
Small and Medium Enlerprise Development Act, 2004 [the "AcT)along with 1he
amounts of the payment made to the suppller beyond the oppolnlad doy
during each accounting year, .
The amount of interes! dus and payable for the year of delay in making NI Ni
paymenl fwhich have been pald but beyond the oppeinted day during 1he
year} but withaut adding the inlerest specified under Act,
The amount of inlerest accrvad and remaining unpaid at the end of each il NIl
accounting yeor.

Nil Mil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeedng years, unil such dale when the Interest dues as above are
achually pald to the small enlerprise for the purpose of disalliowance as Q
dedudiitle expendilure under section 23 of the Act.

Disclosuwre of oulsionding dues of micro ond small enlerprse under rads payables s boased on the infarmation avalloble wilh the
Company regarding the status of the supplisrs as definsd under 1he Micro, Smoll and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Further,
cubstanding dues fo micro and small enterprkes are on account of deficlency In services productsy documenls, Hence, interes! has not
Bean provided on these overdus amounts. This fact has ako been dsciosed in The MSME torm | jreturny filed on half yearty basis by the
Company with ROC. This has been relled upon by 1he auditor.
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59 leases

Agsel given under operating lease

The Group has recovared ¥ 24,415.29 Lakhs rend from the Customers. Details of rental income recognized during the yearin

respect of this is given below:

T in Lakhs
As As at
P
arficukrs March 31 March 31
Rent income recognized during the year 24,4152% 2,473.01
Total 24,415.29 2473.0
Assel taken under 1
(i) The Company has 1aken Land on leave and license basis.
Details of rental experse recognized duling the yearin respect of this lease is given below:
2in Lakhs
As at As ot
Parficulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Carrying value of ight of use assels at the end of the reporting period 192.88 104.0%
Total 192.88 106.09
{ii) Analysis of Lease liabilily:
Zin Lakhs
As ot As ot
Movement of | 1 lies
Seiollcbiilie Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening leass liabilities 470 -
Addition on account of Business Combination {refer note 49) 151.41
Adidlition duiing the year {pefiod . 5.80
Interest Cost 8.17 0.61
Cash outflow lowards paymeni of lease liabilities [59.37) 1.71}
Closing Lease Liabilities 102,91 4,70
{iil) Maturity analysis of lease liabililies {on undlscounted basis)
#in Lakhs
As ot As at
Padiculors
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than 1 year 107.79 1.71
Between 1-5 years - 3.98
More than 5 vears - -
107.7¢ 5.6%
{iv] Lecse liabiliies included in statement of financial position
Tin Lakhs
As at As ot
Particyl
gicuen March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Currend 102,21 1.23
Non - Corrent . 3.48
v} Impact on statement of profil and loss
2in Lakhs
As ot As ot
Pariculars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inlerest on lease liakiliies &£17 0.61
Depreciation on righi of use assets 53.62 1,34
Ned impaci on profit before tax G{el AL 195
Deferred lax - Chorge/ (credit) 15,05} [0.49)
Net impact on profit afler tax 44.74 1.46




Runwal Developers Frivate Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

40 Exceplional ltems

Tin Lakhs
as ot As at
fariculars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Guain/(Loss) on Fair Valyaticn
Falr Value of Existing Ownership Interest of 50.00% in R Retail veniures 57 508
Privale Limiled os on dote of acquistion -508.63
Value of Investmnet {5.118.39)
Gain on Falr Valvotlon on account OF Buisness Combination of R Retail 52.190.24
Ventures Private Limlted e
Fair Value of Exisling Ownership Inleresl of 49.75% in R Mall Developers 8210253
Private Limitedt as on date of acquistion ARES
Value of investmnet {16,.291.19)
Gain on Fair Valuation on account Of Buisness Combination of R Mall 65,811.34
Developers Private Limited
Fair Value of Investment in Equity Shares of Wheelabrator Alloy Castings 3,188.31
Limited
value of Investmnet {5,460.38)
Loss recognised on account of change in shareholding of Investiment in {2,272.07)
Wheelabrator Alloy Castings Limited (refer note below)
Total 1,15,92¢.51
41 Construction Work In Progress includes
T in Lakhs
As at As at
famcyidn Morch 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Approval Fees 55,783.94 37.490.62
Employee Cost 2.698.95 2.315.42
Finance Cost 14,35%.20 8811.00
Land 91.019.07 62,356.64
taierials & Lobour 1.11,399.80 48,465.54
Others 32.768.96 37.034.37
Adjustment on account of fair valuations 49,101.46 -
Total 3.66131.38 2,03,473.60
42 Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Zin Lokhs
Outstanding for following periods
St from ihe booking date
Parficulars Not due Less More Total
No 1-2 2.3
than 1 — yoars than 3
year ¥ yYears
1 Undispuled MSME 114.89 27506 .56 8.59 - 408.10
2 Undisputed Others 2.297.04 754517 1.579.76 1,292.17 1,252.42 13,966 .56
3 Disputed dues - MSME = - - - . -
4 Disputed dues - Clhers = = . > = =
Total 241193 7.820.23 1,569.32 1,300.76 1.252.42 14.374.464
As at March 31, 2023
Tin Lakhs
Outstanding for following perlods
sr from the booking dole
Particulars Not due Less More Total
No 1-2 2-3
than 1 than 3
years years
Yeqr years
1 Undisputed MSME 216,32 921.46 37,24 32,49 2.40 1.201.91
2 undisputed CHhers 1,634.10 7.351.75 131.24 160.40 404.41 2.683.90

3 Disputed dues - MSME - -
4 Disputed dues - Others - - -
Total 1,850.42 8.273.21 170.48 182.89 408.81 10,885.81
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Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

65 Other $tatutory Information
1 The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group
for holding any Benami property.

2 The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off u/s 248 of Companies Act, 2013.

3 The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory perica.

4 The Group have not fraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

5 The Group, its joint ventures & associoles have not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s} or
entity(ies}. including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shaill

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Group {Ullimate Beneficiaries) except:

a. During the year Holding Company {Runwal Developers Private Limited) advanced an amount of ¥ 29,515 Lakhs as
Inter Corporate Deposii and {Sister Company| R Relail Yeniures Private Limited advanced an amount of ¥ 28,000
Lakhs as Infer Corporate Deposit to Subsidiary Company [Galleria Refail Private Limited} in the month of
October/November 2023,
During the year Subsidiary Company [Galleria Retail Private Limited] acquired shares of Subsidiary from White
Harbour Investment Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary] on Qctober 30, 2023 by utilising the above funds.
b. During the year Subsidiary Company (R Mall Developers Private Limited) advanced ¥ 2,550.00 lakhs 1o Sanabh
Ventures Private limited (intermediary} as Intercorporate deposit on March 27, 2024 and March 30, 2024. Sanabh
Ventures Private Limited has further given such inter corporate deposit 1o Sandeep Runwal {Ultimate Beneficiary] as
on March 27, 2024 and March 30, 2024.

il or provide any guarantee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

¢ The Group. its joint venture & associates have not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Group shall;

i) directly or indlirectly lend or invest in other persons or entifies identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalt of
the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) except
a. During the year Subsidiory Company {Galleria Retail Private Limited) received Inter Corporate Deposit from
Holding Company (Runwal Developers Private Limited] amounting to ¥ 29,515 Lakhs and (Sister Company) R Retail
Yentures Private Limited amounting to # 28,000 Lokhs and acquired shares of R Retail ventures Frivate Limited from
White Harbour Invstment Limited (Ulfimate Beneficiary) on October 30, 2023 by utilising the above funds.

i) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

7 The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the bocks of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or SUrvey of
any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

8 The tifle deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Group except for those mentioned in note 3 {iil) and
& (i)

¥ The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any gavernment
authority,

10 The Group has availed various borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
The quarterly refurns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks and financial inshitutions are in
agreement with the books of accounis.

66 Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA®) notifies new standards or amendments fo the existing standards under Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards] Rules as Tssued from time to fime. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group,

which ”vf-" Code will come inlo effect has not been nofified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued, The
Group [yl assess the impact of the Code when it comes inlo effect and will record any related impact in the pey




Runwal Developers Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2024

68 Amalgamation of Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited with Runwal Developers Private Limited

During the year, the Board of Directors of Runwal Developers Private Limited {"Holding Company™” or *Transferee Company™),
in their meeting held on May 08, 2023, considered ond aproved a scheme of amalgarmation of Dhruva Weollen Mills
Private Limited {Subsidiary or "Transferor Company”} into and with the Holding Company and their respective shareholders
and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies
{Compromises, Arangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other rules and regulations fromed thereunder
{"Scheme"),

The Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal {'NCLT') vide its order dated February 13, 2024, have approved
the Scheme of Amalgomation (the “Scheme”) of Dhruva Woollen Mills Privale Limited with the Holding Company with
appointed dote of April 01, 2023, under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the rules framed thereunder. The said Scheme has been effective from March 11, 2024, on compliance of all the
conditions precedent menlioned iherein. Consequently, above menfioned subsidiary of the Holding Company got
amalgamated with the Company w.e.f. April 01, 2023,

6% Evenls occuring after Balance Sheet Date

On July 11, 2024 a share subscription cum purchase agreement was entered between Holding Company, Avalor Developers
Private Limited and R Mall Developers Private Limited to acquire Class A 20,00.000 Equity Shares and Class B 47,142 Equity
Shares of R Mall Developers Private Limited, Co has allotted 1,54,67,296 equity shares at Premium of ¥ 535 on preferential
basis to Avalor Developers Private Limited at agreed consideration of # 82,987.64 Lakhs.

70 Previous pericd figures have been re-grouped and rearranged whenever necessary to conform to curent pericd

preparation.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors

For $inghi & Co. Runwal Developers Private Limited

Chartered Accountants CIN: U70T00MH1988PTC044631

Firm Regisfration No.: 302049E \JA’,'&) ™ g q})‘}
Mil gal Nirmala Muroli  Sujata Rao Sweena Nair
Partner Director Director Company Secretory

Membership No.: 123314 DIN: 09408883  DIN: 03478837 Membership No: A17634

Place : Mumbai Ploce : Mumbai
Date: 28-12-2024 Date: 28-12-2024
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